
Document last changed: 3/11/2008 10:35 AM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, March 17, 2008 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
7:00 p.m. Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Karen McCalpin, update on Corolla Wild Horse Fund   

Item 4 Corolla Ocean Rescue contract for Lifeguard Services   

Item 5 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-10 Currituck County Text 
Amendment: Request to amend Chapter 4: Overlay Districts, 
Chapter 7: Signs, and Chapter 17: Definitions of the Currituck 
County Unified Development Ordinance to clarify the use of 
electronically controlled message signs. 

Item 6 Review and Action  PB 07-16 Weeping Radish: Annual review of 
a special use permit for outdoor events. The property is located at 
6810 Caratoke Hwy., Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 7 Appointments to the Whalehead Board of Trustees   

Item 8 Consent Agenda: 
1. Surplus resolution for Extension trailer 
2. Change Orders for Jarvisburg Elementary School 
3. Change Orders for Shawboro Elementary School 
4. Resolution opposing OLF Site in Camden County 
5. Budget Amendments 
6. Request to purchase ambulances through installment purchase 

agreement and piggy-back off of the Florida State contract 
7. Report of Unpaid 2007 Real Estate Taxes - Order 

Advertisement of Tax Liens 
8. Bond Order for Mainland Water Revenue Bonds  
9. Series Resolution for Mainland Water Revenue Bonds 

1



Document last changed: 3/11/2008 10:35 AM 

 
10. Resolution to Declare County-Owned Parcel 110B-011-0016-

0000 Surplus Property  
11. Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process - Parcel 110B-011-

0016-0000 
12. Appointment of Scott Pollard to the Community Child Protection 

Team/Community Child Fatality Team 

Item 9 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 10 County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

 

 

2



COROLLR MILD RORSR FVUD
I N C O R P O R A T E D

1126 Schoolhouse Lane POBox 361 Corolla NC 27927
Phone 252 4538002 Fax 252 453 8073

wwwcorollawildhorsescom infoQcorollawildhorsescom

Corolla Wild Horse Fund Update
March 2008

The Corolla Wild Horse Fund has made tremendous progress in the past 17 months
Incompliance with the Currituck Wild Horse Management Plan the herd has been
reduced from 119 in August of 2006 to the current herd size of 87 With the help of
Wrangler Farms in Grandy and the Horse of the Americas registry and its members
we have adopted out a total of 28 horses DNA samples have been collected and we are

awaiting a report from TexasAMUniversity on the current genetic health of the herd
The overall physical health of herd is excellent A darted birth control program was

instituted in partnership with Zoo Montana and the Humane Society of the United
States and grant funding has enabled us to purchase a new horse trailer and a variety of
herd management tools such as a dart guns darts binoculars range finder and a hand
held GPS unit

Our internal structure has been strengthened by the addition of a third fulltime staff
person This has enabled us to open and staff a Wild Horse Museum The Museum store
contained within has generated much needed operating funds and we will be openinganother location in a few days We have worked diligently and resolutely to responsibly
manage the herd and to achieve financial stability and have been excellent stewards of
the funds entrusted to us both by the county and the public

Incompliance with the Currituck Wild Horse Management Plan the herd has
been reduced by 37horses exceeding our goal of 30 horses The current herd size
is 87

Our adoption program continues to be successful Twelve horses have been
adopted this fiscal year A total of 28 horses have been adopted since September
2006 Seven horses are saddle trained and the rest are still too young tocarry a

rider A twelve year old stallion removed from the beach in March of 2007 was
ridden by a child in the Smithfield Christmas parade this November and a four
year old mare and two four year old geldings are being used for riding lessons

3



There are now only two horses available for adoption Both are registered as

Colonial Spanish Mustangs

Follow up calls were made to all adopters dating back to 2002

A darted birth control program is now in its booster phase giving targeted mares

a followupdosage ofnonhormonal Porcine Zona Pelucida CWHF works in
collaboration with Zoo Montana and the Humane Society of the United States on

this program

Two Corolla stallions were shown at the Delaware Horse Expo on March 15th
and CWHF Board Member Steve Edwards conducted a clinic on the Banker

strain of Colonial Spanish Mustang

A two year old adopted Corolla filly won the halter class at the Mid

AtlanticSoutheastern Colonial Spanish Mustang show competing against
professionally bred horses

CWHF has sponsored two natural horsemanship clinics one in Grandy and one

in Smithfield Virginia Two more are planned in April and July

A fourday old filly with contracted tendons was rescued on February 13th Her
mother was also captured and transported to the Dominion Equine Clinic in
Suffolk After five days of treatment mare and foal were released and adopted
The foal has made a complete recovery

On February 26th 27th and 28th FOX 50sNC Wanted production crewcame to

Corolla to film a 23 minute segment on the unsolved horse shootings The

program will air on 50 markets across the state and on their website in April or

May Background music was provided by local musician Greg Shelton Shelton
wrote a song about the shootings that he will be recording and will debut on NC
Wanted

The Wild Horse Museum and CWHF were featured in a five page article in Our
State magazine in September 2007

CWHF was featured in the September 2007 issue of the national magazine Horse
Illustrated

The Corolla Wild Horses and CWHF were featured in the JanFeb 2008 issue of
Coastal Living

4



WRAL in Raleigh CBS has done two recent stories on the horses

Our 5 quarterly newsletter Wild and Free will be available in April

The Corolla wild horse herd will have their own chapter in the soon to be

published updated book Horses of Distinction by Fran Lynhaug

Traer Scott a photographer who has produced two books that benefit the

ASPCA Street Dogs and Shelter Dogs is currently working on abook about wild

horses and was here to photograph the wild horses in December Information on

the Corolla Wild Horse Fund will be included in the book

Over 500 individuals and families nationwide are now members of the Corolla
Wild Horse Fund

The Wild Horse Museum in Old Corolla Village received35000 visitors between

Apri12007 and December 2007 We offered horse painting activities every
Tuesday and brought a gentled Mustang every Wednesday from Memorial Day
through Labor Day Bringing a horse to the schoolhouse gives families who may
not have an appropriate vehicle or who cannot afford a horse tour an

opportunity to see and learn about the wild horses Horse painting will be

expanded toTuesdays and Thursdays this season and rainy day story hours will

be held at the new Corolla Town Center location

We have provided a gentled Mustang for the Countys Excursion Days the

Countys Bike Race and summer camp at Roanoke Festival Park and Wild Horse

Days atCurrituck Heritage Park

The Fund is collaborating with North Carolina State University NC Estuarine

Research Reserve and US Fish Wildlife on an impact and carrying capacity
study of the area defined by the Currituck Wild Horse Management Plan as the

horse sanctuary Both NCSU and the Corolla Wild Horse Fund will be seeking
private and public grant funding to support the study

National partnerships have been formed with the Horse of the Americas

Registry the Humane Society of the United States the American Livestock Breed

Conservancy and the American Wild Horse Preservation Campaign

DNA samples have been taken by darted cell plug and are currently being
evaluated at TexasAMUniversity by Dr E Gus Cothran a leading equine
geneticist and expert on feral herds The report will indicate the genetic health of

the herd at 90 horses

5



A national amateur photography contest was held that generated over300

entries The top 13 photographs were made into a calendar that sold out in two

months The contest for the 2009 calendar is now underway

The CWHF websitewwwcorollawildhorsescomhas been completely
redesigned and features a secure web store history pages current news and

events an adoption page opportunities for support opportunities for

employment amap and directions to Corolla It is regularly updated

CWHF applied for and received two grants that paid for the printing of 50000
new educational brochures the transfer of the documentary Wild in Corolla from

VHS to DVD format a new horse trailer GPS system darting supplies and other

tools necessary for herd management

Herd Manager Steve Rogers assisted staff at the Currituck Wildlife Refuge in

setting up an electrified exclosure fence around a sensitive plant area He is also

working with False Cape State Park Manager Kyle Barbour on replacing cables

at the VANC fence

Three meetings of the Currituck County Wild Horse Advisory Board have been

held this fiscal year with the fourth scheduled for April Betty Lane a north

beach resident was appointed to the Board as a citizen representative

The CWHF Board has been expanded from five members to nine members New

members include SharonTwiddy Steve Edwards Mary Kolliner and Karen

Gresham

CWHF has established an endowment with the North Carolina Community
Foundation

The fifth annual Wild Horse Days is set for July 89 and 10

CWHF has created the Dale Burrus Fund to honor the memory of the late Dale
Burrus of Hatteras Mr Burrus was asenior inspector of the Spanish Mustang
Registry and along with his father did extensive research on the history of the

wild horses

A second mission related Museum Store was officially opened on March 14and

will provide additional employment for a minimum of six people

CWHF is participating in a paid student summer intern program with Currituck

High School

6



Thanks to Currituck County a prominent sign similar to those used by
Assateague National Seashore is now located at the entrance to the north beach

ramp The sign reads Do Not Approach Touch or Feed Horses Citations Will
Be Issued

Respectfully submitted

Karen McCalpin
Executive Director

7



CURRITUCK COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

2008-2009 OCEAN RESCUE SERVICE CONTRACT 
 

 
THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this _______ day of March 2008 

by and between the County of Currituck, a body corporate and politic existing under the 
laws of the State of North Carolina (the “COUNTY”), and Corolla Fire and  Rescue, 
Inc., a non-profit corporation organized pursuant to Chapter 55A of the North Carolina 
General Statutes and existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina, hereinafter 
referred to as “CONTRACTOR”: 
 

WITNESSETH 
 

WHEREAS, the COUNTY deems it in the public interest and as a provision for public safety 
and welfare to furnish the ocean lifeguard and water rescue services at certain public beach access points. 
 

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR is in the business of providing ocean lifeguard services and 
furnishing beach rescue services and desires to contract with the COUNTY for such purposes; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, by and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein 
contained, the parties do covenant to and with each other as follows: 
 

1. That beginning as of April 1, 2008, the CONTRACTOR shall provide and 
perform for the COUNTY the services described in the contract 
specifications for beach services attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and 
incorporated as part of this Agreement as if fully set forth verbatim 
herein. 

 
 

2. That all personnel furnished by the CONTRACTOR shall be employees of the 
CONTRACTOR, and the CONTRACTOR shall pay all salaries and 
expenses of, and all federal social security taxes, federal and state 
unemployment taxes, and any similar payroll taxes relating to such 
employees, and will carry workmen’s compensation insurance for such 
employees in the amounts set out herein.  The CONTRACTOR shall be 
considered for all purposes hereunder as an independent 
CONTRACTOR, and shall not at any time directly or indirectly act as 
an agent, servant or employee of the COUNTY, or make any 
commitment or incur any liabilities on behalf of the COUNTY without 
its express written consent. 

3. The CONTRACTOR shall provide the insurance coverage with limits not less 
than those set forth below and deliver to the COUNTY certificates of 
insurance upon request: 

  

8



   a. Comprehensive Liability Bodily injury for which the CONTRACTOR is 
responsible of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence.  Property damage for which the 
CONTRACTOR is responsible of $2,000,000.00. 

 b.  Workmen's Compensation Coverage $100,000.00 to cover claims of the 
CONTRACTOR'S employees. 

 
  4. The CONTRACTOR shall provide all proper safeguards and shall assume all 

risks incurred in performing its services hereunder. 
 
  5. A copy of the CONTRACTOR'S operational rules and regulations along with a 

statement of the CONTRACTOR'S chain of command shall be filed with the Chief of 
Emergency Medical Services. 

 
  6. Without limiting the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR for the proper 

conduct of its personnel and the performance of the contract and service, the conduct of  
the personnel hereunder is to be guided by rules and regulations as agreed upon from  time 
to time between the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR and such additional special 
written instructions as may be issued by the COUNTY to the CONTRACTOR from time 
to time through its designated agent.  

 
  7. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for the direct supervision of its, personnel 

through its designated representative and such representative will, in turn, be available at 
all reasonable times to report and confer with the designated agents of the COUNTY with 
respect to services rendered. 

 
   8. The CONTRACTOR covenants and agrees with COUNTY as follows: 
 

 a. That the services to be provided hereunder shall be performed by 
qualified, careful and efficient employees in strict conformity with the best 
practices and highest applicable standards, and that it will remove from service 
any of its employees who in the sole opinion of COUNTY and the 
CONTRACTOR are guilty of improper conduct or are not qualified to perform 
the work assigned to them. 

 
 b. That any and all supplies and materials necessary to perform the 

services provided herein shall be without cost to the COUNTY except as 
otherwise provided within this agreement.  

 
 c.  That all EMS services provided by the CONTRACTOR shall be under 

the COUNTY EMS  provider number. 
 
 d.  That all EMS services provided by the CONTRACTOR will follow all 

COUNTY EMS protocol. 
 
 
  9. It is agreed by the parties hereto that all changes mutually agreed upon shall be 

in writing and signed by the parties of the Contract.  Any agreements not signed as 
heretofore indicated shall be considered null and void. 

 

9



 10. This Agreement shall continue in effect until and including December 31, 2009 
unless sooner terminated by either party upon giving thirty (30) days written notice by 
registered mail addressed to the other party.  Upon mutual agreement of the parties 
hereto and agreement as to price and other terms, the contract may be renewed at the end 
of the term hereof for an additional term of one year.  Nothing herein contained, however, 
shall be construed to prohibit or in any way limit the choice of the COUNTY to request 
new bid proposals for the services to be performed at the end of the term  

 hereof. 
 

 11. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement and understanding between the 
COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR.  There are no oral understandings, terms or 
conditions, and neither have relied upon any representation, express or implied, not 
contained in this Agreement. 

 
12. In exchange for performance of services hereunder the COUNTY shall make 

payment to the CONTRACTOR for services rendered hereunder as follows:  2008- 
$540, 960.00 (FIVE HUNDRED FORTY THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED SIXTY 
AND 00/100 DOLLARS) AND 2009- $584,664.00 (FIVE HUNDRED EIGHTY-
FOUR THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED SIXTY-FOUR AND 00/100 DOLLARS.) 

a. Each billing will be submitted on or before the 4th day of the month.  In no 
event shall advance payments be made for work to be performed.  In the 
event the COUNTY should desire a change in the services performed or in 
the areas subject to this Agreement (see Addendum "A"), it shall notify the 
CONTRACTOR in writing.  Any additional services or changes in areas to 
be services requested by COUNTY shall be subject to negotiation between 
the parties.  Nothing herein contained shall be construed to prohibit in any 
way limit the obligation of COUNTY to request new bid proposals for any 
requested changes in the services to be performed, the areas subject to this 
Agreement and the billing rate if required by law to do so. 

 
13. During the months of May to October, a weekly meeting between authorized 

representatives of the CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY, is required as a part of 
this Contract to review compliance with the terms herein. During the months of 
November to April, a monthly meeting is required as a part of this Contract to 
review compliance with the terms herein. 

10



 
                         IN WITNESS WHEREOF both parties have set their hands and seal and have caused 
this Agreement to be executed as of the first above written in duplicate originals, one of which is retained 
by each of  the parties hereto. 
                                                                           CURRITUCK COUNTY  
 
 

By: ___________________________ 
ATI'EST: 
 
 
________________________ 
Clerk to the Board 
                                                                                                                             CONTRACTOR 
 
 

By:   ______________________________ 
       President, Corolla Fire and Rescue, Inc.  
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
    

11



(A-1) 
Addendum A- General Requirements 

 
 

1 . Ocean lifeguard and beach rescue services shall include, but is not limited to, close 
observation of surf and swimmers with the primary intent to prevent accidents, injuries, or death; 
warnings of identified hazards or hazardous conditions; posting of red flags during periods of adverse surf 
conditions; providing public information and assistance to the public including lost persons. 
 

2. The CONTRACTOR shall provide fifteen lifeguard stations in 2008 and sixteen 
lifeguard stations in 2009, at the locations specified below which are the stations designated by the 
COUNTY as its sole responsibility insofar as public beach access points are concerned and the most 
populated areas of the beach as designated by the CONTRACTOR at such locations where the highest 
beach popluations ane/ or most poetntially problematic areas dictate.  The CONTRACTOR'S principle 
obligation is to the specified locations, any response outside the specified locations is at the sole discretion 
of the CONTRACTOR.  Each ocean lifeguard location provided for in this Agreement shall be manned 
by an approved and certified ocean lifeguard.   

 
 REGION A: Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing the North 

Beach Access Ramp at Ocean Hill 
 
 REGION B: Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing the 

Lighthouse Ramp 
 
 REGION C: Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing Shad 

Street and the Corolla Light Pool Deck 
 
 REGION D: Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing Sturgeon 

Street 
 
 REGION E: Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing Herring 

Street 
 
 REGION F: Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing Bonito 

Street 
 
 REGION G: Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing Sailfish 

Street 
 
 REGION H: Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing Buck 

Island Public Access 
 

                       REGION I: Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing Crown 
Point 

 
                        REGION J: Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing Section P 

of Ocean Sands 
 

12



            REGION K: Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing Section 
O of Ocean Sands 

 
                        REGION L: Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing Section F 

of Ocean Sands 
 
            REGION M: Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing Section 

D of Ocean Sands 
 
            REGION N: Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing the 

Currituck Public Bathhouse access 
 
            REGION O:   Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing the Pine 

Island Hampton Inn Beach Access 
 
           REGION P:  Approximately a one hundred yard area encompassing Section 

B of Ocean Sands. This stand will be added in 2009. 
 
3. The CONTRACTOR shall provide no less than six roving patrols in 2008 and no less 

than seven roving patrols in 2009, encompassing regions of the Currictuck South Beach that the 
CONTRACTOR deems most strategically advantageous to ensuring the safest beach environment 
possible.  The CONTRACTOR'S principle obligation is to the specified areas, any response outside the 
specified areas is at the sole discretion of the CONTRACTOR.  Each ocean lifeguard provided for in this 
Agreement shall be an approved and certified ocean lifeguard. 
 
 

4. Ocean lifeguards shall meet or exceed the following qualifications: 
 

a.  be at least 18 years of age 
b.      shall have successfully completed ocean rescue and ocean lifeguard training 

programs conducted by CONTRACTOR and shall meet and maintain minimum 
physical qualifications for running, swimming and general fitness as determined 
by standard test.  

c.       have corrected vision of 20/20 and uncorrected vision of at least 20/80, and 
normal hearing 

 
5. The ocean lifeguard station and ocean lifeguard shall be equipped with the following 

equipment: 
 

a.   fixed ocean lifeguard stands at each position at least ten feet in height 
whereby establishing the lifeguard in a sitting position twelve feet in 
height. 

b.                    law enforcement grade whistle audible for at least 300 feet. 
c.                    hand held communications equipment approved by Currituck County. 
d.                    face mask and surgical gloves. 
e.                    information board attached to stand. 
f.                        approved recognized, unique uniform with “Corolla Ocean Rescue” 

lettered on back. 
g.                    binoculars. 

13



h.                    rescue buoy or paddle board. 
i.                        swim fins. 
 

6. The CONTRACTOR agrees to perform all work outlined in this Agreement in such a 
manner as to meet all accepted standards for safe practices, and further agrees to accept the sole 
responsibility for complying with all federal, State, County, or other legal requirements including, but not 
limited to, full compliance of the terms of the applicable O.S.H.A. regulations so as to protect all persons, 
including CONTRACTOR'S employees, agents of the County, vendors, members of the public, or others 
from foreseeable injury, or damage to their property. 
 

7. The CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient personnel to perform all work in 
accordance with the specifications set forth herein. 
 

8. The CONTRACTOR shall operate daily on one of three levels during the regular season: 
Alpha level, Bravo level, and Charlie level. Alpha level shall be the default level and will be difined as all 
lifeguard stands and roving patrol positions occupied. Bravo level will be defined as only roving patrol 
positions occupied; towers will be unmanned as a result of inclimate weather. Charlie level will be defined 
as Ocean Rescue available by pageout only due to extremely hazardous or inclimate weather or beach 
conditions. The CONTRACTOR shall make the COUNTY aware of its operating level through Currituck 
County Dispatch.  

 

14



(B-1) 
ADDENDUM B: SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS 

 
1 . The CONTRACTOR shall designate one person to supervise, direct, and uphold the 

expectations set forth in this agreement. That person shall have the title of Division Chief. The Deivision 
Chief  (or qualified designee thereof) shall operate out of a Mobile Ocean Lifeguard Response Unit, 
which shall patrol the beach, support any rescue, search or medical emergency and have frst line 
supervision of services provided. The individual designated as the Division Chief shall meet the following 
qualifications: 

a. Must be at least 21 years of age 
b. Must have five years experience as an ocean lifeguard, three of which should be 

with the CONTRACTOR 
c. Should possess idetified leadership experience.  
d. Shall also meet the requiements of lifeguards as set out in item one of the 

agreement.  
e. Should hold a current NC EMT-I or higher certification.  
f. Must be competent and licensed operator of vehicles 
g. Must be well-versed in ocean and sound rescue, beach conditions, coordination 

of activities, communication and public relations. 
 

2. Each ocean lifeguard station shall be equipped and manned during the hours of 
9:30 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. each day of the week from the Saturday prior to 
Memorial Day extending through and including Labor Day 

3. Each roving patrol shall be equipped and operating during the hours of 9:30 a.m. 
to 5:30 p.m. weather permitting, each day of the week beginning the 
Saturday prior to Memorial Day extending through and including Labor 
Day, with no less than six roving patrols to continue through the third 
weekend of October. The CONTRACTOR will continue to provide 
page-out response for the remainder of the year.  

4. After August 15th, manned hours may decrease by as much as one half until the 
Monday following Labor Day.  

5. All vehicles on the beach shall have additional first aid supplies, 
communications, emergency lights and siren, binoculars, portable 
oxygen tank, backboard, and will be marked with “COROLLA OCEAN 
RESCUE.”  

6. All vehicles shall be equipped with paddleboards or other comparable water 
vessel capable of ocean or sound launching. Each supervisor shall be 
experienced in its launching and operations and be able to train any 
employy on the proper procedure of such.  

7. The primary function of the CONTRACTOR under this Agreement is to provide 
ocean lifeguard, beach, and sound rescue services related to the beach 
and sound  and members of the public utilizing all water accesses for 
swimming, sunning, walking, and other  purposes.  Any  emergency 
activities of the sheriff, fire, EMS or emergency services other than 
beach rescue shall be performed in accordance with the rules and 
regulations in effect between the sheriff,  fire and EMS departments of 
Currituck County and CONTRACTOR shall have no primary 
responsibility for such additional duties. 

15



8. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for providing, locating, and maintaining all 
required communications equipment.  Communications equipment shall 
have the capability to monitor the Currituck County Fire and EMS 
frequency.  Other communications shall be carried on 
CONTRACTOR'S frequency and on telephone lines or cell phones. The  
CONTRACTOR shall respond when dispatched by Currituck Central. 

9. CURRITUCK COUNTY shall have the right to publicize and notify the general 
public of those areas which are subject matter of this Agreement and 
those areas where such service is provided for the benefit of the public. 

10. All other costs relating to providing this service for the COUNTY shall 
be included in the total cost.  All equipment shall be kept in good 
running order in order that the CONTRACTOR can fulfill the terms of 
this Agreement.  The CONTRACTOR shall keep the same flag and 
poster warning system, continue to keep the beach access areas where 
stands are located cleaned in the morning and afternoon.   Uniforms and 
stands shall be plainly visible and marked accordingly.  Each guard shall 
be in clean uniforms and groomed accordingly.  

11. CONTRACTOR covenants and agrees that it shall put into service the following 
 equipment, which equipment shall be wholly owned by the CONTRACTOR: 

 
• Two reliable water craft capable of surf launching. 
• ATV 4-wheelers to accommodate this contract 
• Portable radios to accommodate this contract 
• Two reliable 4-wheel drive trucks. 
• One reliable sound rescue boat. 
• One emergency transport utility vehicle to accommodate paitent removal off the 

beach.   
 
 12.  The CONTRACTOR agrees that should it default in the performance of this 
Agreement (i.e. providing life guard service at the designated areas and times for a period of 48 
continuous hours, except as prohibited from providing this service by weather conditions or other acts of 
God, or in providing the other non-seasonal services required by this Agreement), then and in that event 
the COUNTY may terminate this agreement, at the discretion of the Board of Commissioners. 

 13. CONTRACTOR shall, upon request, submit to the COUNTY reports regarding 
beach population counts, activity summaries, operation reports and incident reports through the Currituck 
County Director if Emergency Services or his designee. 

 14.  The CONTRACTOR shall provide the COUNTY with a feasible and workable 
plan of communications, it being necessary  the COUNTY be able to contact the CONTRACTOR at all 
times. 

 15.  All complaints, submitted to the CONTRACTOR from the COUNTY, shall be 
remedied within a reasonable time span, to be dictated by the Director of Emergency Services. 
 

 16.  The CONTRACTOR shall provide rescue services to all adjacent areas in the 
Currituck Sound. 

 17.  The CONTRACTOR shall provide a response to any beach emergency 
occurring during the off-hours year-round. 

 18. The CONTRACTOR shall provide  mutual aid response when requested. 
 

16



19. The CONTRACTOR shall provide and install galvanized steel flag poles at 1/3 mile 
intervals from the Norht beach Ramp to the Virginia line from which  red ‘no swimming’ 
flags will be flown and visible from all along the beach as dictated by beach conditions.  An 
additional red flag would be flown from the Carova Beach Fire Station.   

 
 20. The CONTRACTOR shall provide patrols on the North Beach with three roving 
lifeguards beginning the Saturday prior to Memorial Day weekend and extending through Labor Day 
weekend.  One lifeguard will be a NC EMT in an EMT Basic licensed emergency vehicle.  This 
emergency vehicle would be outfitted with a light bar, siren, mobile radion, basic EMS supplies, 
backboard, difibrillator, oxygen, etc.  This response vehicle, if available, would also first respond to all 
EMS calls on the North Beaches, if not already on an Ocean Rescue call.  The second and third patrols 
would continue to monitor the beach. All communication will be in plain language as per NIMS/ ICS.  
 

17



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-3055 

FAX 252-232-3026 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Planning Board 
 
From: Planning Department 
 
Date: February 29, 2008 
 
Re:  PB 08-10 Electronically Controlled Message Signs 
 
 
 
The Board of Commissioners has directed staff to review the signage requirements in 
the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) to define and clarify electronically controlled 
message signs.  Please find attached an amendment that further defines the operation 
of electronically controlled message signs, including the requirement that text or 
graphics remain stationary for a minimum of five seconds. This amendment will not 
apply to the Outer Banks Overlay District.  
 
Additionally, the UDO is not clear with regard to how vehicles can be used for 
advertising.  The attached amendment also includes language that clarifies to what 
extent vehicles and/or trailers may be used for advertising purposes.  
 
What follows are the minutes from the February 12 Planning Board meeting and a draft 
of the text amendment as described above.  The Planning Board recommended 
unanimous approval with the condition that the electronically controlled message signs 
only change messages once per 30 seconds. 
 
Should you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact Ben Woody at 232-6029. 

18



 

 
 

Planning Board Meeting – February 12, 2008 
 
DISCUSSION 
The Planning Board discussed the location of the County sign, animated signs, and 
message signs. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that currently electronically controlled message signs can change 
only once per hour per the UDO. The County is asking for the message to change every 
five seconds. This would pertain only to the Mainland. Time and temperature is exempt. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. West motion to recommend approval of the Currituck County Text Amendment for 
Electronically Controlled Message Sign to the Unified Development Ordinance but the 
message to change every 30 seconds. Mr. Keel seconded the motion. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
 
 

19



 

 
 

Electronically Controlled Message Signs 
PB 08-10 

Currituck County 
UDO Amendment Requst 

 
An amendment to Chapter 4: Overlay Districts, Chapter 7: Signs, and Chapter 17: 
Definitions. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North 
Carolina that the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be 
amended as follows: 
 
Item 1: That Chapter 7 Signs is amended by rewriting the following sections:   
 
Section 7.2 Signs Excluded from Regulation 
 

A. Signs erected by, or on behalf of, or pursuant to, the authorization of a governmental 
body, including legal notices, identification and informational signs that identify public 
property or convey public information, and traffic, directional or regulatory signs. 

 
Section 7.4.2 On-Premise Sign Additional Requirements 
 

A. No more than 50 percent of the area of a sign can be a message board, reader 
board or electronically controlled message sign. The message must remain 
stationary for a minimum of five seconds cannot change more than one time per 
hour, except for time and temperature. 

 
Section 7.7 Miscellaneous Restrictions and Prohibitions 
 

C. Signs that revolve or are animated or that utilize movement or apparent 
movement to attract attention of the public are prohibited (with the exception of 
message boards, and reader boards, and electronically controlled message signs 
subject to the regulations in this chapter). Without limiting the foregoing; banners, 
streamers, animated display boards, pennants, and propellers are prohibited but 
signs that only move occasionally because of wind are not prohibited if their 
movement: 

 
1. Is not a primary design feature of the sign; 

 
2. Is not intended to attract attention to the sign.   

 
The restriction of this subsection shall not apply to signs specified in Section 7.2 
(C) or (D) or to signs indicating the time, date or weather conditions and other 
such signs as specifically provided in these regulations, such as temporary signs 
and message board, reader board, and electronically controlled message signs.  

 

20



 

 
 

 
Item 2: That Section 7.7 Miscellaneous Restrictions and Prohibitions is amended by 

adding the following subsection: 
 

I. Signs on vehicles and trailers that are parked in a location which is visible to the 
public and for a period of time which indicates that the principal use of the vehicle 
is for advertising rather than transport. 

 
 
Item 3: That Chapter 17 Definitions is amended by adding the following underlined 
language:  
 
Sign, Animated  
Any sign which flashes, revolves, rotates, or swings by mechanical means or which 
uses a change of lighting to depict action or to create a special effect or scene. 
 
Sign, Electronically Controlled Message 
A sign on which the copy changes automatically on a lampbank, such that the message 
or display does not run continuously in the travel mode, and any message or display 
remains stationary for a minimum of five seconds. Any sign on which the message or 
display runs continuously in the travel mode and/or on which any message or display 
does not remain stationary for a minimum five seconds shall be considered an animated 
sign. 
 
Item 3: That Section 4.7.4.5 Prohibited Signs is amended by adding the following 
subsection: 
 

T. Signs on vehicles and trailers that are parked in a location which is visible to the 
public and for a period of time which indicates that the principal use of the vehicle 
is for advertising rather than transport. 

 
 
Item 4: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or 
any sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North 
Carolina by any court of competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21



 

 
 

Item 5: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day 
of    , 200 . 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    
 

 

22



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-6029 

FAX 252-232-3026 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Ben E. Woody, AICP 
 Planning Director 
 
Date: March 7, 2008 
 
Re:  PB 07-16 Weeping Radish Farm Brewery 
 
 
 
On April 2, 2007 the Board of Commissioners approved a Special Use Permit for 
outdoor special events at the Weeping Radish Brewery property.  The scope of the 
original approval included festivals and events to last for more than one day of duration 
outside of an enclosed building.  As part of the approval, the Board requested the 
Special Use Permit be reviewed within one year.   
 
Attached please find the conditions of the Special Use Permit and a site plan. 
 
Should you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me at 232-6029. 
 

23



 

PB 07-16 
Weeping Radish Special Use Permit 

Page 2 of 3 

 SPECIAL USE PERMIT REVIEW 
PB 07-16 Weeping Radish Farm Brewery 

 
1. The applicant shall notify the following departments in writing sixty (60) days 

prior to individual events or provide an annual schedule of events: Planning and 
Inspections, Emergency Services, Albemarle Regional Health Department, 
Currituck Sheriff’s Department, and the Fire Prevention office (Fire Marshal).  

2. Failure to notify these departments of a scheduled event will result in the 
immediate suspension of the use permit until it can be review at a scheduled 
Board of Commissioners meeting. 

3. A noise permit issued by the Sheriff’s Department shall be acquired prior to the 
event for any outdoor amplified sound. 

4. No vehicles shall be parked within the right-of-way of Caratoke Highway, or 
within 20 feet of any adjoining property line in spaces that are not previously 
approved as part of the Weeping Radish Brewery operations. 

5. A zoning permit shall be obtained for any on-premise signage.  No sign 
advertising the event shall exceed the allowances of the Currituck County 
Unified Development Ordinance. 

6. Portable toilets shall be provided per the requirements of the Health Department.  
A copy of the contract for the portable toilets with NC registered sewage pumper 
shall be submitted to the Department of Planning and Inspections one week 
prior to the event. 

7. All vendors serving food shall receive permits from the Albemarle Regional 
Health Services 30 days prior to individual events.  A list of the food vendors and 
copies of their permits shall be submitted by 25 days before individual events, to 
the Department of Planning and Inspections. 

8. Any tents used for events will require a tent permit issued by the Department of 
Planning and Inspections. The tents shall be inspected by the Fire Marshall.  
The applicant shall be responsible for scheduling this inspection with the Fire 
Marshall. 

9. Any arenas, bleachers, tents or other structures for the event shall be permitted 
and inspected 24 hours prior to the event commencing.  The applicant shall be 
responsible for scheduling this inspection with the Inspections division.  

10. All items associated with the event (tents, bleachers, litter, port-a-johns, etc.) 
shall be removed from the event site within three (3) days of the end of the 
event. 

11. There shall be no fireworks used at this event that do not receive the prior, 
written approval of the Fire Marshal. 

12. Upon a determination of need by the Sheriff and EMS director, Law 
Enforcement, EMS and a fire truck shall be scheduled to be on-site for each 
event and the NC Highway Patrol notified or contracted to provide traffic control. 

24



 

PB 07-16 
Weeping Radish Special Use Permit 

Page 3 of 3 

13. Provide proof of Liability Insurance on an annual basis or individual events as 
applicable. 

14. The applicant shall demonstrate compliance with the above stated conditions no 
less than 15 days prior to any event. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

25



fe

NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT

Nominating Committee

Rodney Sawyer
Elaine Goodwin

Bill Brumsey IV

Susan Davis

Nominee For Officers
Chairman

ViceChair

2nd ViceChair

Treasurer

Outgoing Directors

1 Susan Davis

2 John Wilson

3 askfor secondterm

4 askfor second term

S askfor second term

6 askfor second term

Nominees For Directors

Barbara Smith

Jeanne Meiggs

Marion Thorn

Gary Springer
Bill Richardson

Travis Morris

To be approved by Currituck County Commissioners

7

Created22407 WHCNOMINATINGCOMM2008 Updated
H Bell Sheet1 3122008

26



20072008

Whaehead Preservation Trust

Board of Directors
Officers

Horace Bell Chairman Home 2522323310
122 Carotauk Drive cell 2524557640

Currituck NC 27929 work 7574942089

fax
Term expires March 2010 Email hbellcrmchsicom

Elaine Goodwin Vice Chair
153 Waters Edge Drive
Kill Devil Hills NC 27948

Term expires March 2009

Home 2524800435

cell 2523052539

work 2524419200 Ext 26

fax 2524415117

Email Elainecrkittyhawksportscom

Charles Hardy 2d Vice Chair Home 2522553066
7 Fern Lane cell 2522021586
Southern Shores NC 27949 work 2524912353

fax 2524915383
Term expires March 2009 Email hardywheatoncraolcom

Kimberlee Hoey Treasurer
2245 Sandfiddler Road
Corolla NC 27927

Term expires March 2010

Home 2524530705

cell 7329916255

work
fax 2524530731

Email Kkimbruleaaaolcom

Members Alphabetically
Josh Bass Home 252 4352859
196 Mariners Way cell 7576814746

Moyock NC 27958 work 7573019857 only certain days
fax

Term expires March 2010 Email jbass williamewoodcom

Ernie Bowden Home 2524533940
2155 Sandfiddler Road cell
Corolla NC 27927 work

fax
Permanent Term Commissioner Rep Email

Last revision 10102007 vls

27



William Brumsey IV Home 2522321486

2883 Caratoke Hwy cell 2522072035

Currituck NC 27929 work
fax 2522323038

2009 filling unexpiredires MarchTerm ex Email wbrumsey4 a brumseylawcomp
term of Louis Davis

Susan Davis Home 7574301096

1000 Sand Oval Drive cell
Virginia Beach VA 23454 work

fax f

Term expires March 2008 Email wdavis176crcoxnet V

Allen Ives Home 2529850024

1701 Sunset Avenue cell 9043310

Suite 506 work 2524429700

Rocky Mount NC 27804 fax
Term expires March 2010 Email allenivescrearthlinknet

Carol Molloy Home 2524299264

160 Lands End Road cell 7577188993

Knotts Island NC 27950 work
fax

Term expires March 2010 Email kimolloyacoxnet

Tommy Moore Home 2522323044

PO Box 104 cell 2524557100

Moyock NC 27958 work 2524536331

fax 2524352513

Term expires March 2010 Email stm cr bankofcurrituckcom

Travis Morris Home 2524538484

PO Box 66 cell 2523335814

Coinjock NC 27923 work 2524532371

fax 2524539363

Term expires March 2008 Email currealt intehportcom

Andy Newbern Home 2524915330

7026 Caratoke Hwy cell 2522021578

Jarvisburg NC 27947 work
fax

Term expires March 2010 Email

Last revision 10102007 vls

28



Bill Richardson Home 2524532265

6076 Caratoke Hwy cell
Poplar Branch NC 27965 work

fax
Term expires March 2008 Email sbrichardson maccom

Rodney Sawyer Home 2524532993

POBox 10 cell 2523397884

Currituck NC 27929 work 2522322261

fax 2522323290

Term expires March 2009 Email rodneysawyer@ncsuedu

Barbara Snowden

PO Box 134

Currituck NC 27929

Term expires March 2009

Home 2522322311

cell 2526196991

work
fax
Email BarbaraBSnowdenaearthlinknet

Home 2524533414

cell 2529826331

work 2524539942

fax 2524534369

Term expires March 2008 filling unexpired Email garaouterbanksstylecom
term of Sandra JordanLeigh

Gary Springer
1246 Lakeside Drive

Corolla NC 27927

J

Marion Thorn Home 2524356323

PO Box 430 cell 7576304196

Moyock NC 27958 work 7574362337

fax 2524356050
Term explres March 2008 Email marlonthorn@earthhnknet V

Sharon Twiddy Home 2522613142

PO Box 2085 cell 2522021588

Kitty Hawk NC 27949 work
fax

Term expires March 2009 Email stwiddcrcharternet

Frances P Walker Home 2522322954

2151 Caratoke Hwy cell
Moyock NC 27958 work 2522323518

fax
Term expires March 2010 Email peckbasket2crearthlinknet

wwwpeckbasketcom

Last revision 10102007 vls

29



GY7l

APPLICATION FOR ADVISORY BOARDS COMMITTEES

Date L C7U

Name v tv1

Address I p 1 Z kC tj 1 x 7 S

Phone 2CGU 5 lit Zc1

Boards or Committees on which you would like to serve

Please check

ABC Board

Agricultural Advisory Board

Airport Advisory Authority
Board ofAdjustment
Economic Development Board

Game Commission

Jury Commission

Land Transfer Tax Appeals Board

Library Board

Nursing Home Advisory Committee

Planning Board

Recreation Advisory Board

Senior Citizens Advisory Board

Social Services Board

Tourism Advisory Board

Whalehead Preservation Trust

Workforce Development Board

Qualifications and reasons you would like to serve

1 Gv uLLt 2 G S 1sY 2 G ia1 T z c

Please return to County Managers Office

PO Box 39

Currituck NC 27929

Revised 12132006

30



LG7Zt

APPLICATION FOR ADVISORY BOARDS COMMITTEES

Date 0

Name aar 1c eGs

Address 1 3 Vr lQ a O d X o g

Phone Sz S 3 f O

Boards or Committeeson which you would like to serve

Please check

ABC Board

Agricultural Advisory Board

Airport Advisory Authority
Board ofAdjustment
Economic Development Board
Game Commission

Jury Commission

Land Transfer Tax Appeals Board

Library Board

Qualifications and reasons you would like to serve

Nursing Home Advisory Committee

Planning Board

Recreation Advisory Board

Senior Citizens Advisory Board

Social Services Board

Tourism Advisory Boazd

JWhalehead Preservation Trust

Workforce Development Board

C mA 8aard

32 Ups

eX2revceJ Vfy inycd ad Sp crie c

rrvi py Y1 i rc nmva IU VcS2yatiayt W2v c

SerJa rrlDUrit12riCcnrnvpys improW

Please return to County Managers Office
PO Box 39

Cumtuck NC 27929

Revised1J132006

31



A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF CURRITUCK NORTH CAROLINA

ESTABLISHING A TOURISM ADVISORY BOARD

Section 1 Advisory Board Established There is hereby established a County of
Currituck Tourism Advisory Board

Section 2 Duties of the Advisory Board The duties of the Tourism Advisory Board

are to serve as the advisory body and to suggest policies to the Tourism

Development Authority the County Manager and the Department of

Travel and Tourism within its powers and responsibilities as stated in this
resolution The Advisory Board shall serve as a liaison to the County and
its citizens The Advisory Board shall consult with and advise the Tourism
Development Authority the County Manager and the Department of
Travel and Tourism in matters affecting tourism

a the creation of a yearly County marketing plan
b the allocation of County occupancy tax to promote travel and

tourism

c the acceptance of any grant gift bequest or donation any
personal or real property offered or made available for tourism

purposes and which is judged to be of present or possible future
use for tourism Any gift bequest of money or other property any

grant devise of real or personal property so acquired shall be held

by the County of Currituck and finally disposed of in accordance

with the terms under which such grant gift or devise is made and

accepted
d the construction equipping operation and maintenance of visitor

centers and any other buildings and structures necessary or

useful to department function and will advise in regard to other

tourism facilities which are owned or controlled by the Board of

Commissioners or leased or loaned to the County
e the recommendation of tourism events including selection

participation advertising and other components of the Travel and

Tourism Departments interaction with tourism related events

Section 3 Member Composition Appointment and Terms of Office The Tourism
Advisory Board shall be made up of seven 7 members appointed by the
Tourism Development Authority Each voting member must be a resident
of Currituck County The County Manager or his designee the Travel
and Tourism Director and the Marketing Coordinator shall be permanent
nonvoting members of the Advisory Board The Tourism Development
Authority shall appoint a member from the Authority to serve as a non

voting representative to the Advisory Board

Initial appointments shall be arranged so that approximately onethird of
the terms will expire each year except for the representative from the
Tourism Development Authority whose term shall be concurrent with their
term of office All terms will begin as of the first Board of Commissioners
meeting in October of the year appointed unless the appointment is to fill
the unexpired term of a vacant position in which case the appointment
would be effective immediately

32



After the initial appointments each future appointed member will be

appointed for athreeyear term and shall hold their office until their

successors are appointed and qualified

No member shall be allowed to serve for more than two consecutive
terms unless extended by the Board of Commissioners due to

extenuating circumstances

Section 4 Officers Adoption of Rules Meetings The Tourism Advisory Board shall

select from its membership its officers each year at its November

meeting The officers shall include a Chairman and ViceChairman The

Chairman or ViceChairman shall conduct the orderly business of the

Advisory Board The Travel and Tourism Director shall be the Secretary
and shall take minutes and cause the minutes to be printed and made
available to the Tourism Development Authority County Manager and

members of the Tourism Advisory Board following each meeting

The Advisory Board may adopt rules and regulations covering its

meetings as deemed necessary to conduct orderly business

A quorum will be necessary to conduct official business A simple
majority of those present will be required to adopt resolutions

The Tourism Advisory Board will meet at least quarterly four times
during the year unless the Chairman declares the meeting cancelled for
lack of business The regular meetings will be held at7AA
500 pm on the second Monday of following months February May
August and November The Board may amend this meeting schedule

The meetings will be held

eer at advertised locations within Currituck County

Members who miss two consecutive meetings in a calendar year may be

removed from the Advisory Board by the Tourism Development Authority

Section 5 Compensation The voting members of the Tourism Advisory Board shall

be paid the sum of 5000 per meeting Members shall be reimbursed for

approved travel and subsistence in compliance with the general policies
of the County subject to the availability of funds

Section 6 Effective Date This resolution shall be effective upon its adoption

ADOPTED this the 17th day of March 2008

ATTEST Barry Nelms Chairman

Board of Commissioners
Gwen H Keene CMC
Clerk to the Board

33



R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, 
North Carolina during its regularly scheduled meeting held 
on March 17, 2008 authorized the following, pursuant to GS 
160A and 270(b), that the property listed below, be declared 
surplus and disposed of: 

 
 
Asset Tag Description Serial Number

1947 1988 Roger's Trailer 36642

  
  

ADOPTED, this 17th day of March, 2008. 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Barry Nelms 
Currituck County Board of      
Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Gwen H. Keene, CMC 

34



Clerk to the Board 

35



PHONE 2522322223
C Michael Warren FAX2522323655
Superintendent The Knapp Teacherage COURIER 106903

CurrituckCounty Schools

MEMO

TO Sandra Hill

FROM Kelly McClellan
4

DATE February 20 2008

SUBJECT Change orders for Jarvisburg Elementary

Sandra

Attached you will find change orders for Jarvisburg Elementary These include the following changeorders

Change order 3 to RPC Contracting
Change order 5 to Blueridge General

Change order 3 toBMContracting
Change order 2 to ZBZ Associates

Sandra please let meknow if you have any questions or need additional information

Thanks
Kelly

2958 Caratoke Highway Currituck North Carolina 27929

36



IAHN
Since 927

CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT
DIVISION

MB Kahn Construction Co Inc
POBOX 1179 COLUMBIA SC 29202 803 7362950 FAX 803 7369501 wwwmbkahncom

January 29 2008

Currituck Count Board of Education
2958 Caratoke Highway
Currituck NC 27929

Attn Mr Bruce MacDonald

Ref Jarvisburg Elementary School
Sitework Contract
Contract Change Order No 3

Dear Bruce

As a result of previously approved Change Orders on Jarvisburg Elementary School
attached herewith are 6 copies of Change Order No 3 to RPC Contracting Inc

The purpose of these changes are

1 Revisions to Entrance Drive and Parent Drop Off Loop per NCDOT requirements
per revised plans dated 101807

2 Add right turn lane and overlay at Forbes Road and US 158 per Quibble
Associates drawings dated4407

In summary both proposals have been reviewed and recommended by the Engineer of
Record to be accepted and incorporated into this contract The total of this change
reflects a net add of5165400 to RPC Contracting Inc contract

We therefore recommend that the owner accept and execute this modification Please

return 3 fully executed copies for our file and distribution

Please let me know if I can be of any further assistance

r

Sincerely

Buddy Sivils
MB Kahn Construction Company Inc

COLUMBIA SC GREENVILLE SC 1 ATLANTA GA
37



CHANGE ORDER
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT EDITION

PROJECT

New Jarvisburg Elementary School

Jarvisburg North Carolina

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 3

INITIATION DATE January 16 2007

ARCHITECTSPROJECT NO 06611

TO RPC Contracting Inc CMSPROJECT NO 6069
PO Box 333

Kitty Hawk North Carolina 27949 CONTRACT FOR Sitework

CONTRACT DATE January 17 2007

You are directed to make the following changes in this Contract
1 Revisions to Entrance Drive and Parent Drop OffLoop per NCDOT

recommendations and revised plans dated 101807 ADD 1231200
2 Add Turn Lane and Overlay at Forbes Road SR 1118 and US 158

per Quible Associates plan dated4407 ADD 3934200

Total This Change ADD 5165400

Not valid until signed by the Owner the Architect and the Construction Manager
Signature of the Contractor indicates agreement herewith including any adjustment in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time

The original Contract Sum was 121794000
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders 1499000
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 123293000
The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order 5165400
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be 128458400
The Contract Time will be unchanged by 0 Days
The Date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is

Recommended Approved
M B Kahn Construction Company Inc Walter Robbs Callahan Pierce Architects PA
Construction Manager Architect

PO Box 1179 Columb C 29202 PO Box 202 Winsto alem N C 2712020275
Ad e Addre s

7D
y Date Date

Agreed To Auth ized

RPC Contracting Inc Currituck County Board of Education
Contractor Owner

PO Box 333 Kitty hawk N C 27949 2958 Carotoke H hway Currituck N C 27929
Address

By Date By Date

38



IHN
Since 927

CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT
DIVISION

MB Kahn Construction Co Inc
POBOX 1179 COLUMBIA SC 29202 803 7362950 FAX 803 7369501 wwwmbkahncom

February 14 2008

Currituck Count Board of Education
2958 Caratoke Highway
Currituck NC 27929

Attn Mr Bruce MacDonald

Ref Jarvisburg Elementary School

Building and Finishes Contract

Contract Change Order No 5

Dear Bruce

As a result of previously approved Change Orders on Jarvisburg Elementary School
attached herewith are 6 copies of executed Change Order No 5 from Blueridge
General Inc

The purpose of this change is to

1 Delete Vinyl Composition Flooring and provide Carper Tiles is Segment 4

Classrooms per users and owners request
2 Delete Bluestone Window Sills from clearstory windows per Blueridge General

Inc recommendations due to lack of exposure and maintenance inconveniences
3 Add Acoustical Ceiling Break to conceal exposed piping in room 136

In summary all of the above proposals have been reviewed recommended by the

Owner and Construction Manager to be accepted and incorporated into this contract
The net total of these changes reflects a net add of2291738 to Blueridge General
Inc contract Please return 3 fully executed copies for our file and distribution

ly

Buddy Sivils
MB Kahn Construction Company Inc

CM Division

7572976460

COLUMBIA SC GREENVILLE SC ATLANTA GA
39



CHANGE ORDER
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT EDITION

PROJECT

New Jarvisburg Elementary School

Jarvisburg North Carolina

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 5

INITIATION DATE 2132008

ARCHITECTSPROJECT NO 06611

TO Blueridge General Inc

3422 Stratmore Avenue

Norfolk Virginia 23504

CMSPROJECT NO 606901

CONTRACT FORBuilding and Finishes Contract

CONTRACT DATE

You are directed to make the following changes in this Contract

1 Delete VCT and provide carpet tiles in Segment 4

Classrooms per Blueridge General Inc COP No24

2 Delete Bluestone sills from clearstory windows per

Blueridge General Inc COP No 28 revised

3 Add acoustical ceiling break in room 136 per

Blueridge General Inc COP No 30

Total This Change

January 17 2007

Add 2410634

Deduce 156105

Add 37209

ADD 2291738

Not valid until signed by the Owner the Architect and the Construction Manager

Signature of the Contractor indicates agreement herewith including any adjustment in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time

The original Contract Sum was 694206900
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders 4830154
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 699037054
The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order 2291738
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be 701328792
The Contract Time will be increased by 0 Calendar Days
The Date of Substantial Completion as of the date ofthis Change Order therefore is April 15 2008

Recommended Approved
M B Kahn Construction Company Inc Walter Robbs Callahan Pierce Architects PA

Construction Manager
PO Box 1179 Columbia S C 29202 PO Box 202 Winston Salem N C 2712020275

es Addres
2 3 2uo

By Date B Date

Agreed To uthoriz

Blueridge General Inc Currituck County Board of Education
Contractor Owner

3422 S Aven Norfolk Va 23504 29258 Caratoke Highway Currituck N C

27929Addr s
e

OB
A

G O
Date y Date

40



IpHN
Since J27

CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT
DIVISION

MB Kahn Construction Co Inc
POBOX 1179 COLUMBIA SC 29202 803 7362950 FAX 803 7369501 wwwmbkahncom

February 13 2008

Currituck Count Board of Education
2958 Caratoke Highway
Currituck NC 27929

Attn Mr Bruce MacDonald
Ref Jarvisburg Elementary School

Electrical Contract

Contract Change Order No 3

Dear Bruce

As a result of previously approved Change Orders on Jarvisburg Elementary School

attached herewith are 6 copies of Change Order No 3 to B M Contractors Inc

The purpose of these changes are

1 Delete contract allowance for Data Head Equipment and reallocate costs to

Owner furnished Technology Equipment
2 Delete contract allowance for VOIP Phone System and reallocate to Owner

Furnished Equipment

In summary this is merely a reallocation of costs and has no affect on the overall

Budget The net total cost of this change reflects a credit of10000000 to B M

Contracting Inc Contract

Please return 3 fully executed copies for our file and distribution

Please let me know if I can be of any further assistance

Sincerely

Buddy Sivils
MB Kahn Construction Company Inc

CM Division
7572976460

COLUMBIA SC GREENVILLE SC ATLANTA GA
41



CHANGE ORDER
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT EDITION

PROJECT

New Jarvisburg Elementary School

Jarvisburg North Carolina

TO B M Contractors Inc

500 North Poindexter Street

Elizabeth City NC 27909

You are directed to make the following changes in this Contract

1 Delete Data Head and Equiptment Allowance per Owners request

2 Delete VOIP Phone System Allowance per Owners request

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 3

INITIATION DATE January 29 2008

ARCHITECTSPROJECT NO 06611

CMS PROJECT NO 6069

CONTRACT FOR Electrical Contract

CONTRACT DATE Janurary 17 2007

Deduct 5000000

Deduct 5000000

Total This Change Deduct 10000000

Not valid until signed by the Owner the Architect and the Construction Manager
Signature of theContractor indicates agreement herewith including any adjustment in theContract Sum or theContract Time

The original Contract Sum was 154611400
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders 520900
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 154090500

The Contract Sum will be decreased by this Change Order 10000000
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be 144090500
The Contract Time will be unchanged by 0 Days

The Date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is

Recommended

MB Kahn Construction Company
Construction Manager
PO Box 1179 ColumbiaE29202

Agreed To t

B MContractors Inc

Contractor 1GOIJISCXIaliper
Elizabeth City NC 27909

Address

Approved

Walter RpbsCallahan Pi Architects PA

PO BoxOlWiryalfoNC 2712020275

gy ate

Authorized

Currituck County Board ofEducation

Owner

2958 Caratoke Highway Currituck NC 27929

Address
A

i n r
r7fG

V

42



MB Kahn Construction Co Inc
POBOX 1179 COLUMBIA SC 29202 803 7362950 FAX 803 7369501 wwwmbkahncom

IHN
Since 1927

CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT
DIVISION

February 15 2008

Currituck Caunt Board of Education

2958 Caratoke Highway
Currituck NC 27929

Attn Mr Bruce MacDonald
Ref Jarvisburg Elementary School

Plumbing Contract
Contract Change Order No 2

Dear Bruce

As a result of previously approved Change Orders on Jarvisburg Elementary School
attached herewith are 6 copies of Change Order No 2 to ZBZ Associates

The purpose of this change is to provide the Contractor with a 24 calendar day time

extension as a result of the ownerreissuing the original Contract As a result the date

of the scheduled Notice to Proceed was delayed from January 21 2007 until February
14 2007

We therefore recommend that owner accept and execute this modification This is a no

cost change Please return 3 fully executed copies for our file and distribution

Please let me know if I can be of any further assistance

Sincerely

Buddy Sivils
MB Kahn Constructio Company Inc

CMDivision
7572976460

COLUMBIA SC GREENVILLE SC ATLANTA GA

43



CHANGE ORDER
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT EDITION

PROJECT

New Jarvisburg Elementary School

Jarvisburg North Carolina

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 2

INITIATION DATE 1162008

ARCHITECTSPROJECT NO 06611

T0 ZBZ Associates Inc CMSPROJECT NO 6069

557 Central Drive Suite 102

Virginia Beach VA 234544814 CONTRACT FOR Plumbing Contract

CONTRACT DATE January 17 2007

You are directed to make the following changes in this Contract

Extension to Contract completion dates

1 Revised date of Substantial Completion April 15 2008

2 Revised date ofFinal Completion May 15 2008

This time extension is a result ofthe Ownerreissuing the original
contract which restricted the issuance of the scheduled Notice toProceed

date from January 21 2007 until February 14 2008 24 Calendar Day Delay

Total This Change 000

Not valid until signed by the Owner the Architect and the Construction Manager

Signature of the Contractor indicates agreement herewith including any adjustment in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time

The original Contract Sum was 62600000
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders 887044
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 63487044
The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order 000

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be 63487044
The Contract Time will be revised by 24 Calendar Days
The Date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is April 15 2008

Recommended Approved
M B Kahn Construction Company Inc Walter Robbs Callahan Pierce Architects PA

Construction Manager
PO Box 1179 C ia S C 29202 PO Box 202 Winston Sal N C 2712020275

A r s Addres

z 9 Zv B

By to B Date

Agreed To Authori

ZBZ Associates Inc Currituck County Board of Education

Contractor Owner

557 Centra ve Suite 102 Virginia Beach VA 29258 Caratoke Highw Currituck N C 27929

Addre 234544814 A

Gam J
B Date By Date

44



MB Kahn Construction Co Inc
POBOX 1179 COLUMBIA SC 29202 803 7362950 FAX 803 7369501 wwwmbkahncom

I1HN
Since 927

CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT
DIVISION

February 28 2008

Currituck Count Board of Education

2958 Caratoke Highway
Currituck NC 27929

Attn Mr Bruce MacDonald
Ref Jarvisburg Elementary School

Electrical Contract
Contract Change Order No 4

Dear Bruce

As a result of previously approved Change Orders on Jarvisburg Elementary School
attached herewith are 6 copies of Change Order No 4 to B M Contractors Inc

The purpose of these changes are

Miscellaneous Technology revisions per Engineers revised drawings E6 through
E19 This was an owner generated change in which certain technology
equipment was deleted from the construction contract and became an owner

responsibility

Delete 2873900

In summary this proposal has been reviewed and approved by the Engineer of Record

to be incorporated into this Contract We therefore recommend that the owner accept
and execute this modification and return 3 executed copies for our files and distribution

Please let me know if I can be of any further assistance

erely

Buddy Sivils
MB Kahn Construction Company Inc

CMDivision

k f

i

COLUMBIA SC GREENVILLE SC ATLANTA GA

45



CIANGE ORDER
CONSRUCTION MANAGEMENT EDITION

PROJECT CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 4
New Jarvisburg Elementary School

Jarvisburg North Carolina INITIATION DATE February 6 2008

ARCHITECTSPROJECT NO 06611

TO B M Contractors Inc CMS PROJECT NO 6069
500 North Poindexter Street

Elizabeth City NC 27909 CONTRACT FOR Electrical Contract

CONTRACT DATE Janurary 17 2007

You are directed to make the following changes in this Contract

Revisions to DataTVrequirements per Engineers revised drawings E6 thru E19 Deduct 2873900

Total This Change Deduct 2873900

Not valid until signed by the Owner the Architect and theConstruction Manager
Signature of theContractor indicates agreement herewith including any adjustment in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time

The original Contract Sum was 154611400
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders 10520900
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 144090500
The Contract Sum will be decreased by this Change Order 2873900
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be 141216600
The Contract Time will be unchanged by 0 Days
The Date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is

Recommended Approved
MB Kahn Construction Company Walter bs Callahan Pierce Architects PA
Construction Manager
PO Box 1179 Columbia SC292

Archit

PO ox jitigtonalmN C 2712020275

is 33 08
BY Date By Date
Agreed To Authorized

B M Contractors Inc Currituck County Board of Education
Contractor Owner

500 N rth Poindext Street Elizabeth City NC 27909 2958 Caratoke High y Currituck NC 27929
Address Add ss

BY Date y Date

46



o B MCCNTRACTORS INC
rNfeESrINOCICHrewItCOAMeRCULAhrnlxOtsStwGrropstsws

srscrxrci coxratCrvo Iusarete

CHANGE ORDER PRCPOSAL

DATE 1SJan08
CO PROPOSAL t7

PROJECT Jetvisbur9 Elementary School
TO tl Kshn
ATTENTtOtV Russell Laoey
OEBCRIPTION OF Rsviaed VDY drawirps
woalc

Equ1p
Employee hourly rata

Suti Contractor

Mlabrial Total

Direct labor rate x hours
unRaxeuFrge20

labor Total
WP
Sales Tex 79i Equipment
Bonds

8uWotal
Pof 15X

Tonal Coat c

9 i fA Conindors Ino

Prepareel Dy 8 3 M CONTRACTORS 1r18r1008 Page t

E0lt0 3rJt9d Sii01M1NOJ W QiV 8 969L8EEZSZ ZEiO 880L0iL0

tietarial11Houta

47



FAX Np Jan 18 2088 012JtliAc

IVOld1 Mllld OPtb0O I1C

349a1am 7eu2r3 Rd
OoldbomNCZS30

I htneAeateos 1

EStitIiti9
tlrera tssnwe

lnivloa

F
leant ONttpilott tlyr CoM TWd

taItb ZiCfOtdts b ariSJntl aantnee t

1
143D100

627002
1430100
46270

DetKdpon
Cast m 6elelt27 Tebrrltla DiuVs
taOKaYawZeTalaviiimlltiobav t w643700 613700

flmiolioa t7wt 4al6oiszt tewMiestnOowo1 booooersnole T2s0a Zi2fA0

etapormo wlovidotu w bwaoorad Horn tlta

ilrtetJptio dkaaeoptntglaitod1 isAW drgr tnd t 330b0 7351100

dried61 bads tato YK pakat 91it are isd dMme tM

dittoaoeofoirodw dnia

NI ptioia toairda wtMelid bthor and doux MIMM aa11
tp0iyoo Irvd Myyuoallonr
K9I922ZssTSTtsok QMrr Hidan

Total

g1ti2lltJD w QMV 6 9691866ZSZ TE I0 086EBTT8

E0E0 3JVd

48



PHONE 2522322223
C Michael Warren FAX2522323655
Superintendent The Knapp Teacherage COURIER 106903

CurrituckCounty SchooCs

MEMO

TO Sandra Hill

FROM Kelly McClellan

DATE February 20 2008

SUBJECT Change orders for Shawboro Elementary

Sandra

Attached you will find change orders for Shawboro Elementary These include the following change
orders

Change order 6 to McKenzie Construction Corp
Change order 7 to McKenzie Construction Corp

Sandra please let me know if you have any questions or need additional information

Thanks
Kelly

2958 Caratoke Highway Currituck North Carolina 27929

49



MB Kahn Construction Co Inc
PO BOX 1179 COLUMBIA SC 29202 803 7362950 FAX 803 7369501 wwwmbkahncom

IHN
Since 1927

CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT
DIVISION

January 24 2008

Currituck Count Board of Education
2958 Caratoke Highway
Currituck NC 27929

Attn Mr Bruce MacDonald
Ref North Elementary School

Contract Change order No 6

Dear Bruce

As a result of previously approved Change Orders on Jarvisburg Elementary School
attached herewith are 6 copies of Change Order No 6 to McKenzie Construction
Corporation for the ownersexecution

This change order consists of the following

Provide approximately 11501f of additional road widening for left turn lane
and waterline extension as required by NCDOT and Quible Associates

drawings dated June 9 2007 Additional undercut and ditch stabilization
fabric if required will be paid on a unit price basis based on actual
quantities

In summary this proposal have been reviewed and approved by the Engineer of Record
to be incorporated into this Contract The net total of this change reflects a net Add of
14271100 to McKenzie Construction Corporations Contract

We therefore recommend that owner accept and execute this modification Please
execute and return 3 copies for our file and distribution to the Contractor and Architect
Please let me know if I can be of any further assistance

Sincerely

Buddy Sivils
MBKahn Construction Company Inc

COLUMBIA SC GREENVILLE SC ATLANTA GA

50



CHANGE ORDER
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT EDITION

PROJECT

North Elementary School

370 Shawboro Road

Moyock NC 27958

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 6

INITIATION DATE January 16 2008

ARCHITECTSPROJECT NO 06611

TO McKenzie Construction Corporation
1711 Mediterranean Ave

Virginia Beach Va 23451

CMSPROJECT NO 606902

CONTRACT FOR SP Contract

CONTRACT DATE June 6 2007

You are directed to make the following changes in this Contract
Extend turn lane guardrails and water line revisions per Quible Associates

plans dated June 29 2007

Removal replacement ofunsuitable material after 10 ofstripping if encountered
will be paid through the 10000 CY contract allowance

Excelsior matting if required will be paid at aunit price of200sy plus
Contractor overhead and profit

Total This Change Add 14277100

Not valid until signed by the Owner the Architect and the Construction Manager
Signature of the Contractor indicates agreement herewith including any adjustment in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time

The original Contract Sum was 1596145600
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders 11313378
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 1607445878
The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order 14277100
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be 1621722978
The Contract Time will be unchanged by 0 Days
The Date of Substantial Completion as of the date ofthis Change Order therefore is

Recommended

M B Kahn Construction Company Inc
Construction Manager
PO Box 1179 Columbia S C 29202

Twss
f

tom r Zl
BY Date

Agreed To

McKenzie Construction Cornoration

1711 Mediterrean A Va

Approved
Walter Robbs Callahan Pierce Architects PA

PO Box 202 Winston Sim N C 2712020275

Currituck County Board ofEducation
Owner

g29258 Caratoke Highway Currituck N C 27929

V b la
By Date

51



IHN
Since 1927

CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT
DIVISION

MB Kahn Construction Co Inc
PO BOX 1179 COLUMBIA SC 29202 803 7362950 FAX 803 7369501 wwwmbkahncom

February 15 2008

Currituck Count Board of Education
2958 Caratoke Highway
Currituck NC 27929

Attn Mr Bruce MacDonald
Ref North Elementary School

Contract Change Order No 7

Dear Bruce

As a result of previously approved Change Orders on North Elementary School
attached herewith are 6 copies of Change Orders No 7 to McKenzie Construction

Corporation for the ownersexecution

These change orders consists of the following items

1 Delete 1 TVSS at panel PP11per PCO 002 It was determined that this

was not required and therefore the owner elected to receive a credit for

this item
Delete 62900

2 Add circuit breaker for dimming panel per PCO 007 It was determined

that this panel required a separate circuit including conduit and wire
Add124400

3 Miscellaneous changes to Technology Equipment This was an owner

generated change in which certain technology equipment was deleted

from the construction contract and became an owner responsibility
Delete2048900

4 Miscellaneous Technology revisions per Engineers memo dated October

12 2007 and PCO No 023 This change reflects the addition of certain

technology items that the Owner and Engineer determined as necessary

COLUMBIA SC GREENVILLE SC ATLANTA GA

52



to be integrated into the Construction contract to assure continuity and

proper installation of components during construction
Add 1226800

5 Credit for uninstalled silt fence per PCO No 8 During the initial phases of
construction it was determined that a good portion of silt fencing to be
installed for erosion control would not be needed and would serve no

purpose in containing rainwater runoff It was therefore deleted which

generated a cost savings to the owner

Delete339400

In summary all proposals have been reviewed and approved by the Architect and

Engineer of Record to be incorporated into this Contract The net total of Change Order

No 7 reflects in a Credit in the amount of1100000 to McKenzie Construction

Corporations contract

We therefore recommend that owner accept and execute this modification and return 3
executed copies for our files and distribution to the Contractor and Architect

Please let me know if I can be of any further assistance

Sincerely

Buddy Sivils
MBKahn Construction Company Inc

CM Division
7572976460

53



CHANGE ORDER
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT EDITION

PROJECT

North Elementary School

370 Shawboro Road

Moyock NC 27958

TO McKenzie Construction Corporation
1711 Mediterranean Ave

Virginia Beach Va 23451

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 7

INITIATION DATE January 29 2008

ARCHITECTSPROJECT NO 06611

CMSPROJECT NO 606902

CONTRACT FOR

CONTRACT DATE

You are directed to make the following changes in this Contract

1 Delete 1 TVSS per PCO 002 Deduct
2 Add Breaker in panel PP11 A per PCO 007 Add
3 Misc Techonology changes per drawings dated6292007

PCO 012 Deduct

4 Misc Technology revisions per Engineer memo dated

10122007 and PCO 023 Add

5 Credit for uninstalled silt fence per PCO 008 Deduct

Total This Change Deduct

SP Contract

June 6 2007

62900
124400

2048900

1226800
339400

1100000

Not valid until signed by the Owner the Architect and the Construction Manager
Signature of the Contractor indicates agreement herewith including any adjustment in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time

The original Contract Sum was 1596145600
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders 25590478
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 1621736078
The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order 1100000
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be 1620636078
The Contract Time will be unchanged by 0 Days
The Date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is

Recommended

M B Kahn Construction Company Inc
Construction Manager
PO Box 1179 Columbia C 29202

Approved
Walter Robbsallahan Pierce Architects PA

PO Box2Pf2JWnstonSlerr C 2712020275
Address

Agreed To

McKenzie Construct on Corporation
Contractor

1711 MerraneanAve Virginia Beach Va

By Date

lily w L 3ly8
By Date

Authorized

Currituck County Board ofEducation
Owner

29258 Carat ke h ay Currituck N C 27929

02 So
By Date

54



Number 2008077

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense
50548-545000 Contract Services 325,530$                   
50548-588000 Contingency 50,000$                     
50548-590000 Furnishings & Equipment 20,000$                     
50548-561000 Professional Services 9,549$                       
50548-570000 Reimburseable Expenses 75,000$                   
50380-481000 Investment Earnings 330,079$                 

405,079$                   405,079$                 

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 17th day of March 2008, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2008.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - Increased by $330,079.

Knotts Island Volunteer Fire Department Construction (50848) - To increase appropriations 
for change order #1 for $155,014 to A R Chesson contract to add a sprinkler system to the 
building; add a 50,000 gallon water tank and well for $170,500; increase the design fee for 
the sprinkler system by $5,589 and appropriate funds for furnishings to match USDA loan 
budget.

55



Number 2008078

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

55818-561000 Prof Services - Wells 15,017$                       
55818-562000 Prof Services - Water Plant 650,200$                     
55818-563000 Prof Services - Dist Sys 73,517$                       
55818-588001 Wells-Contingency 84,570$                       
55818-588002 Water Plant - Contingency 575,129$                     
55818-588003 Distribution Sys - Contingency 379,748$                     
55818-588004 Tanks - Contingency 126,935$                     
55818-591001 600 GPM Deep Wells 560,000$                     
55818-591002 Wells - Electrical/Scada 160,000$                     
55818-591003 Wells - Raw Water Line #1 83,700$                       
55818-591004 Wells - Raw Water Line #2 42,000$                       
55818-592001 RO Plant 8,889,474$                  
55818-592001 RO Plant 1,344,610$                  
55818-592003 Outfall Diffuser 402,000$                     
55818-592004 Raw Water Storage 464,500$                     
55818-593001 500K Tank & 12" Tie Line 183,000$                     
55818-593005 12" Waterline Moyock 239,624$                     
55818-593006 Tulls Creek Booster 250,000$                     
55818-593007 16" Line RO to Curr Tank 744,687$                     
55818-593008 RO Outfall Main 3,371,796$                  
55818-593009 12" DOT Betterment 393,023$                     
55390-490000 Proceeds from Debt Issuance 19,000,000$             
55390-495061 T F - Mainland Water Fund 31,770$                    
55818-593004 12" Waterline Guinea Road 1,760$                       

61818-587055 T T - Mainland Water Const 31,770$                       
61360-470000 Utilities Charges 31,770$                    

19,065,300$               19,065,300$             

Explanation:

Mainland Water Operating Fund (61) - Increased by $31,770l.

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 17th day of March 2008, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2008.

Net Budget Effect: Mainland Water Construction Fund (55) - Increased by $19,031,770.

Mainland Water Construction (55818) - To record $19,000,000 Revenue Bond financing 
approved by the Local Government Commission at their March 4, 2008 meeting and to 
appropriate remaining enterprise funds.

56



Number 2008079

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15446-590000 Capital Outlay 1,550,057$                
15320-415000 Occupancy Tax 1,200,057$              
15380-481000 Investment Earnings 350,000$                 

1,550,057$                1,550,057$              

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 17th day of March 2008, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2008.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $1,550,057.

Tourism Promotion (15446) - To increase appropriations to purchase building and property 
for Moyock Visitor's Center.

57



Number 2008080

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10530-514800 Fees Paid to Officials 3,500$                       
10530-531000 Gas Oil Tires 10,000$                     
10530-516000 Repairs and Maintenance 10,000$                     
10530-533900 Ambulance Supplies 15,000$                     
10530-532000 Suppliles 3,000$                       
10530-554000 Insurance 3,000$                     
10530-590000 Capital Outlay 38,500$                   

41,500$                     41,500$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 10th day of March 2008, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2008.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Emergency Services (10530) - To transfer budgeted funds from Capital Outlay to cover 
operating expenses for the remainder of this fiscal year.  Operating expenses have been 
higher than estimated due to assuming the second ambulance at Corolla in July 2007 and 
the third ambulance in March 2008.  Capital Outlay funds will be available due to installment 
purchase for ambulances; therefore there will not be a payment this fiscal year.  Funds are 
also being transferred for the EMS/Fire Advisory Board.

58



   

   
Sandra L. Hill 

 
Finance Department (252) 232-2381 Telephone 

 Finance Director Post Office Box 39 (252) 232-2141 Fax 
 Currituck, North Carolina 27929-0039  

   
   

 
 

Memorandum 
 

To:  Daniel F. Scanlon, County Manager 
 
From:  Sandra Hill, Finance Director 
 
Date:  March 10, 2008 
 
Subject: Ambulance Purchase 
              
 
At the Board retreat in January, Chief Carter made the recommendation to purchase five ambulances under an 
installment purchase agreement rather than to purchase one ambulance per year over the next five years.  He 
prefers this option because over the past year, the County has acquired two ambulances from other departments 
and we already had one that was scheduled for replacement.  These ambulances have had high maintenance 
costs through the year and we have added an additional ambulance crew.   
 
Chief Carter has provided me with the Florida State Contract 07-07-0828, which is valid from October 1, 2007 
through September 30, 2008.  The base bid for the ambulance that the EMS department would like to purchase 
is $130,765, with options of $19,510 and an additional discount of $75 for a total price of $150,200 per 
ambulance.  Under this option, the ambulances would be financed over 5 years at a rate of 4.15%.  Historically, 
the County has budgeted for one ambulance per year; $158,776 was budgeted for this fiscal year and $175,986 
was proposed for next year.  This trend will continue to increase over time at an estimated rate of approximately 
5%-7% per year.  Annual debt payments for these vehicles will be $169,425.51.  By the 4th and 5th year, the 
ambulance cost is estimated to be $201,000 - $205,000 if we continue with the annual purchase and we will still 
incur the high maintenance costs associated with the existing vehicles.   
 
I request that the Board consider moving forward with this installment purchase option and piggy-back of off 
the Florida State contract.  The first payment will not become due until delivery of the vehicles, which will be 
7-9 months away and into next fiscal year, but in order to get the vehicles we need permission to start this 
process. 
 
Thank you for your consideration.   

59



P
UCK C

C f
1

t
1

GGiS

CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED

Meeting Date MARCH 17th 2008 Agenda

SUBJECT

REPORT OF UNPAID 2007 REAL ESTATE TAXES
ORDER ADVERTISEMENT OF TAX LIENS

REQUESTED ACTION

ISSUE AN ORDER TO ADVERTISE THE UNPAID 2007 REAL ESTATE TAXES

Submitted by Tracy Sample Department Tax

Date submitted 29Feb08 Attachments Yes xx No

REVIEW PROCESS

County Manager

County Attorney

Finance Director

ll

Approved

Yes C No L
Yes NO CI
Yes No

Yes No

60



K G COUNTY OF CURRITUCK
GJ 1

Tax Department
POBox 9

Currituck North Carolina 27929

I66B

Report of Unpaid 2007 Real Estate Taxes

Advertisement of Tax Liens

To Board of County Commissioners

From Tracy Sample Tax Administrator

Date February 29th 2008

Tracy Sample
Tax Administrator
252 2323005

252 2323568 FAX

As of February 29th 2008 there is130301069 in unpaid
taxes that are a lien on real estate for fiscal year 20072008

North Carolina General Statute 105369 requires that

unpaid real estate tax liens be advertised in one or more

newspapers having a general circulation in the county and

by posting a notice of the tax liens at the county
courthouse This statute requires that the Board of
Commissioners order the tax collector to advertise the tax

liens

61



 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF 

CURRITUCK COUNTY 

Extracts of Meeting of 
March 17, 2008 

Present:  Chairman _______________________________ presiding, and Commissioners 

___________________________________________ 

Absent:  _____________________________________________ 

* * * * * * * * * * 

Commissioner ________________________ introduced the following Bond Order the 

title of which was read: 

BOND ORDER AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF WATER SYSTEM REVENUE 
BONDS TO PROVIDE FUNDS FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO THE WATER SYSTEM OF THE 
COUNTY; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF REVENUE BONDS; PROVIDING FOR 
THE COLLECTION OF SERVICE CHARGES FOR THE USE OF THE SYSTEM; 
PROVIDING FOR THE CREATION OF CERTAIN SPECIAL FUNDS; PLEDGING TO THE 
PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF AND THE INTEREST ON THE REVENUE BONDS 
AND NOTES CERTAIN REVENUES OF THE SYSTEM; SETTING FORTH THE RIGHTS 
AND REMEDIES OF HOLDERS; AND SETTING FORTH THE DETAILS OF CERTAIN 
RELATED MATTERS 

WHEREAS, the County of Currituck, North Carolina (the “County”) is authorized by 
The State and Local Government Revenue Bond Act, Article 5 of Chapter 159,  to issue its 
revenue bonds to provide moneys for the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, extension, 
improvement or payment of the cost of one or more revenue bond projects, including water 
systems or facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the County desires to finance the cost of making certain improvements to its 
water system that serves the mainland portion of the County including, but not limited to, the 
construction of a reverse osmosis water processing plant and related infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, the County now intends to issue its water system revenue bonds (the 
“Bonds”) to finance the Project (defined below), which Bonds shall be secured by a pledge of 
Pledged Net Revenues; and 

WHEREAS, each series of Bonds shall be issued pursuant to a Series Resolution which 
will provide for the terms for such series of Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the County also is authorized to issue Subordinate Debt, as defined herein, 
to finance Improvements to the System (as defined below); 

62



 

2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED by the County of Currituck, North Carolina, as 
follows: 

ARTICLE I 
GENERAL PROVISIONS AND DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.01.  Contract with Holders.  In consideration of the purchase and acceptance of 
the Bonds by those who shall hold the same from time to time, the provisions of this Bond Order 
shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract between the County and the Holders from 
time to time of the Bonds; and the covenants and agreements herein set forth to be performed by 
or on behalf of the County shall be for the equal benefit, protection and security of the Holders of 
any and all of the Bonds so issued or to be issued, without preference, priority or distinction as to 
lien or otherwise, except as otherwise hereinafter provided, of any one Bond over any other 
Bond by reason of priority in the issue, sale or negotiation thereof, or otherwise. 

Section 1.02.  Definitions.  The following words and terms as used in this Bond Order 
shall have the following meanings, unless some other meaning is manifestly intended: 

“Act” means The State and Local Government Revenue Bond Act, constituting Article 5 
of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as amended. 

“Annual Budget” means any budget or amended budget of Operating Expenses adopted 
or in effect pursuant to Section 7.08 of this Bond Order. 

“Annual Debt Service” means the amount of payments required to be made for principal 
of and interest on any specified Indebtedness, including mandatory sinking fund redemptions, 
and payments pursuant to agreements with providers of credit enhancement or liquidity support 
with respect to such Indebtedness to reimburse such providers for debt service payments made 
with respect to such Indebtedness, scheduled to come due within a specified Fiscal Year, but 
excluding any capitalized interest funded from proceeds of Indebtedness.  For purposes of 
calculating Annual Debt Service, the following assumptions are to be used to calculate the 
principal and interest due in such specified Fiscal Year: 

(a) In determining the principal amount due in the Fiscal Year, payment shall be 
assumed to be made in accordance with any amortization schedule established for such 
Indebtedness (unless a different subsection of this definition applies for purposes of determining 
principal maturities or amortization), including any scheduled redemption of such specified 
Indebtedness on the basis of accreted value and, for such purpose, the redemption payment shall 
be deemed a principal payment; 

(b) If any of the specified Indebtedness constitutes Tender Indebtedness, then Annual 
Debt Service on the options or obligations of the holders of such Indebtedness to tender the same 
for purchase or payment prior to their stated maturity or maturities shall be treated as a principal 
maturity occurring on the first date on which owners of such Indebtedness may or are required to 
tender such Indebtedness, except that any such option or obligation to tender Indebtedness shall 
be ignored and not treated as a principal maturity if (1) such Indebtedness is enhanced or secured 
by a letter of credit, such Indebtedness is rated at least in the “A” rating category (without regard 
to any rating refinement or gradation by numerical modifier or otherwise) by a Rating Agency, 

63



 

3 

and such Indebtedness is rated in the two highest short-term note or commercial paper rating 
categories by a Rating Agency, and (2) any obligation the County may have, other than its 
obligation on such Indebtedness, to reimburse any provider of a credit or liquidity facility or a 
bond insurance policy, or similar arrangement shall have been incurred under and shall have met 
the tests and conditions for the issuance of such specified Indebtedness set forth in this Bond 
Order; 

(c) If any of the specified Indebtedness constitutes Variable Rate Indebtedness, the 
interest rate on such Indebtedness shall be assumed to be 100% of the greater of (1) the daily 
average interest rate on such Indebtedness during the 12 months ending with the month 
preceding the date of calculation, or such shorter period that such Indebtedness shall have been 
Outstanding or (2) the rate of interest on such Indebtedness on the date of calculation; provided 
that, with respect to any Variable Rate Indebtedness which is being issued at the date of 
computation, the initial rate of such Indebtedness shall be used; 

(d) Indebtedness that is no longer Outstanding pursuant to Section 11.01 or otherwise 
shall be disregarded and not included in the calculation of Annual Debt Service; 

(e) For any Indebtedness for which a binding commitment, letter of credit or other 
credit arrangement providing for the extension of such Indebtedness beyond its original maturity 
date exists, the computation of the annual amount payable on account of principal and interest on 
such Indebtedness shall, at the option of the County, be made on the assumption that such 
Indebtedness will be amortized in accordance with such credit arrangement; and 

(f) Upon incurrence of a Hedge Agreement, all calculations, including for the annual 
amount on account of principal and interest on Indebtedness subject to the Hedge Agreement, 
shall be made using the Hedge Fixed Rate for the applicable period and such Indebtedness shall 
not be considered as Variable Rate Indebtedness for such period. 

“Auditors” means the independent firm of certified public accountants that is employed 
by the County to audit the County’s books and accounts at the end of each Fiscal Year. 

“Beneficial Owners” means the person in whose name a Bond is recorded as beneficial 
owner of such Bond by the Securities Depository or a Participant or an Indirect Participant on the 
records of such Securities Depository, Participant or Indirect Participant, as the case may be, or 
such Person’s subrogee. 

“Board” means the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina, 
or the board or body in which the general legislative powers of the County shall now or hereafter 
be vested. 

“Bond Anticipation Notes” means any notes issued in anticipation of the issuance of 
Bonds. 

“Bond” or “Bonds” means any bond or bonds authorized by Article II and includes any 
Bond Anticipation Notes, and Completion Bonds issued in accordance with this Bond Order, but 
does not include any Subordinate Debt. 

64



 

4 

“Bond Counsel” shall mean an attorney or firm of attorneys nationally recognized on the 
subject of municipal bonds.  

“Bond Fund” means the fund created and so designated by Section 5.01. 

“Bondholder” or “Holder” or any similar term, when used with reference to a Bond or 
Bonds means any person who shall be the registered owner of any outstanding Bond or Bonds. 

“Bond Order” means this Bond Order, together with all orders amendatory hereof and all 
orders supplemental hereto as herein permitted, including all Series Resolutions. 

“Bond Registrar” means initially the Finance Officer, and if a Paying Agent is appointed 
pursuant to Section 9.02, such Paying Agent and any successor Paying Agent. 

“Book-Entry System” means “Book-Entry System” means a book-entry system 
established and operated for the recordation of Beneficial Owners of the Bonds pursuant to 
Section 2.20. 

“Business Day” means a day on which banking business is transacted, but not including a 
Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, or any day on which banking institutions are authorized by 
law to close in the county in which the Paying Agent has its principal corporate trust office. 

“Capital Lease Obligation” means the obligation to make payments under leases that are 
(i) required to be capitalized in accordance with GAAP, (ii) related to the System, and (iii) 
expected to be paid from Pledged Net Revenues. 

“Chairman” means the Chairman of the Board or the officer succeeding to or exercising 
his or her principal functions and duties. 

“Clerk” means the Clerk to the County Board of Commissioners or the officer succeeding 
to or exercising his or her principal functions and duties. 

“Commission” means the Local Government Commission of North Carolina or its 
designated representative. 

“Completion Bonds” means any Bonds issued for the purpose of financing the 
completion of certain improvements to the Project for which Bonds have theretofore been issued 
in accordance with the provisions hereof, to the extent necessary to complete such improvements 
in the manner and scope contemplated at the time that such Bonds were originally issued, and, to 
the extent the same shall be applicable, in accordance with the general plans and specifications 
for such improvements as originally prepared with only such changes as have been made in 
conformance with the documents pursuant to which such Bonds were originally issued. 

“Consulting Engineers” means (a) an Independent Consulting Engineer or (b) the 
designated person(s) within the Currituck County Water Department or of any successor 
department who is (1) an engineer experienced in the field of water engineering and (2) licensed 
and registered as a professional engineer in the State. 

65



 

5 

“Costs of the Project” means the cost of improvements, the cost of construction or 
reconstruction, the cost of all labor, materials, machinery and equipment, the cost of all lands, 
property, rights, easements, franchises and permits acquired, financing charges, interest prior to 
and during construction and for up to one year after completion of construction; start-up costs 
and operating capital; the cost of plans, specifications, surveys, estimates of costs and of 
revenues; the cost of engineering, legal and other professional services, including financial 
advisory services; costs of issuing any Series of Bonds, expenses necessary or incident to 
determining the feasibility or practicability of any such acquisition, construction or 
reconstruction, and such other expenses as may be necessary or incidental to the financing of the 
Project. 

“Counsel” means an attorney or firm of attorneys selected by the County. 

“County Representative” means the person or persons designated to act on behalf of the 
County by written certificate of the Board signed by the Chairman and furnished to the Paying 
Agent and the Depositary containing the specimen signature of such person or persons. 

“Debt Service Requirement” means, for any Indebtedness in any Fiscal Year, the amount 
of the Annual Debt Service for such Indebtedness for such Fiscal Year. 

“Debt Service Reserve Fund” means the fund created and so designated by Section 5.01 
of this Bond Order. 

“Debt Service Reserve Requirement” means, with respect to any Indebtedness, an 
amount equal to the maximum Annual Debt Service for such Indebtedness for any Fiscal Year. 

“Depositary” means any bank or trust company duly authorized under the laws of the 
United States of America or the State of North Carolina to engage in the banking business within 
the State and designated by the Board as a depositary of moneys under the provisions of this 
Bond Order. 

“Finance Officer” means the Finance Officer of the County or the officer succeeding to 
his principal functions and duties. 

“Fiscal Year” means the period of twelve months commencing on July 1 of any year and 
ending on June 30 of the following year. 

“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental 
entities. 

“General Obligation System Bonds” means the principal amount of the County’s 
outstanding general obligation bonds, from time to time, the proceeds of which were used to 
finance facilities of the System. 

“Hedge Agreement” means an interest rate swap, cap, collar, floor, forward or other 
hedging agreement, arrangement or security however denominated, expressly identified pursuant 
to its terms as being entered into in connection with and in order to hedge interest rate 
fluctuations on all or a portion of any Indebtedness where (a) interest on such Indebtedness or 

66



 

6 

such portion of such Indebtedness is payable at a variable rate of interest for any future period of 
time or is calculated at a varying rate per annum, and (b) a fixed rate (for a swap), a maximum 
rate (for a cap) or a maximum and minimum rate (for a collar) is specified by the County in such 
agreement, or such Indebtedness, taken together with such agreement, results in a net fixed rate 
payable by the County for such period of time (the “Hedge Fixed Rate”), assuming the County 
and the party(ies) with whom the County has entered into the agreement make all payments 
required to be made by the terms of the agreement, provided that no such agreement may be 
entered into by the County unless any termination or similar payment which may be payable by 
the County thereunder is expressly subordinated to the obligation of the County on the 
Indebtedness, and that the party(ies) with whom the County has entered into the agreement shall 
have the same or higher rating as the Indebtedness to which it relates.  If the rating of the 
Indebtedness or the party(ies) with whom the County has entered into such agreement is 
lowered, such agreement will continue in effect and expire in accordance with its terms. 

“Impact Fees” means all nonrecurring fees that the County collects from developers, 
builders or others, if any, (1) to compensate the County for providing System capacity, and (2) to 
connect facilities related to installation of and expansion to the System. 

“Indebtedness” means Senior Debt and Subordinate Debt. 

“Independent Consulting Engineer” means an independent engineer, who is not an 
employee of the County, experienced in the field of water engineering and licensed and 
registered as a professional engineer in the State. 

“Indirect Participant” means a broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution for which 
the Securities Depository holds Bonds as a securities depository through a Participant. 

“Initial Bonds” means the Bonds authorized under Section 2.01 of this Bond Order and 
the Series Resolution adopted on the date of this Bond Order with respect to such Initial Bonds. 

“Interest Payment Date” means, with respect to any Series of Bonds, each of the interest 
payment dates provided for in the Series Resolution relating to such Series. 

“Net Proceeds” means the gross proceeds from any insurance recovery or recovery in any 
condemnation proceeding remaining after payment of attorneys’ fees, fees and all other expenses 
incurred in collection of such gross proceeds. 

“Net Revenues” means for any period, Revenues less Operating Expenses for such 
period.  

“Operating Expenses” means the County’s operating expenses for the operation, 
maintenance and repair of the System as determined in accordance with GAAP, except as 
modified by this definition. “Operating Expenses” do not include any reserves for operation, 
maintenance or repair or any allowance for depreciation, amortization, interest or similar 
charges, and any debt service payments in respect of Indebtedness. 

“Participant” means a broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution for which the 
Securities Depository holds Bonds as a securities depository. 

67



 

7 

“Paying Agent” means initially the County’s Finance Officer, and if any Paying Agent is 
appointed pursuant to Section 9.02, such Paying Agent and any successor Paying Agent. 

“Pledged Net Revenues” means Receipts received by the County for any period less 
Operating Expenses for such period. 

“Project” means the acquisition, construction and equipping of a reverse osmosis water 
processing plant and related infrastructure, and any other System Improvements financed with 
the proceeds of Bonds. 

“Qualified Investments” means any investments of political subdivisions of the State 
permitted under Section 159-30 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as amended, or any 
successor provision. 

“Rate Covenant” means the obligation of the County to fix, charge and collect rates, fees 
and other charges for the use of and the services furnished by the System sufficient to meet the 
requirements of Section 7.01(a). 

“Rating Agency” or “Rating Agencies” means any securities rating agency, acceptable to 
the Commission, that shall have assigned a rating that is then in effect with respect to the 
Indebtedness. 

“Receipts” means all income, receipts, proceeds and money received in any period from 
or arising out of the operation of the System, including all payments, proceeds, fees, charges, 
rents and all other income derived by or for the County for the use of and for the services and 
facilities furnished by or from the operation or ownership of the System, and all other income 
derived by the County from the operation or ownership of the System, and all rights to receive 
the same, whether in the form of accounts receivable, contract rights or other rights, and the 
proceeds of such rights whether now owned or held or hereafter coming into existence, and any 
proceeds of use and occupancy or business interruption insurance. 

“Reserve Determination Date” means (a) each interest payment date for the Bonds or (b) 
any other date established in writing by a County Representative for the valuation of obligations 
on deposit in any Series Debt Service Reserve Account. 

“Revenue Fund” means the fund created and so designated by Section 5.01 of this Bond 
Order. 

“Revenues” means all revenues in respect of the System determined in accordance with 
GAAP, but excluding: 

(i) Impact Fees and the proceeds of any gifts, grants, bequests, contributions 
or donations, unless the Board adopts a resolution specifically designating any of the 
foregoing as “Revenues” under this Bond Order, 

(ii) the proceeds from the sale and disposition of all or any part of the System, 

68



 

8 

(iii) reimbursements received by the County of advances made by it in respect 
of (A) the Project, (B)  any refundings of Indebtedness and (C) any capital improvements, 

(iv) the investment income realized on, and the income and gains realized 
upon the maturity or sale of, securities held by or on behalf of the County in any funds, 
accounts and subaccounts established by or pursuant to this Bond Order, but only to the 
extent such income and gains as so realized are required to be deposited to some fund, 
account or subaccount other than the Revenue Fund as may be provided in this Bond 
Order or in any Series Resolution, 

(v) Net Proceeds or the proceeds of any other insurance other than any use 
and occupancy or business interruption insurance, 

(vi) the proceeds of any appropriation made by any political subdivision in the 
State or by the State or any State agency unless the proceeds of any such appropriation 
are designated, in whole or in part, as Revenues by the County and are available to pay 
Operating Expenses, 

(vii) the proceeds of any security deposits or moneys received to make refunds 
to users, 

(viii) the proceeds of any Indebtedness, and 

(ix) payments made by the counterparty in connection with any Hedge 
Agreement. 

“Secretary” means the Secretary of the Commission or his or her designated assistant. 

“Securities Depository” means The Depository Trust Company and any substitute for or 
successor to such securities depository that shall maintain a Book-Entry System with respect to 
the Bonds. 

“Securities Depository Nominee” means the Securities Depository or the nominee of 
such Securities Depository in whose name the Bonds to be delivered to such Securities 
Depository during the continuation with such Securities Depository of participation in its 
Book-Entry System are to be registered on the bond register maintained by the Bond Registrar.  

“Senior Debt” means Bonds issued under this Bond Order, and obligations of the County 
incurred pursuant to the State Bond Program. 

“Series” or “Series of Bonds” means a separate series of Bonds issued under this Bond 
Order and a Series Resolution. 

“Series Debt Service Reserve Account” for any Series of Bonds, to the extent required, 
shall have the meaning set forth in the Series Resolution authorizing such Series of Bonds. 

69



 

9 

“Series Debt Service Reserve Requirement” for any Series of Bonds, to the extent 
required shall have the meaning set forth in the Series Resolution authorizing such Series of 
Bonds. 

“Series Resolution” means the resolution of the Board providing for the issuance of any 
Bonds and fixing the details thereof, as further described in Section 3.01. 

“Service Charges” means rates, fees and charges, including service, connection and other 
charges, for the use of, and for the services and facilities furnished or to be furnished by the 
System, as prescribed or fixed by the Board. 

“State” means the State of North Carolina. 

“State Bond Program” means the proceeds of any general obligation bonds issued by the 
State out of which the State provides loans to local governments for water and wastewater capital 
projects. 

“State Revolving Loan Program” means the program established by the Clean Water 
Revolving Loan and Grant Act providing a State source of funding for loans to local 
governments for water and wastewater capital projects. 

“Subordinate Debt” means any bonds, notes, Capital Lease Obligations or other 
obligations issued or entered into in connection with the Project which (a) have pledged to their 
payment Pledged Net Revenues as a subordinate lien pledge after the pledge of Pledged Net 
Revenues to Senior Debt, (b) are expected to be paid from Pledged Net Revenues and not issued 
as Senior Debt or otherwise designated by the County as Subordinate Debt, (c) are funded from 
the State Revolving Loan Program, or (d) are General Obligation System Bonds (unless such 
General Obligation System Bonds are expected to be paid from the County’s general funds, as 
designated by the Board, in which case such General Obligation System Bonds shall not be 
considered Indebtedness). 

“System” means all plants, systems, facilities, equipment or property owned, operated or 
maintained by the County in connection with collection, treatment, pumping and distribution of 
water through its water system serving the mainland portion of the County (but excluding any 
water service serving the Outer Banks portion of the County east of Currituck Sound) from time 
to time, together with all future extensions, improvements, enlargements and additions thereto, 
and all related infrastructure, which is separately presently accounted for in a fund by the County 
in its consolidated Audited Financial Statements, which fund is presently identified as the 
“Mainland Water Fund”. 

“System Improvements” means any construction, reconstruction, improvement, 
enlargement, betterment or extension of the System, including all plants, works, instrumentalities 
and properties used or useful in collecting, treating, pumping and distributing water. 

“Tender Indebtedness” means any indebtedness a feature of which is an option or 
obligation on the part of the holders of such indebtedness to tender all or a portion of such 
indebtedness to a fiduciary for mandatory purchase or redemption prior to the stated maturity 
date of such indebtedness, which may include Variable Rate Indebtedness with such a feature. 

70



 

10 

“Term Bonds” means any Bonds stated to mature on a specified date and required to be 
redeemed in part prior to maturity according to a sinking fund schedule. 

“Variable Rate Indebtedness” means any indebtedness the interest rate on which is not 
established at the time of incurrence at a fixed or constant rate, provided that (a) the maximum 
interest rate on such indebtedness and the maximum rate payable to any credit provider with 
respect to such indebtedness shall be specified at the time of issuance of such indebtedness, 
(b) any credit provider of any credit facility shall cause such indebtedness to be rated by the 
Rating Agencies at least equal to the rating on such indebtedness in one of the two highest long-
term rating categories of such Rating Agencies. 

Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and construed to include correlative 
words of the feminine and neuter genders.  Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, the words 
“bond”, “owner”, “Holder” and “person” shall include corporations and associations, including 
public bodies, limited liability companies, partnerships and other legal entities, as well as natural 
persons.  All references to “Sections” shall mean Sections of this Bond Order unless otherwise 
specifically provided. 

ARTICLE II 
TERMS, EXECUTION, AUTHENTICATION, 

DELIVERY AND REGISTRATION OF BONDS 

Section 2.01.  Authorization Bonds.  Unless otherwise provided in the applicable Series 
Resolution, the Bonds shall be designated “Water System Revenue Bonds,” shall bear an 
appropriate series designation, shall be issuable only as registered Bonds without coupons, 
appropriately numbered in denominations of $100,000 and any multiple of $5,000 in excess 
thereof.  The form, details, delivery and terms of each Series of Bonds and such other matters as 
the Board may deem appropriate shall be set forth in the applicable Series Resolution for such 
Series of Bonds.  Principal, premium, if any, and interest shall be payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America.  Each issue of Senior Debt issue shall be issued pursuant to a Series 
Resolution or evidenced by other documents and shall be equally and ratably secured by the 
pledge of Pledged Net Revenues under this Bond Order, without preference, priority or 
distinction; provided, however, that the moneys in any Series Debt Service Reserve Account 
shall only secure the applicable Series.  

Section 2.02.  Terms of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be issuable as fully registered bonds.  
The Bonds shall be dated, shall bear interest until their payment, such interest to the maturity 
thereof being payable at such rate or rates and at such time or times, and shall be stated to mature 
(subject to the right of prior redemption) at such times as set forth in the Series Resolution 
providing for the issuance of the Bonds.  Each Bond shall be payable with respect to principal, 
redemption premium if any, and interest, in any coin or currency of the United States of America 
which, at the respective dates of payment thereof, is legal tender for the payment of public and 
private debts.  The Bonds shall be redeemable prior to their respective maturities as provided in 
Article IV hereof and as additionally provided in the Series Resolution providing for the issuance 
of the Bonds. 

71



 

11 

Section 2.03.  Execution of Bonds.  Each Bond shall be executed in the name of the 
County by manual or facsimile signatures of the Chairman, or the County Manager, as 
designated by the Board, and the Clerk and shall have impressed or printed thereon the official 
seal of the County or a facsimile thereof; provided, however, that at least one manual signature 
must appear on each Bond (which may be the signature of the Secretary to the Commission’s 
certificate).  Any Bond may be signed, sealed or attested on behalf of the County by any person 
who, at the date of such act, shall hold the proper office, notwithstanding that at the date of such 
Bond or the date of delivery thereof such person shall not have held such office.  In case any 
officer who shall have signed or sealed any of the Bonds shall cease to be such officer of the 
County before the Bonds so signed or sealed shall have been delivered, such Bonds may 
nevertheless be delivered as herein provided as if the person who so signed or sealed such Bonds 
had not ceased to be such officer. 

Section 2.04.  Registration and Transfer of Bonds.  The County shall cause books for the 
registration of and for the registration of transfers of the Bonds as provided in this Bond Order to 
be kept by the Bond Registrar.  The transfer of any Bond shall be registered upon the books kept 
for the registration of and registration of transfers of Bonds upon surrender thereof to the Bond 
Registrar together with an assignment duly executed by the Holder or his attorney or legal 
representative in such form as shall be satisfactory to the Bond Registrar.  Upon any such 
registration of transfer, the County shall execute and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and 
deliver in exchange for such Bond a new Bond of the same series registered in the name of the 
transferee in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of such Bond, 
having maturities corresponding to the principal installments of such Bond and bearing interest 
at the same rate.  Any Bond issued hereunder shall be transferred only to a bank, insurance 
company, similar financial institution or other entity approved by the Commission; provided that 
such restrictions will not apply to any Bond that is secured by a letter of credit resulting in a 
rating of A or better by any Rating Agency. 

In all cases in which the Bonds shall be transferred hereunder, the County shall execute, 
the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver at the earliest practicable time Bonds in 
accordance with the provisions of this Bond Order.  The County and the Bond Registrar may 
make a charge for every such transfer of Bonds sufficient to reimburse them for any tax or other 
governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such transfer.  Neither the County nor 
the Bond Registrar shall be required to make any such registration of transfer of Bonds during 
the fifteen (15) days immediately preceding an interest payment date on the Bonds or in the case 
of any proposed redemption of Bonds, immediately preceding the date of mailing of notice of 
such redemption, or after such Bond or any portion thereof has been selected for redemption. 

Section 2.05.  Ownership of Bonds.  As to any Bond, the person in whose name the same 
shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, 
and payment of or on account of the principal of and the interest on any such Bond shall be made 
only to the Holder thereof or his legal representative.  All such payments shall be valid and 
effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond including the interest thereon to 
the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

Section 2.06.  Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost Bonds.  In case any outstanding Bond 
shall become mutilated or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the County may prepare and cause to be 

72



 

12 

executed, authenticated and delivered a new Bond of like tenor, number and amount as the Bond 
so mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated Bond and 
upon surrender of such mutilated Bond or in lieu of and substitution for the Bond destroyed, 
stolen or lost, upon the owner furnishing to the satisfaction of the Bond Registrar, the 
Commission and the County evidence that such Bond has been destroyed, stolen or lost, proof of 
the ownership thereof, a surety Bond or other indemnification instrument in twice the face 
amount of the Bond or in such other amount required by applicable law, payment of the cost of 
preparing and issuing any new Bonds, including the reasonable expenses and charges of the 
County and the Bond Registrar in connection therewith and evidence of compliance with such 
other reasonable regulations as the Bond Registrar and Board may prescribe.  All Bonds 
surrendered hereunder shall be surrendered to the Bond Registrar and shall be cancelled.  All 
Bonds issued in accordance with this Section shall be signed by the Chairman and the Clerk who 
are in office at the time and shall contain a recital to the effect that they are issued in exchange 
for or in place of certain Bonds and are to be deemed a part of the same series as such Bonds. 

Section 2.07.  Authentication of Bonds.  The Bonds shall bear a certificate of 
authentication and shall not be valid until the Bond Registrar shall have executed the certificate 
of authentication and inserted the date of authentication thereon.  The Bond Registrar shall 
authenticate each Bond with the signature of an authorized officer or employee, but it shall not 
be necessary for the same person to authenticate all of the Bonds or all of the Bonds of any 
Series.  Only such authenticated Bonds shall be entitled to any right or benefit under this Bond 
Order, and such certificate on any Bond issued hereunder shall be conclusive evidence that the 
Bond has been duly issued and is secured by the provisions hereof. 

Section 2.08.  Nonpresentment of Bonds.  If any Bond is not presented for payment when 
the principal thereof becomes due (whether at maturity, by sinking fund redemption, upon 
acceleration or call for redemption or otherwise), all liability of the County to the holder thereof 
for the payment of such Bond shall be completely discharged if moneys sufficient to pay such 
Bond and the interest due thereon shall be held by the Paying Agent for the benefit of such 
holder, and thereupon it shall be the duty of the Paying Agent to hold such moneys, subject to the 
following paragraph, without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of such holder, who 
shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such moneys for any claim of whatever nature on his 
part under this Bond Order or on, or with respect to, such Bond. 

All moneys which the County shall have set aside for the purpose of paying any Bonds 
either at the maturity thereof or upon call for redemption shall be held in trust for the respective 
Holders of such Bonds.  Any moneys which shall be set aside and which shall remain unclaimed 
by the Holders of such Bonds for the period of five years after the date on which such Bonds 
shall have become payable shall be treated as abandoned property pursuant to the provisions of 
G.S. 116B-53, and the County shall report and remit this property to the Escheat Fund according 
to the requirements of Article 1 of Chapter 116B of the North Carolina General Statutes.  
Thereafter the Holders of such Bonds shall look only to the Escheat Fund for payment and then 
only to the extent of the amounts so received without any interest thereon, and the County shall 
have no responsibility with respect to such moneys 

Section 2.09.  Book-Entry System.  At the County’s election, Bonds of any Series may be 
issued pursuant to a Book-Entry System administered by the Securities Depository with no 

73



 

13 

physical distribution of Bond certificates to be made except as provided in this Section.  In the 
event a Book-Entry System is utilized, any provision of this Bond Order, and Series Resolution 
or the Bonds requiring physical delivery of the shall, with respect to any Bonds held under the 
Book-Entry System, be deemed to be satisfied by a notation on the registration books by the 
Bond Registrar that such Bonds are subject to the Book-Entry System. 

So long as a Book-Entry System is being used for any Series of Bonds, one Bond of such 
Series in the aggregate principal amount of each maturity of Bonds of such Series registered in 
the name of the Securities Depository Nominee will be issued and deposited with the Securities 
Depository and held in its custody.  The Book-Entry System will be maintained by the Securities 
Depository and the Participants and Indirect Participants and will evidence beneficial ownership 
of the Bonds in authorized denominations, with registration of transfers of ownership effected on 
the records of the Securities Depository, the Participants and the Indirect Participants pursuant to 
rules and procedures established by the Securities Depository, the Participants and the Indirect 
Participants.  The principal of, interest and any premium on each Bond held in the Book-Entry 
System shall be payable to the Securities Depository Nominee or any other person appearing on 
the registration books as the registered Holder of such Bond or his/her registered assigns or legal 
representative at the principal office of the Bond Registrar.  So long as the Book-Entry System is 
in effect with respect to a Series of Bonds, the Securities Depository will be recognized as the 
Holder of the Bonds of such Series for all purposes.  Transfer of principal, interest and any 
premium payments or notices to Participants and Indirect Participants will be the responsibility 
of the Securities Depository, and transfer of principal, interest and any premium payments or 
notices to Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of the Participants and the Indirect 
Participants.  No other party will be responsible or liable for such transfers of payments or 
notices or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing such records maintained by the Securities 
Depository, the Participants or the Indirect Participants.  While the Securities Depository 
Nominee or the Securities Depository, as the case may be, is the registered owner of the Bonds 
of any Series, notwithstanding any other provisions set forth herein, payments of principal of, 
redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds of such Series shall be made to the 
Securities Depository Nominee or the Securities Depository, as the case may be, by wire transfer 
in immediately available funds to the account of such Holder as may be specified in the 
registration books maintained by the Bond Registrar or by such other method of payment as the 
Bond Registrar may determine to be necessary or advisable with the concurrence of the 
Securities Depository. 

If (y) the Securities Depository determines not to continue to administer a Book-Entry 
System for the Bonds of any Series, or (z) the County, with the consent of the Paying  Agent, 
determines that continuation of a Book-Entry System of evidence and transfer of ownership of 
the Bonds of any Series would adversely affect the interests of the Beneficial Owners thereof, the 
Book-Entry System will be discontinued, in which case the County and the Bond  will deliver 
replacement Bonds of such Series in the form of fully registered certificates in authorized 
denominations in exchange for the outstanding Bonds of such Series. 

ARTICLE III 
ISSUANCE OF BONDS 

74



 

14 

Section 3.01.  Conditions for Issuing Bonds.  Before the issuance and authentication of 
any Series of Bonds by the Bond Registrar, the County shall file with the Bond Registrar the 
following: 

(a) A certified copy of the Bond Order; 

(b) An original executed counterpart of a Series Resolution which (1) shall include:  
(A) provisions authorizing the issuance, fixing the principal amount and setting forth the details 
of such Bonds, including their date, the interest rate or rates and the manner in which the Bonds 
are to bear and pay interest, the principal and interest payment dates of the Bonds, the purposes 
for which such Bonds are being issued, the manner of numbering of such Bonds, the Series 
designation, the denominations, the maturity dates and principal maturities, the principal 
amounts required to be redeemed pursuant to any mandatory redemption provisions or the 
manner for determining such principal amounts, any provisions for optional or extraordinary 
redemption before maturity, any provisions regarding a Series Debt Service Reserve Account; 
and (B) provisions for the application of the proceeds of such Bonds; and (2) may include: (A) 
provisions for credit facilities and for other funds and accounts to be established with respect to 
such Bonds; (B) provisions necessary or expedient for the issuance of Bonds bearing interest at a 
variable rate or other manner of bearing interest, including remarketing provisions, liquidity 
facility provisions and provisions for establishing the variable rate and converting to a fixed rate; 
(C) provisions for entering into Hedge Agreements, guarantees or other arrangements to limit 
interest rate risks; (D) in the case of refunding Bonds, provisions calling for redemption on 
payment of the Indebtedness to be refunded, and (E) such other provisions as the County may 
deem appropriate. 

(c) A certificate signed by the County Manager or Authorized Representative of the 
County and dated the date of such issuance, to the effect that: 

(1) Either (A) upon and immediately following such issuance, no Event of 
Default has occurred which has not been cured or waived, and no event or condition 
exists which, with the giving of notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event 
of Default or (B) if any such event or condition is happening or existing, specifying such 
event or condition, stating that the County will act with due diligence to correct such 
event or condition after the issuance of such Bonds, and describing in reasonable detail 
the actions to be taken by the County toward such correction; and 

(2) All required approvals, limitations, conditions and provisions precedent to 
the issuance of such Series of Bonds have been obtained, observed, met and satisfied. 

(d) All policies or certificates of insurance (and any amendments to such policies) or 
evidence of appropriate substitute arrangements required by this Bond Order in connection with 
the issuance of such Bonds and a certificate of the Finance Officer or County Representative that 
all policies (and amendments) or appropriate substitute arrangements required to be in effect at 
that time are in full force and effect and are in such forms as necessary to comply with and 
satisfy all requirements of this Bond Order. 

75



 

15 

(e) An Opinion or Opinions of Counsel, subject to customary exceptions and 
qualifications, substantially to the effect that the Series Resolution for such Series of Bonds has 
been duly adopted by the Board at a meeting duly called and held and complies in all respects 
with the requirements of this Bond Order. 

(f) An opinion of Bond Counsel, subject to customary exceptions and qualifications, 
substantially to the effect that the issuance of such Bonds has been duly authorized, that such 
Bonds are valid and binding limited obligations of the County, and with respect to Bonds to be 
issued on a tax-exempt basis, that the interest on such Bonds is excludable from gross income for 
purposes of Federal income taxation. 

(g) If such Bonds are issued to pay Costs of the Project, except in the case of the 
initial issuance of Bonds issued under this Bond Order, the following: 

(1) Evidence that upon issuance of such Bonds, each Series Debt Service 
Reserve Account within the Debt Service Reserve Fund will contain the applicable Series 
Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any; and 

(2) Either (A) a certificate of the County Manager, the Finance Officer or 
County Representative, stating that based on the County’s financial records for any 12 
consecutive months (the “Test Period”) prior to the issuance of such Bonds the County 
would have been able to meet the Rate Covenant in Section 7.01(a), taking into account 
(i) the maximum Annual Debt Service on the proposed additional Series of Bonds in the 
current or any future Fiscal Year, and (ii) the rates, fees and other charges which are in 
effect and any future changes therein as have been approved by the Board at the time of 
the delivery of the proposed additional Series of Bonds, or (B) a written statement of the 
County Manager, the Finance Officer or County Representative, which projects 
Operating Expenses, Revenues and Net Revenues for two full Fiscal Years following the 
anticipated completion of the System Improvements to be financed with such proposed 
additional Series of Bonds and which demonstrates that, on the basis of such projections, 
the County can comply with the Rate Covenant, taking into account those rates, fees and 
other charges which are in effect at the time of the delivery of the proposed additional 
Series of Bonds and any future changes therein as have been approved by the Board at 
the time of the delivery of the proposed additional Series of Bonds. 

(h) Completion Bonds may be issued without limitation; provided, however, that 
prior to the issuance of such Completion Bonds, the County will furnish to the Bond Registrar 
(a) a certificate of a Consulting Engineer estimating the costs of completing the facilities for 
which such Completion Bonds are to be issued and (b) a certificate of the County Manager, the 
Finance Officer or County Representative, certifying that the amount of such Completion Bonds 
to be issued will be sufficient, together with other funds, if applicable, to complete construction 
of the facilities as estimated by the Consulting Engineering with respect to which such 
Completion Bonds are to be issued. 

(i) If any Bonds are issued to refund any Indebtedness, the following: 

76



 

16 

(1) Evidence that the County has made provisions as required by this Bond 
Order or the documents providing for issuance of Subordinate Debt for the payment or 
redemption of all Indebtedness to be refunded; 

(2) Either (A) a written determination by the County Manager, the Finance 
Officer or County Representative, or other evidence satisfactory to the Bond Registrar 
that after the issuance of such Bonds and the provision for payment or redemption of all 
Indebtedness to be refunded, the Annual Debt Service requirements for each Fiscal Year 
in which there will be Outstanding Indebtedness not to be refunded will not increase 
more than 5% of what the Annual Debt Service requirements for such Fiscal Year would 
have been on all Senior Debt immediately prior to the issuance of such Bonds, including 
the Indebtedness to be refunded (if such Indebtedness was Senior Debt), and that the final 
maturity of Indebtedness being refunded has not been extended, or (B) a certificate as 
described in subsection (g)(2) of this Section. 

(j) A request and authorization of the County, signed by the County Manager or 
County Representative, to the Bond Registrar to authenticate and deliver such Bonds to the 
purchaser upon receipt for the account of the County of a specified sum plus accrued interest to 
the date of delivery. 

(k) Written evidence of approval by the Commission as required by Section 3.02. 

Except for the requirements of subsection (c) of this Section (which may be waived by 
the purchasers of such Bonds by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing signed by 
such purchasers), none of the requirements in this Section may be waived without the consent of 
the Commission and the holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the 
Outstanding Bonds. 

Section 3.02.  Approval by Local Government Commission.  No Bonds shall be issued 
unless they are approved and sold by the Commission and until the Secretary shall have endorsed 
thereon a certificate evidencing approval in accordance with the Act. 

Section 3.03.  Subordinate Debt.  Notwithstanding anything in this Bond Order to the 
contrary, the County may at any time issue Subordinate Debt so long as rates, fees and charges 
are in effect or scheduled to go into effect to meet the Rate Covenant immediately after the 
issuance of such Subordinate Debt.  Subordinate Debt may not be accelerated if any Senior Debt 
is outstanding.  The proceedings approving the issuance or execution of any Subordinate Debt 
shall expressly provide such debt is subordinate to Senior Debt. 

Section 3.04.  Bond Anticipation Notes.  The County is authorized to issue, in 
anticipation of the receipt of the net proceeds of any Bonds, System revenue Bond Anticipation 
Notes for the purpose of providing funds to pay the Costs of the Project or any System 
Improvements.  The payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on 
such Notes shall be secured by a pledge, charge and lien upon the proceeds of any Bonds, if and 
when issued, and by the pledge of the Pledged Net Revenues pursuant to Section 5.02.  All 
covenants, obligations and agreements of the County contained in this Bond Order shall be 

77



 

17 

deemed to be covenants, obligations and agreements of the County with the Holders of any Bond 
Anticipation Notes hereafter issued. 

ARTICLE IV 
REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY 

Section 4.01.  Terms and Conditions.  The Bonds, and the respective installments of 
principal corresponding thereto, shall be subject to redemption, both in whole and in part, at such 
times and prices, as may be provided by the Series Resolution authorizing the issuance of such 
Bonds.  The Bonds of any Series to be called for redemption shall be selected as provided in the 
applicable Series Resolution.  The Bond Registrar shall treat each Bond of a denomination 
greater than the minimum denomination authorized in the applicable Series Resolution as 
representing the number of separate Bonds of such minimum denomination as can be obtained 
by dividing the Bond’s actual principal amount by such minimum denomination. 

Section 4.02.  Notice of Redemption and Prepayment.  Unless otherwise provided in the 
applicable Series Resolution, the Bond Registrar, upon being satisfied as to the payment of its 
expenses, shall send notice of the call for redemption, identifying the Bonds or portions thereof 
to be redeemed, not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the redemption date, (a) by 
facsimile, registered or certified mail or overnight express delivery, to the Commission and to the 
holder of each Bond to be redeemed at his address as it appears on the registration books kept by 
the Bond Registrar, (b) by facsimile, registered or certified mail or overnight express delivery, to 
all organizations registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as securities 
depositories, and (c) to each nationally recognized municipal securities information repository 
designated as such by the Securities and Exchange Commission.  No such notice with respect to 
mandatory sinking fund redemptions is required to be sent to the Commission. 

Failure to give any notice specified in (a) above, or any defect therein, shall not affect the 
validity of any proceedings for the redemption of any Bond with respect to which no such failure 
or defect has occurred.  Failure to give any notice specified in (b) or (c) above, or any defect 
therein, shall not affect the validity of any proceedings for the redemption of any Bonds with 
respect to which the notice specified in (a) above is correctly given. 

Any notice mailed or provided herein shall conclusively be presumed to have been given 
whether or not actually received by any Bondholder. 

Section 4.03.  Payment of Redeemed Bonds.  Notice having been given in the manner 
provided, the Bonds so called for redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption 
date so designated at the redemption price set forth in such notice.  Upon presentation and 
surrender of the Bonds so called for redemption at the place of payment specified in such notice, 
together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, duly executed 
by the Holder or his duly authorized attorney, such Bonds shall be paid at the aforementioned 
redemption price.  In case part but not all of an outstanding bond shall be selected for 
redemption, the Holder thereof or his attorney or legal representative shall present and surrender 
such Bond to the Bond Registrar for payment of the applicable redemption price and the County 
shall execute and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver to or upon the order of such 
Holder or his legal representative, without charge therefor, for the unredeemed portion of the 

78



 

18 

principal amount of the Bond so surrendered, a registered Bond of the same series and maturity, 
bearing interest at the same rate and of any authorized denomination. 

If, on the redemption date, moneys for payment of the redemption price of all the Bonds 
to be redeemed shall be available therefor at the place of payment specified in the notice of 
redemption, then from and after the redemption date, the Bonds or the installments of principal 
thereof so called for redemption shall cease to bear interest.  All moneys held for the redemption 
of particular Bond or for the prepayment of particular installments thereof shall be held in trust 
for the account of the Holders of the Bonds so to be redeemed or prepaid, subject to the 
provisions of Section 5.08. 

If moneys shall not be available on the redemption date, such Bonds shall continue to 
bear interest until paid at the same rate as they would have borne had they not been called for 
redemption. 

The Paying Agent shall provide for a mandatory sinking fund redemption of any Term 
Bonds in accordance with the schedules set forth in the Series Resolution for such Bonds; 
provided, however, that on or before the forty-fifth (45th) day next preceding any such sinking 
fund payment date, the County may: 

(1) deliver to the Bond Registrar for cancellation Term Bonds of the maturity 
required to be redeemed on such sinking fund payment date in any aggregate principal 
amount desired; or 

(2) instruct the Bond Registrar to apply a credit against the County’s next 
sinking fund redemption obligation for any such Term Bonds that previously have been 
redeemed (other than through the operation of the sinking fund) and canceled but not 
theretofore applied as a credit against any sinking fund redemption obligation. 

Upon the occurrence of any of the events described in the subsections (1) or (2) of this 
Section, the Paying Agent shall credit against the County’s sinking fund redemption obligation 
on the next sinking fund payment date the amount of such Term Bonds so delivered or 
previously redeemed.  Any principal amount of such Term Bonds in excess of the principal 
amount required to be redeemed on such sinking fund payment date shall be similarly credited in 
such order as may be determined by the County Manager or the Finance Officer against future 
payments to the Sinking Fund Account and shall similarly reduce the principal amount of the 
Term Bonds of the applicable Series to be redeemed on the next sinking fund payment date.  
Within seven days of receipt of such Term Bonds or instructions to apply as a credit, any 
amounts remaining in the Sinking Fund Account in excess of the amount required to fulfill the 
remaining required sinking fund redemption obligation on the next sinking fund payment date 
shall be used in such manner as determined at the direction of the County. 

Section 4.04.  Cancellation of Redeemed Bonds.  All Bonds redeemed prior to maturity 
shall be cancelled forthwith. 

Section 4.05.  Purchase in Lieu of Redemption.  The County may purchase or cause to be 
purchased any Bonds of any particular Series or maturity in lieu of redemption of such Bonds (in 
which event any Bonds so purchased shall be cancelled as provided in Sections 2.08 and 4.04) or 

79



 

19 

for any other purpose pursuant to written instructions given by the County to the Bond Registrar.  
Such purchases shall be made in such manner as directed by the County.  The County or the 
Paying Agent shall pay the purchase price of such Bonds together with accrued interest thereon 
from such funds as may be available therefor pursuant to this Bond Order, any Series Resolution, 
or as otherwise may be made available by the County. 

ARTICLE V 
REVENUES AND FUNDS 

Section 5.01.  Creation of Funds and Accounts.  There are hereby established the 
following funds and Accounts to be held by the Paying Agent as indicated below: 

(a) County of Currituck Water System Revenue Fund; 

(b) County of Currituck Water System Revenue Bond Fund, in which there shall be 
established an Interest Account, a Principal Account and a Sinking Fund Account, and a separate 
subaccount in each such Account with respect to each Series of Bonds issued hereunder, as 
applicable; 

(c) County of Currituck Water System Debt Service Reserve Fund, in which there 
shall be established a Series Debt Service Reserve Account for each Series of Bonds which has a 
Series Debt Service Reserve Requirement; 

(d) County of Currituck Water System Subordinate Debt Account. 

The Funds and accounts described in 5.01(a) through (d) shall be held by the Finance 
Officer so long as (i) the County has not failed to be in compliance with the rate covenant 
described in Section 7.01 for two consecutive years, or (ii) an Event of Default has not occurred.  
If (i) or (ii) applies, such Funds and accounts shall be transferred to a Paying Agent (other than 
the Finance Officer) appointed in accordance with Section 9.02.  So long as the Finance Officer 
holds the Funds and accounts, all money received for deposit in such Funds and accounts shall 
be held by a Depositary on behalf of the County.   The money in all of the funds, accounts and 
subaccounts established pursuant to this Article V shall be held in trust and applied as hereinafter 
provided and, pending such application, the money in the Bond Fund and the accounts and 
subaccounts therein shall be subject to a pledge, charge and lien in favor of the Holders of the 
respective Series of Bonds issued and Outstanding under this Bond Order and for the further 
security of such Holders, except as otherwise provided herein or in any Series Resolution. 

Section 5.02.  Pledge of Pledged Net Revenues.  The County hereby pledges the Pledged 
Net Revenues to secure the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest 
on the Bonds.  The Receipts, as received by the County, shall immediately be subject to the lien 
of this pledge without any physical delivery thereof or further act and the lien of this pledge shall 
have priority over any or all other obligations and liabilities of the County, including any general 
obligation bonds or notes issued in anticipation thereof, heretofore or hereafter issued by the 
County for the purpose of providing water systems or facilities and the lien of this pledge shall 
be valid and binding as against all parties having claims of any kind in tort, contract or otherwise 
against the County irrespective of whether such parties have notice thereof. 

80



 

20 

Section 5.03.  Application of Receipts Received by the County.  All Receipts collected by 
or on behalf of the County shall be deposited by the County with the Paying Agent as soon as 
practicable following the receipt thereof and held by the Paying Agent in the Revenue Fund.  
The County shall pay Operating Expenses from the moneys in the Revenue Fund in accordance 
with the Annual Budget; provided, however, that nothing in this Bond Order shall prevent the 
County from paying any Operating Expenses from any other funds legally available to the 
County for such purpose.  Pledged Net Revenues shall be applied by the County in accordance 
with Section 5.04. 

Any balance remaining in the Revenue Fund on June 30 of each Fiscal Year may be 
transferred by the County in the following Fiscal Year, by resolution of the Board, to the general 
fund or any other fund or account specified by the County; provided, however, that there shall be 
no existing Event of Default hereunder; and provided, further, that no such transfer shall be made 
unless no deficiency exists in any fund, account or subaccount as of such June 30 and there is 
filed with the Board a certificate certifying that, in such County Representative’s opinion, the 
amount to be so transferred will not materially adversely affect the ability of the County to pay in 
such following Fiscal Year the Operating Expenses, make the payments required by Section 5.04 
and meet all other financial obligations imposed by this Bond Order. 

Section 5.04.  Withdrawals from the Revenue Fund.  Throughout the month but no later 
than the last Business Day of each month, the Finance Officer shall debit from the Revenue Fund 
amounts sufficient to pay Operating Expenses during such month.  Pledged Net Revenues shall 
be disbursed on the last Business Day of each month in the following order (except that no 
distinction or preference shall exist in the use in an amount sufficient to make the following 
deposits of Pledged Net Revenues for payment into the Interest Account, the Principal Account 
or the Sinking Fund Account of the Bond Fund, such accounts being on a parity with each other 
as to payment from Pledged Net Revenues): 

(a) To the subaccounts established for each Series of Bonds in the Interest Account, 
Principal Account and Sinking Fund Account in the Bond Fund the amounts, if any, set forth in 
the applicable Series Resolution with respect to each Series of Bonds and such deposits shall be 
adjusted to give credit for any other available money then in such interest account or subaccount 
or otherwise available and designated to be used for such purpose, and (ii) to the appropriate 
party, as determined by the County, the amount, if any, required for the payment of interest, 
principal and sinking fund payments on loans under the State Revolving Loan Program.  Moneys 
in the Interest Account shall be used to pay interest required to be paid on any Interest Payment 
Date related to such Series of Bonds.  Moneys in the Principal Account shall be used to pay 
principal required to be paid on any principal payment date related to such Series of Bonds.  
Moneys in the Sinking Fund Account shall be used to pay the amount required for mandatory 
sinking fund redemption on the applicable redemption date related to such Series of Bond. 

(b) To the applicable Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund with respect to each 
Senior Debt issue the amounts, if any, necessary to restore the amount on deposit therein to the 
related Series Debt Service Reserve Requirement. 

(c) To the Subordinate Debt Account, the amount equal to the deposits to such funds 
and accounts required by the related Series Resolution or other documents evidencing such debt. 

81



 

21 

If the County fails to make the deposits required by subsection (a) through (c) of this 
Section, the Paying Agent shall give notice of such failure to the County Manager and the 
Commission within 10 days of such failure. 

In the event the balance on deposit in the Principal Account, Sinking Fund Account or the 
Interest Account is insufficient for the purposes thereof, the Paying Agent shall transfer for 
deposit in such Accounts, such amounts as may be necessary therefor from the applicable Series 
Debt Service Reserve Account pursuant to Section 5.07.  In addition, in the month following a 
month in which the County has failed to make any deposit or payment required by subsections 
(a), (b) and (c) of this Section 5.04, the County shall deposit or pay, in addition to the amounts 
then due, but only from Pledged Net Revenues, an amount sufficient to cure the deficiency in 
deposit or payment in the prior month unless such deficiency is cured by a transfer, pursuant to 
the terms of this Bond Order, of money to such fund or account. 

In the event the amount on deposit in the Interest Account on any interest payment date 
shall exceed the amount required to pay interest on the Senior Debt on the next interest payment 
date, the County shall, if the amount on deposit in any Series Debt Service Reserve Account is 
less than the applicable Series Debt Service Reserve Requirement, instruct the Paying Agent to 
transfer such excess to any Series Debt Service Reserve Account to the extent of such deficiency, 
and otherwise retain any remaining excess in the Interest Account or instruct the Paying Agent to 
transfer any remaining excess to the related Principal Account to be credited against subsequent 
required deposits thereto, as determined by the County Manager or his designee. 

In the event the amount on deposit in the Principal Account or Sinking Fund Account on 
any principal payment or mandatory redemption date shall exceed the amount required on such 
date to pay Bonds at maturity or to redeem Term Bonds pursuant to mandatory sinking fund 
requirements, the County shall, if the amount on deposit in any Series Debt Service Reserve 
Account is less than the applicable Series Debt Service Reserve Requirement, instruct the Paying 
Agent to transfer such excess to the Series Debt Service Reserve Account to the extent of such 
deficiency, and otherwise retain such excess in the Principal Account or instruct the Paying 
Agent to transfer such excess to the Interest Account to be credited against subsequent required 
deposits thereto, as determined by the Finance Officer or his designee. 

Section 5.05.  Application of Moneys in Bond Fund.  All moneys in the Bond Fund shall 
be held in trust for the payment of the principal of and the interest on the Bonds and no amount 
shall be withdrawn from or paid out of the Bond Fund except as provided herein. 

On each Interest Payment Date or on such other date as may be specified in the 
applicable Series Resolution, the Paying Agent shall withdraw from the applicable subaccount in 
the Interest Account and pay the amounts required to pay interest on the respective Bonds.  On 
each principal payment date, the Paying Agent shall withdraw from the applicable subaccount in 
the Principal Account and pay the amount necessary to pay the principal of such Bonds at their 
respective maturities.  Money held for the credit of the subaccounts in the Sinking Fund Account 
shall be applied during each Fiscal Year to the retirement, purchase, redemption or payment of 
Term Bonds in the manner provided in the applicable Series Resolution. 

82



 

22 

Section 5.06.  Application of Moneys in Debt Service Reserve Fund. 

(a) Each Series Resolution shall set forth whether an Account in the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund is required to be funded in the amount of the applicable Series Debt Service 
Reserve Requirement on the Closing Date of such Series of Bonds.  To the extent that such 
Account shall be required to be funded pursuant to the terms of a Series Resolution, amounts in 
each Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be used to pay debt service on the related 
Series of Bonds on the date such debt service is due when insufficient funds for that purpose are 
available in the Bond Fund; provided, however, that all amounts in an Account in the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund shall be used, together with other amounts available for such purpose 
hereunder, to provide for payment of the related Series of Bonds when the aggregate of such 
amounts is sufficient for such purpose.  Amounts in each Account of the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund shall be pledged to Holders of the related Series. 

(b) In lieu of or in addition to cash or investments, at any time the County may cause 
to be deposited to the credit of any Series Debt Service Reserve Account any form of credit 
facility, including a surety bond, in the amount of all or a portion of the Series Debt Service 
Reserve Requirement, irrevocably payable to the Paying Agent as beneficiary for the holders of 
the respective Series of Bonds, which credit facility shall be satisfactory to the holders of such 
Series of Bonds. 

If a disbursement is made pursuant to any credit facility, the County shall either (a) 
reinstate the maximum limits of such credit facility, or (b) deposit to the credit of the applicable 
Series Debt Service Reserve Account moneys in the amount of the disbursement made under 
such credit facility from available Revenues.  To the extent such moneys are still insufficient, 
then the County shall transfer to the Paying Agent from any legally available moneys the amount 
of such deficiency as soon as practicable and in any event within one year by depositing one-
twelfth of the required amount each month. 

Amounts, if any, released from any Series Debt Service Reserve Account upon deposit to 
the credit of such Account of a credit facility shall, upon designation by a County 
Representative, accompanied by an opinion of Bond Counsel that such use will not adversely 
affect the exclusion from gross income of interest on the respective Series of Bonds, be 
transferred (a) to the subaccount of the Principal Account with respect to such Series of Bonds 
and used to pay principal of or to redeem such Series of Bonds, or (b) to the County to be used to 
pay all or any portion of the Costs of the Project designated by the County and approved by 
Bond Counsel. 

(c) On or within five days after each Reserve Determination Date, the Paying Agent 
shall determine if the balance on deposit in each Series Debt Service Reserve Account was, as of 
the Reserve Determination Date, at least equal to the applicable Series Debt Service Reserve 
Requirement.  In making such determination, any obligations in the Series Debt Service Reserve 
Account shall be valued in accordance with Section 6.03. 

In the event the amount on deposit in any Series Debt Service Reserve Account is less 
than the applicable Series Debt Service Reserve Requirement, the Paying Agent shall transfer 
moneys to such Series Debt Service Reserve Account to restore such Series Debt Service 

83



 

23 

Reserve Requirement from available Revenues.  In the event the amount on deposit in a Series 
Debt Service Reserve Account is less than the applicable Series Debt Service Reserve 
Requirement after such transfer, then the County shall transfer to the Paying Agent from any 
legally available moneys the amount of such deficiency as soon as practicable and in any event 
within one year by depositing one-twelfth of the required amount each month. 

In the event the amount on deposit in a Series Debt Service Reserve Account exceeds the 
applicable Series Debt Service Reserve Requirement, the Paying Agent shall (a) transfer such 
excess to the Bond Fund to be deposited in the related Series subaccount in the Interest Account 
and the related Series subaccount in the Principal Account to the extent amounts in such 
subaccounts are less than the amounts required to be paid on the next interest payment date and 
principal payment date, respectively, (b) thereafter transfer such excess to the Bond Fund to be 
deposited, as directed by a County Representative, in the Interest Account or the Principal 
Account to the extent amounts in such accounts are less than the amounts required to be paid on 
the next interest payment date and principal payment date, respectively, and (c) transfer such 
excess to the County to be used to pay all or any portion of the Costs of the Project designated by 
the County and approved by Bond Counsel; provided, however, that if a County Representative 
calls for a Reserve Determination Date in connection with the refunding and/or defeasance of a 
Series of Bonds, then the Paying Agent is authorized to take such refunding and/or defeasance 
into account in valuing the Series Debt Service Reserve Account securing such Series of Bonds 
and is further authorized to apply the amount of any surplus arising from such valuation to 
reduce the amount of the refunding bonds and/or to provide for the defeasance of the Series of 
Bonds in such manner as the Authorized Representative of the County may direct. 

Section 5.07.  Disposition of Balances in Funds after Payment of Indebtedness.  After the 
principal of and premium, if any, and interest on all of the Indebtedness, any amounts required to 
be paid pursuant to the terms of this Bond Order or any Series Resolution and all expenses and 
charges herein required have been paid or provision therefor has been made, the Paying Agent 
shall pay to the County any balance remaining in any fund then held by it. 

Section 5.08.  Unclaimed Moneys.  All moneys which the County shall have withdrawn 
from the Bond Fund and Debt Service Reserve Fund or shall have withdrawn from any other 
source and set aside for the purpose of paying any of the Bonds hereby secured shall be subject 
to Section 2.08 hereof. 

Section 5.09.  Cancellation.  All Bonds paid, redeemed or purchased either at or before 
maturity, shall, at the direction of the County, be delivered to the Paying Agent or to the County 
when such payment, redemption or purchase is made and such Bonds shall thereupon be 
cancelled.  All Bonds cancelled under any of the provisions of this Bond Order shall be 
destroyed by the Bond Registrar which shall execute a certificate in duplicate describing the 
Bonds so destroyed, and one executed certificate shall be filed with the County and the second 
executed certificate shall be retained by the Bond Registrar. 

84



 

24 

Section 5.10.  Revenues Received and Applied by the Paying Agent. 

(a) If the Paying Agent shall have notice, pursuant to Section 7.01, that an Event of 
Default shall have occurred and be continuing, or if the Pledged Net Revenues shall for two 
consecutive Fiscal Years be less than the sum required pursuant to Section 7.01, the County shall 
designate a bank or trust company as the Paying Agent as required by Section 9.02 hereof, and 
all funds created under Section 5.01, including the Revenue Fund, shall thereafter be held by the 
Paying Agent, and thereafter the County shall deposit all Receipts, as received, with the Paying 
Agent. 

(b) The Paying Agent shall apply such Receipts first in such amounts as it shall 
determine to pay Operating Expenses and thereafter to make the deposits required of the County 
pursuant to Section 5.04. 

(c) All Receipts shall continue to be so deposited with the Paying Agent until all 
Events of Default hereunder have been cured to the satisfaction of the Paying Agent or provision 
deemed by the Paying Agent to be adequate shall have been made therefore and the Pledged Net 
Revenues shall be not less than the sum required pursuant to Section 7.01, as the case may be, 
whereupon (i) the Receipts held by the Paying Agent shall be transferred promptly to the 
Revenue Fund held by the County and (ii) the Receipts shall again be deposited when received in 
the Revenue Fund held by the County. 

ARTICLE VI 
SECURITY FOR DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENT OF FUNDS 

Section 6.01.  Security for Deposits.  All moneys deposited with the County or any other 
Depositary designated by the Board hereunder in excess of the amount guaranteed by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation or other Federal agency shall be continuously secured, for the 
benefit of the County and the Holders of the Bonds, in such manner as may then be required or 
permitted by applicable state or Federal laws and regulations regarding the security for, or 
granting a preference in the case of, the deposit of trust funds, including applicable regulations of 
the Commission. 

Section 6.02.  Investment of Funds.  Moneys held for the credit of the Revenue Fund the 
Bond Fund shall, as nearly as may be practicable, be continuously invested and reinvested, at the 
County’s direction, in Qualified Investments which shall mature, or which shall be subject to 
redemption by the holder thereof at the option of such holder, not later than the respective dates 
when the moneys held for the credit of each such Fund or Account will be required for the 
purposes intended.  Moneys held for the credit of the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall, as nearly 
as may be practicable, be continuously invested and reinvested in Qualified Investments which 
shall mature, or which shall be subject to redemption by the holder thereof at the option of such 
holder, not later than three years after the date of such investment.  Obligations and certificates 
of deposit purchased as investments of moneys in any such Fund or Account shall be deemed at 
all times to be part of such Fund or Account, and the interest accruing thereon and any profit 
realized therefrom shall be credited to such Fund or Account, and any loss resulting therefrom 
shall be charged to such Fund or Account.  The County shall sell at the best price obtainable or 
present for redemption any obligations so purchased whenever it shall be necessary so to do in 

85



 

25 

order to provide moneys to meet any payment or transfer from any such Fund or Account.  
Neither the County nor the County Representative shall be liable or responsible for any loss 
resulting from any such investment.  For the purpose of determining the amount on deposit to the 
credit of any such Fund or Account, obligations in which moneys in such Fund or Account have 
been invested shall be valued at the lower of cost or market. 

Section 6.03.  Valuation.  In computing the amount in any fund or Account created by 
this Bond Order, except for the Debt Service Reserve Fund, obligations purchased as an 
investment of moneys therein shall be valued at cost or fair market value thereof, whichever is 
lower, plus accrued interest.  Investments in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be valued at 
least semiannually at the fair market value thereof, plus accrued interest.  Such valuations for 
each such fund or Account, other than the Debt Service Reserve Fund, shall be made by the party 
holding each such fund or Account at least annually not later than the end of each Fiscal Year 
and at such other times as the County may deem appropriate. 

ARTICLE VII 
RATE COVENANT; OTHER COVENANTS 

Section 7.01.  Rates and Charges. 

(a) The County covenants and agrees that, subject to any applicable requirements of 
law or regulations, it will fix Service Charges and from time to time to revise such Service 
Charges in such manner that the Net Revenues for each Fiscal Year shall not be less than an 
amount necessary to provide debt service coverage of one hundred fifteen percent (115%) of the 
Debt Service Requirement for all Senior Indebtedness for such Fiscal Year and one hundred 
percent (100%) of the Debt Service Requirement for all Subordinate Debt for such Fiscal Year. 

(b) If at the end of any Fiscal Year the County is not in compliance with the Rate 
Covenant, the County shall immediately notify the Commission and request an Independent 
Consulting Engineer to submit a written report and recommendations with respect to increases in 
the County’s rates, fees and other charges and improvements in the operations of and the services 
rendered by the Water System and the County’s accounting and billing procedures necessary to 
bring the County into compliance with the Rate Covenant.  The report and recommendations 
shall be filed with the Paying Agent, the County and the Commission within 120 days from the 
date of discovery of noncompliance with the Rate Covenant.  The County shall promptly revise 
its rates, fees, charges, operations and services in conformity with the report and 
recommendations of the Independent Consulting Engineer to the extent permitted by law. 

(c) If the County promptly revises its rates, fees, charges, operations, services and 
procedures in conformity with the report and recommendations of the Independent Consulting 
Engineer and otherwise follows such recommendations to the extent permitted by law so that the 
County is expected to be, when its actions become fully effective, in compliance with the Rate 
Covenant, then any failure to meet the Rate Covenant will not constitute an Event of Default 
under this Bond Order so long as no other Event of Default has occurred and is continuing. 

Section 7.02.  Payment of Bonds and Observance of Covenants.  The County covenants 
that it will promptly pay the principal of and the interest on every Bond issued under the 

86



 

26 

provisions of this Bond Order at the places, on the dates and in the manner provided herein and 
in such Bonds and any premium required for the retirement of such Bonds by purchase or 
redemption, according to the true intent and meaning thereof.  Except as in this Bond Order 
otherwise provided, the principal, interest and premiums are payable solely from Pledged Net 
Revenues, which are hereby pledged to the payment thereof in the manner and to the extent 
hereinabove particularly specified, and nothing in the Bonds or in this Bond Order shall be 
construed as obligating the County to pay the Bonds or the interest thereon except from Pledged 
Net Revenues or as pledging the faith and credit of the County or as obligating the County, 
directly or indirectly or contingently, to levy or to pledge any form of ad valorem tax whatever 
therefor.  The County covenants that it shall faithfully do and perform and at all times fully 
observe any and all covenants, undertakings, stipulations and provisions contained herein or in 
the Bonds. 

Section 7.03.  Construction of Project and System Improvements.  The County covenants 
that it will forthwith diligently proceed to complete the Project and any System Improvements in 
accordance with plans and specifications which shall have been approved by the Consulting 
Engineers and in conformity with law and all requirements of all governmental authorities 
having jurisdiction thereover, and that it will complete such construction with all expedition 
practicable. 

The County further covenants and agrees that it will require each person, firm or 
corporation with whom it may contract for labor or materials in connection with the construction 
of the Project or any System Improvements to furnish a performance bond as required by law to 
insure completion and performance of such contract, or, in lieu thereof, to deposit with the 
Depositary marketable securities having a market value equal to the amount of such contract and 
eligible as security for the deposit of trust funds under regulations of the Comptroller of the 
Currency of the United States, and to carry such workmen’s compensation or employers’ liability 
insurance as may be required by law and such builders, risk insurance, if any, as may be required 
by the Consulting Engineers.  The County further covenants and agrees that in the event of any 
default under any such contract and the failure of the surety to complete the contract, the 
proceeds of any such performance bond or securities shall forthwith, upon receipt of such 
proceeds, be applied toward the completion of the contract in connection with which such 
performance bond or securities shall have been furnished. 

Section 7.04.  Operation and Maintenance of System.  The County covenants that it shall 
at all times operate the System properly and in a sound and economical manner, and shall 
maintain, preserve and keep the same properly or cause the same to be so maintained, preserved 
and kept, with the appurtenances and every part and parcel thereof, in good repair, working order 
and condition, and shall from time to time make or cause to be made, all necessary and proper 
repairs, replacements and renewals so that at all times the operation of the System may be 
properly and advantageously conducted. 

Section 7.05.  Rules, Regulations and Other Details.  The County covenants that it shall 
establish and shall enforce reasonable rules and regulations governing the operation, use and 
services of the System and that all compensations, salaries, fees and wages paid by the County in 
connection with the maintenance, repair and operation of the System shall be reasonable.  The 
County shall observe and perform or shall cause to be observed and performed all of the terms 

87



 

27 

and conditions contained in the Act, and shall-comply with all valid acts, rules, regulations, 
orders and directions of any legislative, executive, administrative or judicial body applicable to 
the System or the County. 

The County further covenants that: 

(a) it may require the owner, tenant or occupant of each lot or parcel of land within 
the County who is obligated to pay rates, fees or charges for the services and facilities furnished 
by the System to make a reasonable deposit with the County in advance to insure the payment of 
such rates, fees or charges and to be subject to application to the payment thereof if and when 
delinquent; and 

(b) if any rates, fees or charges for the services and facilities furnished by the System 
shall not be paid within thirty days after the same shall become due and payable, the County 
shall at the expiration of such thirty day period disconnect the premises from the System, and the 
County may proceed to recover by appropriate legal action the amount of any such delinquent 
rates, fees or charges.  

Section 7.06.  Payment of Lawful Charges.  The County covenants that, from Revenues, 
it will pay all taxes and assessments or other municipal or governmental charges lawfully levied 
or assessed upon or in respect of the System or upon any part and that, from such Revenues, it 
will pay or cause to be discharged, or will make adequate provision to satisfy and discharge, 
within sixty days after the same shall accrue, all lawful claims and demands for labor, materials, 
supplies or other objects which, if unpaid, might by law become a lien upon the System or any 
part thereof or upon such Revenues; provided, however, that nothing in this Section contained 
shall require the County to pay or cause to be discharged, or make provision for, any such lien or 
charge so long as the validity thereof shall be contested in good faith and by appropriate legal 
proceedings. 

Section 7.07.  Insurance and Reconstruction.  The County shall continuously maintain 
insurance with recognized responsible commercial insurance companies against such risks and in 
such amounts as are customary for public bodies owning and operating similar systems, 
including (a) insurance against loss or damage to the System, (b) public liability insurance 
against liability for bodily injury, including death resulting therefrom, and for damage to 
property, including loss of use thereof, arising out of the ownership or operation of the System, 
and (c) workers’ compensation insurance with respect to the System. 

In lieu of insurance written by commercial insurance companies, the County may 
maintain a program of self-insurance or participate in group risk financing programs, including 
sponsored insurance programs, risk pools, risk retention groups, purchasing groups and captive 
insurance companies, and in state or Federal insurance programs; provided, however, that the 
County shall obtain and maintain on file an annual favorable written opinion of a Independent 
Consulting Engineer that such alternative is reasonably acceptable with respect to the coverages 
under all the circumstances. 

Section 7.08.  Annual Budget of Operating Expenses.  The County covenants that it shall 
develop an Annual Budget for each Fiscal Year consistent with the budget preparation schedule 

88



 

28 

set forth in the State’s applicable fiscal control statutes.  If for any reason the Board shall not 
have adopted the Annual Budget before the first day of any Fiscal Year, the budget for the 
preceding Fiscal Year shall, until the adoption of the Annual Budget, be deemed to be in force. 

The Board may at any time adopt an amended or supplemental Annual Budget for the 
remainder of the then current Fiscal Year, but no such amended or supplemental budget shall be 
effective until it shall be approved in the manner hereinbefore prescribed for the Annual Budget. 

The County covenants that the Operating Expenses incurred in any Fiscal Year will not 
exceed the reasonable and necessary amount thereof, and that it will not expend any amount or 
incur any obligations for maintenance, repair and operation in excess of the amounts provided 
for Operating Expenses in the appropriate budget.  Nothing in this Section contained shall limit 
the amount which the County may expend for Operating Expenses in any Fiscal Year provided 
any amounts expended therefor in excess of the appropriate budget shall be received by the 
County from some source other than Revenues and the County shall not make any 
reimbursement therefor from such Revenues. 

Section 7.09.  Records, Books and Audits.  The County covenants that it will keep each 
of the funds of the System separate from all other funds of the County and that it will keep 
accurate records and accounts of all items of cost and of all expenditures relating to the System 
and of the Revenues collected and the application of such Revenues.  Such records and accounts 
shall at all times during normal business hours be open to the inspection of the Commission and 
the Holders of the Bonds.  The County covenants that it will maintain a separate fund in its 
financial statements for the System (which is currently designated as the “Mainland Water 
Fund”). 

The County further covenants that promptly after the close of each Fiscal Year it will 
cause an audit to be made of its books and accounts relating to the System by a firm of 
independent certified public accountants to be chosen by the Board and will cause an annual 
report of operations of the System to be prepared, such annual report to cover the matters usually 
contained in annual reports for similar systems.  Within a reasonable time thereafter, reports of 
each such audit and copies of each such annual report shall be mailed by the Clerk to the 
Consulting Engineers, the Commission, the Paying Agent (if other than the Finance Officer) and, 
upon request, to each Bondholder.  Each such audit report shall be in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and shall set forth in respect of the preceding Fiscal Year, among 
other matters, the Revenues and Operating Expenses of the System, all deposits or transfers to 
the credit of and all withdrawals from each special fund created hereunder, the amounts on 
deposit at the end of such Fiscal Year to the credit of each such special fund including the details 
of any investment thereof, a balance sheet and also a certificate of such certified public 
accountants indicating whether (a) the moneys received by the County under this Bond Order 
have been applied in accordance with the provisions of this Bond Order, (b) the County is in 
compliance with the Rate Covenant as of the end of such Fiscal Year, and (c) the County is in 
default in the performance of any of the covenants contained in Article V hereof.  Included in 
each such audit shall be a calculation of the rate covenant described in Section 5.01 for such 
Fiscal Year.  In addition, in connection with the delivery of such audit report, the Finance Officer 
shall deliver to the Commission a certificate indicating that no Event of Default has occurred 
hereunder, or, if an Event of Default has occurred, the nature of such default. 

89



 

29 

Section 7.10.  Sale or Encumbrance.  The County covenants that it will not sell, lease or 
otherwise dispose of or encumber the System or any part thereof except with the consent of one 
hundred percent of the Holders.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may, from time to 
time, sell or otherwise dispose of such property forming part of the System, including machinery, 
fixtures, apparatus, tools, instruments or other movable property, as the Board may determine is 
not needed in connection with the maintenance and operation of such System.  The proceeds 
from any sale, lease or disposition of the System, in whole or in part, shall be applied to the 
replacement of the properties so sold or otherwise disposed of or shall be deposited as provided 
in Section 5.04. 

Section 7.11.  Damage, Destruction, Condemnation and Loss of Title.  If all or any part 
of the Project is destroyed or damaged by fire or other casualty, condemned or lost by failure of 
title, the County shall restore promptly the property destroyed or damaged to substantially the 
same condition as before such destruction, damage, condemnation or loss of title with such 
alterations and additions as the County may determine and which will not impair the capacity or 
character of the Project for the purpose for which it is then being used or is intended to be used.  
The County shall apply so much as may be necessary of such Net Proceeds received on account 
of any such destruction, damage, condemnation or loss of title to payment of the cost of such 
restoration, either on completion or as the work progresses.  If such Net Proceeds are not 
sufficient to pay in full the cost of such restoration, the County shall pay so much of the cost as 
may be in excess of such Net Proceeds from any legally available moneys.  Any balance of such 
Net Proceeds remaining after payment of such restoration shall be deposited in the Bond Fund. 

Section 7.12.  Creation of Liens.  The County covenants that it will not create or permit to 
be created any charge or lien on the Pledged Net Revenues ranking equally with or prior to the 
charge or lien on the Pledged Net Revenues of the Bonds issued and secured hereunder unless 
otherwise required by applicable law. 

Section 7.13.  Instruments of Further Assurance.  The County covenants that at any and 
all times it shall, so far as it may be authorized by law, pass, make, do, execute, acknowledge and 
deliver all and every such further orders, resolutions, acts, conveyances, transfers and assurances 
as may be necessary or desirable for the better assuring, conveying, granting and confirming all 
and singular the rights, Revenues and other funds hereby pledged or intended so to be, or which 
the County may hereafter become bound to pledge or as may be reasonable and required to carry 
out the purposes of the Bond Order and comply with the Act.  The County further covenants that 
it shall at all times, to the extent permitted by law, defend, preserve and protect the pledge of the 
Pledged Net Revenues and all the rights of the Holders against all claims and demands of all 
persons whomsoever. 

ARTICLE VIII 
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

Section 8.01.  Events of Default.  Each of the following events is hereby declared an 
“event of default”: 

90



 

30 

(a) payment of the principal and premium, if any, of any of the Bonds shall not be 
made when the same shall become due and payable, either at maturity or by proceedings for 
redemption or otherwise; or 

(b) payment of any installment of interest shall not be made when the same shall 
become due; or 

(c) the County shall for any reason be rendered incapable of fulfilling its obligations 
hereunder; or 

(d) any substantial part of the System, necessary for its efficient operation, shall be 
destroyed or damaged and shall not be promptly repaired, replaced or reconstructed (whether 
such failure promptly to repair, replace or reconstruct the same be occasioned by the 
impracticability of such repair replacement or reconstruction or the lack of funds therefor or any 
other reason); or 

(e) an order or decree shall be entered, with the consent or acquiescence of the 
County, appointing a receiver or receivers of the System or of the Revenues, or if such order or 
decree, having been entered without the consent or acquiescence of the County shall not be 
vacated or discharged or stayed on appeal within sixty (60) days after the entry thereof; or 

(f) any proceeding shall be instituted, with the consent or acquiescence of the 
County, for the purpose of effecting a composition or agreement between the County and its 
creditors or for the purpose of adjusting the claims of such creditors, pursuant to any federal or 
state statute now or hereafter enacted, if the claims of such creditors are under any circumstances 
payable out of Revenues; or 

(g) the County shall default in the due and punctual performance of any other of the 
covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds or in this Bond Order 
on the part of the County to be performed, and such default shall continue for thirty (30) days 
after written notice specifying such default and requiring same to be remedied shall have been 
given to the County by the Holders of not less than twenty-five per centum (25%) in principal 
amount of the Bonds then outstanding. 

Section 8.02.  Bonds Declared Due and Payable.  Upon the happening and continuance of 
any event of default specified in Section 8.01 of this Bond Order, then and in every such case the 
Holders of a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding may, by a notice in 
writing to the County, declare the principal of all of the Bonds then outstanding (if not then due 
and payable) to be due and payable immediately, and upon such declaration the same shall 
become and be immediately due and payable, anything contained in the Bonds or in this Bond 
Order to the contrary notwithstanding; provided, however, that if at any time after the principal 
of the Bonds shall have been so declared to be due and payable, and before the entry of final 
judgment or decree in any suit, action or proceeding instituted on account of such default, or 
before the completion of the enforcement of any other remedy under this Bond Order, moneys 
shall become available to pay the principal of all matured Bonds and all arrears of interest, if 
any, upon all the Bonds then outstanding (except the principal of any Bonds not then due by their 
terms and the interest accrued on such Bonds since the last interest payment date), and all other 

91



 

31 

amounts then payable by the County hereunder shall have been paid or a sum sufficient to pay 
the same shall have been deposited with a Depositary, and every other default in the observance 
or performance of any covenant, condition or agreement contained in the Bonds or in this Bond 
Order (other than a default in the payment of the principal of such Bonds then due only because 
of a declaration under this Section), shall have been remedied to the satisfaction of the Holders, 
then and in every such case the Holders may, and upon the written request of the Holders of a 
majority in principal amount of the Bonds not then due by their terms and then outstanding shall, 
by written notice to the County, rescind and annul such declaration and its consequences, but no 
such rescission or annulment shall extend to or affect any subsequent default or impair any right 
consequent thereon. 

If at any time moneys are insufficient to pay the interest on or the principal of the Bonds 
as the same become due and payable, all moneys in the Bond Fund and Debt Service Reserve 
Fund, together with any moneys then available or thereafter becoming available for such 
purpose, shall be applied as provided in Section 8.07. 

Section 8.03.  Additional Remedies.  Upon the happening and continuance of any event 
of default specified in Section 8.01 of this Bond Order, then and in every case the Holders may 
proceed to protect and enforce their rights hereunder and under the laws of the State of North 
Carolina, including the Act, by such suits, actions or special proceedings in equity or at law, 
either for the specific performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein or in aid or 
execution of any power herein granted or for the enforcement of any proper legal or equitable 
remedy, as the Holders, shall deem most effectual to protect and enforce such rights. 

Section 8.04.  No Remedy Exclusive.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to 
the Holders is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies, and each and every 
such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder 
or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. 

Section 8.05.  Waiver of Default.  No delay or omission of the Holders of the Bonds to 
exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or 
shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or an acquiescence therein; and every 
power and remedy given by this Article to the Holders of the Bonds, respectively, may be 
exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. 

The Holders of a majority of the Bonds may waive any default which shall have been 
remedied before the entry of final judgment or decree in any suit, action or proceeding instituted 
by it under the provisions of this Bond Order or before the completion of the enforcement of any 
other remedy under this Bond Order, but no such waiver shall extend to or affect any other 
existing or any subsequent default or defaults or impair any rights or remedies consequent 
thereon. 

Section 8.06.  Notice of Default.  The County shall mail to the Commission and to the 
Holder of each Bond then outstanding written notice of the occurrence of any event of default set 
forth in Section 8.01 hereof as soon as practical, but in no event later than thirty (30) days after 
the County shall have notice that any such event of default has occurred. 

92



 

32 

Section 8.07.  Application of Moneys.  All moneys received by the Paying Agent 
pursuant to any right given or action taken under the provisions of this Article shall, after 
payment of the cost and expenses of the proceedings resulting in the collection of such moneys, 
the expenses, liabilities and advances incurred or made by the Paying Agent and its fees and the 
expenses of the County in carrying out this Bond Order, be deposited in the Bond Fund and 
applied as follows and for no other purpose: 

(a) Unless the principal of all the holders of Bonds shall have become due or shall 
have been declared due and payable, all such moneys shall be applied: 

First - To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all 
installments of interest then due on the Senior Debt, in the order of 
the maturity of the installments of such interest and, if the amount 
available shall not be sufficient to pay in full any particular 
installment, then to the payment ratably, according to the amounts 
due on such installment, to the persons entitled thereto, without 
any discrimination or preference except as to any difference in the 
respective rates of interest specified in the Senior Debt; and 

Second - To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of 
the unpaid principal of and premium, if any, on any of the Senior 
Debt which shall have become due (other than Senior Debt called 
for redemption for the payment of which moneys are held pursuant 
to the provisions of this Bond Order), in the order of their due 
dates, with interest on such Senior Debt at the respective rates 
specified therein from the respective dates upon which they 
become due and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to 
pay in full Senior Debt due on any particular date, together with 
such interest, then first to the payment of such interest, ratably, 
according to the amount of such interest due on such date, and then 
to the payment of such principal and premium, if any, ratably, 
according to the amount of such principal due on such date, to the 
persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or preference 
except as to any difference in the respective rates of interest 
specified in the Senior Debt. 

(b) If the principal of all the Senior Debt shall have become due or shall have been 
declared due and payable, all such moneys shall be applied to the payment of the principal and 
interest then due and unpaid on the Senior Debt, including, to the extent permitted by law, 
interest on overdue installments of interest, without preference or priority of principal over 
interest or of interest over principal, or of any installment of interest over any other installment 
of interest, or of any bond over any other bond, ratably, according to the amounts due 
respectively for principal and interest, to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination 
or preference except as to any difference in the respective rates of interest specified in the Senior 
Debt. 

93



 

33 

(c) If the principal of all the Senior Debt shall have been declared due and payable 
and if such declaration shall thereafter have been rescinded and annulled under the provisions of 
this Article, then, subject to the provisions of subsection (b) of this Section in the event that the 
principal of all the Senior Debt shall later become due or be declared due and payable, the 
moneys shall be applied in accordance with the provisions of subsection (a) of this Section. 

Whenever moneys are to be applied pursuant to the provisions of this Section, such 
moneys shall be applied at such times and from time to time as the Paying Agent shall determine, 
having due regard to the amount of such moneys available for application and the likelihood of 
additional moneys becoming available for such application in the future.  Whenever the Paying 
Agent shall apply such moneys, it shall fix the date (which shall be an interest payment date 
unless it shall deem another date more suitable) on which such application is to be made and on 
such date interest on the amounts of principal to be paid and on such dates shall cease to accrue.  
The Paying Agent shall give such notice as it may deem appropriate of the deposit with it of any 
such moneys and of the fixing of any such date. 

Whenever there are moneys remaining after application to the Bond Fund for the 
payment of Senior Debt, the Paying Agent shall apply such remaining moneys, allocated in a 
similar manner as provided above, to the payment of Subordinate Debt. 

Whenever the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on all Senior Debt have been 
paid under the provisions of this Section, all payments required by the terms of any Series 
Resolution have been paid and all expenses and charges of the Paying Agent have been paid, any 
balance remaining in the several funds created by this Bond Order shall be paid to the County as 
provided in Section 6.10. 

ARTICLE IX 
THE PAYING AGENT AND BOND REGISTRAR 

Section 9.01.  Designation of Bond Registrar and Paying Agent.  Upon issuance of the 
Initial Bond, the County’s Finance Officer shall serve as Paying Agent and Bond Registrar.  The 
Finance Officer may continue in such roles unless and until (a) the events described in Section 
5.10(a) occur, or (b) the County adopts a Series Resolution providing for a Series of Bonds to be 
issued in any method other than a private placement with an institutional investor.  In either 
event described in (a) or (b) above, the County shall appoint a Paying Agent and Bond Registrar 
meeting the requirements of Section 9.02, and shall transfer all funds and accounts created under 
Section 5.01 to such Paying Agent; provided that, so long as the events described in Section 
5.10(a) have not occurred, the Revenue Fund shall continue to be held by the County.  In 
addition, at any time during the continuation of an Event of Default, the Holders of at least a 
majority in principal amount of Bonds may appoint a Paying Agent and Bond Registrar meeting 
the requirements of Section 9.02.  The County may at any time appoint a Bond Registrar and a 
Paying Agent meeting the requirements of Section 9.02 to administer the provisions of this Bond 
Order and may adopt such supplements to this Bond Order as shall be necessary or desirable to 
effectuate such appointment. 

94



 

34 

Section 9.02.  Paying Agent.  (a) The Paying Agent and Bond Registrar shall be a bank or 
trust company with trust powers organized under the laws of the United States of America or any 
state of the United States, or the District of Columbia, having a combined capital stock, surplus 
and undivided profits aggregating at least $100,000,000.  The Paying Agent and any successor 
Paying Agent may resign only upon giving sixty (60) days prior written notice to the County, the 
Commission and each Holder.  Such resignation shall take effect only upon the appointment of a 
successor Paying Agent by the County, acceptable to the Commission (acceptance by the 
Commission to be evidenced by the successor trustee’s appearance on the Commission’s 
approved trustee list or by written consent by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the 
Commission), and the acceptance of such appointment by the successor Paying Agent.  If no 
successor is appointed within sixty (60) days after the notice of resignation, the resigning party 
may appoint a successor or petition any court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a successor so 
long as such appointee is acceptable to the Commission (acceptance by the Commission to be 
evidenced by the successor trustee’s appearance on the Commission’s approved trustee list or by 
written consent by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Commission).  Upon appointment 
of a successor Paying Agent, the resigning Paying Agent shall assign all of its right, title and 
interest in any funds and accounts created under the Bond Order to the successor Paying Agent.  
Any successor Paying Agent shall meet the requirements of a Paying Agent set forth above and 
shall accept in writing its duties and responsibilities hereunder and such writing shall be filed 
with the County and the Commission. 

(b) Any corporation into which the Paying Agent may be merged or converted or 
with which it may be consolidated, or any corporation resulting from any merger, conversion or 
consolidation to which the Paying Agent shall be a party, or any corporation succeeding to all or 
any material part of the corporate trust business of the Paying Agent, shall be the successor of the 
Paying Agent hereunder without the execution or filing of any paper of any further act on the 
part of any Person, anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, provided that such successor 
Paying Agent shall be eligible to serve as Paying Agent under the provisions of this Bond Order, 
including being acceptable to the Commission (acceptance by the Commission to be evidenced 
by the successor paying agent’s appearance on the Commission’s approved trustee list or by 
written consent by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Commission).  If the Paying Agent 
is not the successor corporation in any such merger or consolidation, the Paying Agent shall give 
notice of such event to the County and shall take such action as may be required to effect a 
transfer of the trust included in this Bond Order to such successor corporation 

(c) Any Paying Agent approved pursuant to this Section must exercise the rights and 
powers granted to it with the same degree of care and skill in their exercise that a prudent person 
would exercise or use under the circumstances and in the conduct of such person’s own affairs.  
Any such Paying Agent must act for the collective benefit of all owners of outstanding Bonds. 

ARTICLE X 
SUPPLEMENTAL ORDERS 

Section 10.01.  Without Consent of Holders.  The Board may amend this Bond Order in 
any respect prior to the delivery of the Initial Bonds; provided that, any such amendment shall be 
approved by the Commission. 

95



 

35 

The Board may from time to time and at any time following delivery of the Initial Bonds, 
adopt such orders supplemental hereto as shall not be inconsistent with the terms and provisions 
hereof (which supplemental orders shall thereafter form a part hereof) so long as such 
supplemental orders will not, in the opinion of the Paying Agent, who may rely on the written 
opinion of legal counsel, materially and adversely affect the interest of the Holders: 

(a) to cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission or to correct any inconsistent 
provisions in this Bond Order or in any supplemental order, or 

(b) to grant to or confer upon the Holders of Senior Debt any additional rights, 
remedies, powers, authority or security that may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the 
Holders, or 

(c) to add to the conditions, limitations and restrictions on the issuance of Bonds 
under the provisions of this Bond Order other conditions, limitations and restrictions thereafter to 
be observed, or 

(d) to add to the covenants and agreements of the County in this Bond Order other 
covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed by the County or to surrender any right or 
power herein reserved to or conferred upon the County, or 

(e) to modify, amend or supplement this Bond Order in such manner as may be 
required by a Rating Agency to maintain or enhance its rating on the Senior Debt, provided that 
such modification, amendment or supplement does not materially adversely affect the holders of 
all Outstanding Senior Debt; or 

(f) to modify, amend or supplement this Bond Order to implement any covenants or 
agreements contemplated by Section 8.04; or 

(g) to authorize the issuance of and to secure one or more issues of Indebtedness 
pursuant to Article III. 

At least thirty (30) days prior to the adoption of any supplemental order for any of the 
purposes set forth in the immediately preceding paragraph of this Section, the Bond Registrar, at 
the expense of the County, shall cause a notice of the proposed adoption of such supplemental 
order to be mailed, postage prepaid, to the owner of each Bond at the address appearing on the 
registration books and to the Commission.  Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of the 
proposed supplemental order and shall state that copies thereof are on file at the principal office 
of the Bond Registrar for inspection by all Holders. 

Section 10.02.  With Consent of Holders.  Subject to the terms and provisions contained 
in this Section, and not otherwise, the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal 
amount of the Bonds then outstanding shall have the right, from time to time following delivery 
of any Bonds, anything contained in this Bond Order to the contrary notwithstanding, to consent 
to and approve the adoption, of such order or orders supplemental hereto as shall be deemed 
necessary or desirable by the Board for the purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to 
or rescinding, in particular, any of the terms or provisions contained in this Bond Order or in any 
supplemental order; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall permit, or be 

96



 

36 

construed as permitting, (a) an extension of the maturity of the principal of or the interest on any 
Bond issued hereunder without the consent of the Holder of such Bond, or (b) a reduction in the 
principal amount of any Bond or the redemption premium or the rate of interest thereon without 
the consent of the Holder of such Bond, or (c) the creation of a lien upon or a pledge of 
Revenues other than the lien and pledge created by this Bond Order without the consent of the 
Holders of all Bonds outstanding, or (d) a preference or priority of any Senior Debt over any 
other Senior Debt without the consent of the Holders of all Senior Debt outstanding or (e) a 
reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds required for consent to such 
supplemental order without the consent of the Commission and the Holders of all Bonds 
outstanding.  There shall be no modification of the Net Revenue pledge which secures the 
Subordinate Debt, if such respective modification would aversely affect the interest of the 
holders of such debt. 

Section 10.03.  Obtaining Consent of Holders.  If at any time the Board shall determine 
that it is necessary or desirable to adopt any supplemental order for any of the purposes of 
Section 10.02, the Bond Registrar, at the expense of the County, shall cause notice of the 
proposed adoption of such supplemental order to be mailed, postage prepaid, to each Holder of 
Bonds at the addresses appearing on the registration books.  Such notice shall briefly set forth the 
nature of the proposed supplemental order and shall state that copies thereof are on file at the 
principal corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar for inspection by all Holders.  The Bond 
Registrar shall not, however, be subject to any liability to any Holder by reason of its failure to 
cause the notice required by this Section to be mailed and any such failure shall not affect the 
validity of such supplemental order when consented to and approved as provided in this Section. 

Whenever, at any time within one year after the date of the first mailing of such notice, 
the County shall deliver to the Bond Registrar an instrument or instruments in writing purporting 
to be executed by the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the 
Bonds then outstanding, which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed 
supplemental order described in such notice and shall specifically consent to and approve the 
adoption thereof in substantially the form of the copy thereof referred to in such notice, 
thereupon, but not otherwise, the Board may adopt such supplemental order in substantially such 
form, without liability or responsibility to any Holder of any Bond, whether or not such Holder 
shall have consented thereto. 

If the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds 
outstanding at the time of the adoption of such supplemental order shall have consented to and 
approved the adoption thereof as herein provided, no Holder of any Bond shall have any right to 
object to the adoption of such supplemental order, or to object to any of the terms and provisions 
contained therein or the operation thereof, or in any manner to question the propriety of the 
adoption thereof, or to enjoin or restrain the Board from adopting the same or from taking any 
action pursuant to the provisions thereof. 

Upon the adoption of any supplemental order pursuant to the provisions of this Section, 
this Bond Order shall be and be deemed to be modified and amended in accordance therewith, 
and the respective rights, duties and obligations under this Bond Order of the County, the Bond 
Registrar and all Holders of Bonds then outstanding shall thereafter be determined, exercised and 
enforced in all respects under the provisions of this Bond Order as so modified and amended. 

97



 

37 

Bonds owned or held by or for the account of the County shall not be deemed outstanding 
and shall be excluded for the purpose of any consent or any calculation provided for in this 
Article. 

Bonds delivered after the effective date of any action taken as in this Article provided 
may bear a notation by endorsement or otherwise in form approved by the County and Bond 
Registrar as to such action.  If the County and Bond Registrar shall so determine, new Bonds 
modified to conform to any such action shall be prepared, authenticated and delivered to the 
Holder of any Bond then outstanding without cost to such Holder in exchange for and upon 
surrender of such outstanding Bonds. 

Section 10.04.  Unanimous Consent of Holders. Notwithstanding anything contained in 
the foregoing provisions of this Article, the terms and provisions of this Bond Order or any order 
supplemental hereto and the rights and obligations of the County and of the Holders of the Bonds 
may be modified or amended in any respect upon the adoption by the Board of an order to that 
effect, approved by the Bond Registrar, and the filing with the Board of the written consent of 
the Commission and the Holders of all the Bonds.  No notice to Holders shall be required. 

ARTICLE XI 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 11.01.  Discharge of Bond Order. If (a) (1) all Bonds and Subordinate Debt 
issued hereunder shall have become due and payable in accordance with their terms or otherwise 
as provided in this Bond Order or have been duly called for redemption or irrevocable 
instructions to call the Bonds or Subordinate Debt issued hereunder to pay them at maturity have 
been given by the County to the Bond Registrar, and (2) the Bond Registrar holds for such 
purpose cash or obligations that are either noncallable direct obligations of the United States of 
America or noncallable obligations, timely payment of which is guaranteed by the United States 
of America, the principal of and the interest on which, as verified by a licensed independent 
certified public accountant or other entity that is qualified to provide such calculations (in any 
case that carries errors and omissions insurance) reasonably acceptable to the Bond Registrar and 
the County, at maturity will be sufficient (without reinvestment) (A) to redeem in accordance 
with the relevant Section hereof all Bonds or Subordinate Debt issued hereunder that have been 
called for redemption, or for which irrevocable instructions for call for redemption have been 
given, on the date set for such redemption, (B) to pay at maturity all Bonds or Subordinate Debt 
issued hereunder not irrevocably called for redemption, (C) to pay interest accruing on any 
Bonds or Subordinate Debt issued hereunder prior to its redemption or payment at maturity, (D) 
to make all payments required by the terms of any Series Resolution, and (E) to pay the Bond 
Registrar’s fees and expenses and any other fees and expenses for which the County is 
responsible under this Bond Order, including the costs and expenses of canceling and 
discharging this Bond Order; (b) the Bond Registrar shall have received notification from the 
holders of all other Indebtedness that such Indebtedness has been paid, or payment has been 
provided for such Indebtedness, in accordance with the documents related thereto; and (c) the 
Bond Registrar and the County have received an opinion of Bond Counsel that (A) the 
defeasance complies with the requirements of this section, and (B) the Bonds are no longer 
outstanding under the Bond Order, then the Bond Registrar shall, at the expense of the County, 
cancel and discharge this Bond Order and execute and deliver to the County such instruments in 

98



 

38 

writing as shall be necessary to cancel the lien hereof, and assign and deliver to the County any 
property at the time subject to this Bond Order that may then be in its possession, except moneys 
or securities in which such moneys are invested which are held by the Bond Registrar for the 
payment of principal of, or premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds and Subordinate Debt 
issued hereunder. 

Bonds for the payment or redemption of which cash or noncallable direct obligations of 
the United States of America the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on which will be 
sufficient therefor, as determined by the Bond Registrar in reliance on a report of a licensed 
independent certified public accountant, shall have been deposited with the Bond Registrar 
(whether upon or prior to the date of their maturity or their redemption date) shall be deemed to 
be paid, no longer Outstanding and legally defeased; provided, however, that if such 
Indebtedness is to be redeemed prior to the maturity thereof, notice of such redemption shall 
have been duly given or arrangements satisfactory to the Bond Registrar shall have been made 
for the giving thereof. 

Section 11.02.  Effect of County’s Undertakings.  All of the covenants, stipulations, 
obligations and agreements contained in this Bond Order shall be deemed to be covenants, 
stipulations, obligations and agreements of the County and of the Board to the full extent 
authorized or permitted by law, and all such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements 
shall be binding upon the successor or successors thereof from time to time, and upon any 
officer, board, commission, authority, agency or instrumentality to whom or to which any power 
or duty affecting such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements shall be transferred by 
or in accordance with law. 

The Board shall have the right to enter into a contract with any public or private agency 
for the maintenance, operation and improvement of the System for such periods of time and 
under such terms and conditions which are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Bond 
Order as the Board shall determine to be in the best interests of the County and of the Holders of 
Bonds issued pursuant to the provisions of this Bond Order. 

Section 11.03.  Notices.  Any notice, demand, direction, request or other instrument 
authorized or required by this Bond Order to be given to or filed with the County or the Bond 
Registrar shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given or filed for all purposes of this Bond 
Order if and when sent by registered mail, return receipt requested to the County or to the Board 
if addressed to Judicial Center, 2795 Caratoke Hwy., Currituck, North Carolina 27929-0039, 
Attention: Finance Officer, to the Paying Agent and Bond Registrar, if addressed to the address 
set forth in the applicable Series Resolution; and to the Commission, if addressed to the 
Secretary, Local Government Commission, Albemarle Building, 325 N. Salisbury Street, 
Raleigh, North Carolina 27603-1385; 

Section 11.04.  Execution of Instruments by Holders and Proof of Ownership of Bonds.  
Any request, direction, consent or other instrument in writing required or permitted by this Bond 
Order to be signed or executed by Holders may be in any number of concurrent instruments of 
similar tenor and may be signed or executed by such Holders in person or by agent appointed by 
an instrument in writing.  Proof of the execution of any such instrument and of the ownership of 
Bonds shall be sufficient for any purpose of this Bond Order, and shall be conclusive in favor of 

99



 

39 

the Bond Registrar with regard to any action taken by it under such instrument, if in accordance 
with the registration books. 

Any request or consent of the Holder of any Bond shall bind every future Holder of the 
same Bond in respect of anything done by the Bond Registrar in pursuance of such request or 
consent. 

Section 11.05.  Parties Interested Herein.  Except as herein otherwise expressly provided, 
nothing in this Bond Order expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon 
any person, firm or corporation other than the County, the Bond Registrar and the Holders of the 
Bonds issued under and secured by this Bond Order any right, remedy or claim, legal or 
equitable, under or by reason of this Bond Order or any provision hereof, this Bond Order and all 
its provisions being intended to be and being for the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties 
hereto and the Holders from time to time of the Bonds issued hereunder. 

Section 11.06.  Limited Obligations on Bonds.  Nothing in the Bonds or in this Bond 
Order shall be construed as pledging either the faith and credit or the taxing power of the County 
for their payment, or to create any debt against the County, or as conveying or mortgaging the 
System or any part thereof. 

Section 11.07.  No Recourse Against Members, Officers or Employees of County or the 
Commission.  No recourse under, or upon, any statement, obligation, covenant or agreement 
contained in this Bond Order, or in any Bond or Bond Anticipation Note hereby secured, or in 
any document or certification whatsoever, or under any judgment obtained against the County or 
the Commission, or by the enforcement of any assessment, or by any legal or equitable 
proceeding by virtue of any constitution or statute or otherwise or under any circumstances, shall 
be had against any member, officer or employee of the County or the Commission, either 
directly or through the County for the payment for or to, the County or the Commission or any 
receiver of either of them, or for, or to, any owner or holder of Bonds or bond anticipation notes 
or otherwise, of any sum that may be due and unpaid upon any such Bond or bond anticipation 
note.  Any and all personal liability of every nature, whether at common law or in equity or by 
statute or by constitution or otherwise, of any such member, officer or employee to respond by 
reason of any act or omission on his or her part or otherwise, for the payment for, or to, the 
County or the Commission or any receiver of either of them, or for, or to, any owner or holder of 
Bonds, bond anticipation notes  or otherwise, of any sum that may remain due and unpaid upon 
the Bonds or bond anticipation notes hereby secured or any of them, is hereby expressly waived 
and released as an express condition of, and in consideration for, the adoption of this Bond Order 
and the issuance of the Bonds. 

Section 11.08.  Severability of Invalid Provisions.  In case any one or more of the 
provisions of this Bond Order or of the Bonds issued hereunder shall for any reason be held to be 
illegal or valid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this Bond 
Order or of such Bonds, but this Bond Order and such Bonds shall be construed and enforced as 
of such illegal or invalid provision had not been contained therein.  In case any covenant, 
stipulation, obligation or agreement contained in the Bonds or in this Bond Order shall for any 
reason be held to be in violation of law, then such covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement 

100



 

40 

shall be deemed to be the covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of the County to the full 
extent permitted by law. 

Section 11.09.  Issuance of Other Obligations and Expenditures for System 
Improvements.  Nothing in this Bond Order express or implied shall be construed as preventing 
the County from financing System Improvements by the issuance of obligations which are not 
secured under the provisions of this Bond Order or from making expenditures for System 
Improvements from moneys received by the County solely for such purpose. 

Section 11.10.  Applicable Law.  This Bond Order is adopted with the intent that the laws 
of the State of North Carolina shall govern its construction. 

Section 11.11.  Headings, etc.  Any headings preceding the texts hereof and any table of 
contents or marginal notes appended to copies hereof, shall be solely for convenience of 
reference and shall not constitute a part of this Bond Order, nor shall they affect its meaning, 
construction or effect. 

Section 11.12.  Officers’ Authority.  The officers and agents of the County are hereby 
authorized and directed to do all the acts and things required of them by the Bonds and this Bond 
Order for the full, punctual and complete performance of all of the terms, covenants, provisions 
and agreements contained in the Bonds and this Bond Order. 

Section 11.13.  Inconsistent Matters.  All orders and resolutions and parts thereof, which 
are in conflict or inconsistent with any provisions of this Bond Order are hereby repealed and 
declared to be inapplicable to the provisions of this Bond Order. 

Section 11.14.  Effective Date.  This Bond Order shall be effective immediately upon its 
adoption. 

Commissioner __________ moved the passage of the foregoing resolution and 

Commissioner ____________ seconded the motion and the resolution was passed by the 

following vote: 

Ayes:  Commissioner   

Nays:  Commissioner   

Not voting:  Commissioner   

* * * * * * * 

101



 

 

I, ______________________, Clerk for the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, North 

Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of so much of 

the proceedings of the Board for such County at a regular meeting duly called and held March 

17, 2008, as it relates in any way to the Bond Order and resolution hereinabove set forth, and that 

such proceedings are recorded in the minutes of the Board.  Pursuant to G.S. § 143-318.12, a 

current copy of a schedule of regular meetings of the Board for the County is on file in my 

office. 

WITNESS my hand and the common seal of said County, this _____ day of March, 2008. 

      
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 
Currituck County, North Carolina 

(SEAL) 
 

42172.000008 HW_US 7320665v8 
102



 

- 1 - 

SERIES RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF A 
$19,000,000 CURRITUCK COUNTY WATER SYSTEM 
REVENUE BOND, SERIES 2008 PURSUANT TO THE 
PROVISIONS OF SECTION 2.01 OF THE BOND ORDER 
ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ON 
MARCH 17, 2008 AND REQUESTING THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT COMMISSION OF NORTH CAROLINA TO 
AWARD THE BONDS AT PRIVATE SALE. 

WHEREAS, the County of Currituck, North Carolina (the “County”), a political 
subdivision of the State of North Carolina, owns  a water system that serves the mainland portion 
of the County that is west of Currituck Sound (as further described in the Bond Order hereinafter 
referenced, the “System”), and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the County (the “Board”) on the date hereof 
adopted a bond order authorizing and securing Water System Revenue Bonds of the County (the 
“Bond Order”); and 

WHEREAS, Article II of the Bond Order authorizes the issuance of revenue bonds of the 
County in one or more series from time to time for the purpose of providing funds for (a) paying 
all or any part of the cost of the Project or other System Improvements, each as defined in the 
Bond Order, and (b) paying expenses incidental and necessary or convenient thereto; and  

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary to acquire and construct the 
Project, as further described in Appendix A to this resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has received information to the effect that the County will be able 
to satisfy the requirements of Section 3.01 of the Bond Order with respect to such series of 
revenue bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3.01 of the Bond Order, such revenue bonds are to have 
such terms and provisions as may be provided by a series resolution to be adopted by the Board 
prior to the issuance thereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission has adopted a resolution to the effect that it approves the 
provisions of this resolution and recommends to the Board that the Board adopt this resolution; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
COUNTY OF CURRITUCK, NORTH CAROLINA DOES HEREBY DETERMINE AND 
RESOLVE, as follows: 

Section 1.01.  Capitalized words and terms used in this resolution (this “Series 
Resolution”) and not otherwise defined herein shall have the same meanings in this Resolution as 
such words and terms are given in the Bond Order.  In addition, the following term defined in the 
Bond Order is modified as set forth in this Series Resolution, but only so long as BB&T (as 
hereinafter defined) is the sole owner of Bonds issued under the Bond Order. 

103



 

- 2 - 

“Independent Consulting Engineer” means an independent engineer, who is not an 
employee of the County, experienced in the field of water engineering and licensed and 
registered as a professional engineer in the State, who shall be reasonably satisfactory to BB&T. 

Section 1.02.  Pursuant to the Act and Section 3.01 of the Bond Order, the Board hereby 
authorizes the issuance of revenue bonds of the County in the form of a single fully registered 
bond designated “Currituck County Water System Revenue Bond, Series 2008” (the “Series 
2008 Bond”) in the principal amount of $19,000,000 for the purpose of providing funds, together 
with any other available funds, for (a) paying the Costs of the Project described in Appendix A 
hereto and (b) paying expenses incidental and necessary or convenient thereto.  The Series 2008 
Bond shall be dated as of the date of its delivery, shall be a Term Bond stated to mature (subject 
to the right of prior redemption) on March 1, 2028, subject to mandatory sinking fund 
redemption as described in Section 1.03 as set forth in Schedule I to the form of the Series 2008 
Bond attached hereto as Appendix B and bearing interest at the rate of 4.09% per annum, shall 
be numbered R08-1 and shall be exchangeable for fully-registered bonds in denominations of not 
less than $100,000 and multiples of $5,000 in excess thereof.  Interest on the Series 2008 Bond 
shall be payable on September 1, 2008 and thereafter semiannually on each March 1 and 
September 1 until the Series 2008 Bond is paid in full.  There shall not be any Debt Service 
Reserve Requirement for the Series 2008 Bond, and the Series 2008 Bond shall not be secured 
by the Debt Service Reserve Fund. 

Section 1.03. (a)  The Series 2008 Bond shall be subject to optional redemption prior to 
maturity, in whole but not in part, on any Interest Payment Date through March 1, 2018, from 
any moneys that may be made available for such purpose, upon notice as provided in Article IV 
of the Bond Order and upon payment of a redemption price equal to 101% of the principal 
amount of the Series 2008 Bond being redeemed plus accrued interest to the redemption date.  
Thereafter the Series 2008 Bond shall be subject to optional redemption prior to maturity, in 
whole but not in part, on any Interest Payment Date from any moneys that may be made 
available for such purpose, upon notice as provided in Article IV of the Bond Order and upon 
payment of a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2008 Bond 
being redeemed plus accrued interest to the redemption date. 

(b) The Series 2008 Bond is subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on the 
dates and in the amounts set forth on Schedule I to the form of the Series 2008 Bond, which 
schedule may not be modified without the consent of the Commission. 

Section 1.04. The Series 2008 Bond and the Certificate of the Commission and the 
Certificate of Authentication to be endorsed on the Series 2008 Bond shall be substantially in the 
forms attached hereto as Appendix B,  with such variations, omissions and insertions as are 
required or permitted by the this Series Resolution or the Bond Order. 

Section 1.05. Payment of principal and interest on the Series 2008 Bond shall be made 
by the Bond Registrar on each Interest Payment Date to the person in whose name such Bond is 
registered on the registration books of the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the fifteenth 
(15th) day preceding such Interest Payment Date or mandatory sinking fund payment date by 
check mailed to such person at his address as it appears on such registration books or, if so 
instructed by the registered owner of the Series 2008 Bond (which instructions shall remain in 

104



 

- 3 - 

effect until revoked by subsequent written instructions), by wire transfer on the Interest Payment 
Date to an account in the continental United States, as designated from time to time by the 
owner. 

Section 1.06.  The proceeds of the Series 2008 Bond will be deposited in the Project Fund 
created under the Project Fund Agreement dated as of March 20, 2008 between the County and 
BB&T (the “Project Fund Agreement”).  Such funds will be delivered to the County and used to 
pay costs of the Project and costs of issuance with respect to the Series 2008 Bond in accordance 
with the terms of the Project Fund Agreement.  Any interest earned or other income derived from 
the investment or deposit of moneys representing proceeds of the Series 2008 Bond shall be used 
to pay Costs of the Project. 

Section 1.07.  There is hereby created within the Bond Fund created by the Bond Order a 
Series 2008 Subaccount of the Interest Account and a Series 2008 Subaccount of the Sinking 
Fund Account.  Subject to the provisions of Section 5.04 of the Bond Order, the County shall, on 
or before each Interest Payment Date and mandatory sinking fund payment date, withdraw from 
the Revenue Fund moneys in such amounts as shall be necessary for the purpose of making the 
deposits to be made pursuant to clauses (a) and (b) of this Section: 

(a) commencing on September 1, 2008, and continuing on the 1st day of each March 
and September thereafter, to the Paying Agent for deposit to the credit of the Series 2008 
Subaccount of the Interest Account the amount of interest to become due and payable on the 
Series 2008 Bond on such Interest Payment Date, after taking into account any amounts then 
held for the credit of the Series 2008 Subaccount of the Interest Account for the payment of such 
interest. 

(b) commencing on March 1, 2009, and continuing on each March 1 thereafter, to the 
Paying Agent for deposit to the credit of the Series 2008 Subaccount of the Sinking Fund 
Account, the amount of the sinking fund payment on the Series 2008 Bond to become due and 
payable on such March 1, after taking into account any amounts then held for the credit of the 
Series 2008 Subaccount of the Sinking Fund Account for the payment of such sinking fund 
payment. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as (a) the County is acting as Paying Agent under 
the Bond Order, and (b) BB&T is the sole owner of the Series 2008 Bond, the Paying Agent may 
make payments of principal and interest as it become dues on each Interest Payment Date 
directly from the Revenue Fund without first making the transfers described in (a) and (b) above. 

Section 1.08.  The Board hereby requests the Local Government Commission of North 
Carolina (the “LGC”) to award the Series 2008 Bond at private sale without advertisement to 
Branch Banking & Trust Company (“BB&T”) in the amount and at the interest rate set forth in 
this Resolution at a price of not less than the face value of the Series 2008 Bond plus any interest 
accrued thereon from the date thereof to the date of delivery of and payment therefor, subject to 
the approval thereof by the County Manager of the County or the Finance Officer.  The 
provisions of the Project Fund Agreement presented to the Board for its consideration are hereby 
approved in all respects, and the County Manager of the County or the Finance Officer is hereby 
authorized to signify such approval by the execution of the Project Fund Agreement in 

105



 

- 4 - 

substantially the form presented, such execution to be conclusive evidence of the approval 
thereof by the County. 

Section 1.09. The County shall deliver to BB&T in each Fiscal Year the following: 

(a) A copy of any report and/or recommendation by an Independent Consulting 
Engineer under Section 7.01(b) of the Bond Order; 

(b) A copy of any notice delivered by the County pursuant to Section 7.01(b) that it is 
not in compliance with the Rate Covenant; 

(c) A copy of the Annual Budget promptly after its approval; 

(d) Within 150 days after the close of each Fiscal Year, a copy of the audit report for 
such Fiscal Year and the other documents to be prepared in connection with such audit report as 
required by Section 7.08 of the Bond Order; and 

(e) A copy of any notice delivered pursuant to Section 11.03 shall be delivered to 
BB&T as well at the following address:  _____________________________________. 

Section 1.10. So long as BB&T is the sole owner of all Bonds issued under the Bond 
Order, the sections of the Bond Order set forth below shall be amended to reads as follow: 

(a) The requirements for the issuance of any additional Series of Bonds set forth in 
Section 3.01(g)(2) under the Bond Order are hereby modified to read as follows: 

(g)(2) A statement, signed by the County’s auditors, setting forth their 
opinion that the estimated Net Revenues for each of the three full Fiscal Years 
following the issuance of such Series of Bonds will be sufficient to comply with 
the requirements of Section 7.01(a), taking into account all Bonds then 
outstanding and the scheduled debt service on the Series of Bonds to be issued.  
For the purposes of this subsection, any specified amount of capitalized interest to 
be included as an intended use of the proceeds of any such Series of Bonds (as 
certified by a County Representative) may be included in the calculation of Net 
Revenues.  Estimates of future Revenues and Operating Expenses may take into 
account (i) material increases in rates, fees and charges for the use of and for the 
services furnished or to be furnished by the System, if the Board has adopted a 
resolution stating its intent to adopt such increases, and (ii) estimated material 
increases in customers of the System if the Consulting Engineer has stated in 
writing that such estimates are reasonable.  The County shall provide a copy of 
this certificate at least 30 days prior to the issuance of any such Series of Bonds 
by sending notice to the Paying Agent and to the registered owner of the 2008 
Bond. 

(b) Any Paying Agent appointed pursuant to Section 9.02 of the Bond Order shall be 
reasonably acceptable to BB&T. 

106



 

- 5 - 

(c) BB&T shall have the right to (i) make recommendations as to ways to increase 
revenues and decrease expenses, and to (ii) seek specific enforcement of the County’s covenant 
to revise its rates, fees, operation and services in accordance with the recommendation of the 
Independent Consulting Engineer provided pursuant to Section 7.01(b). 

(d) No modification or amendment to the Bond Order shall be permitted under 
Section 10.01 without the written consent of BB&T. 

(e) Any verification provided under Section 11.01(a)(2) shall be provided by a 
certified public accountant or other entity approved by BB&T. 

(f) No Completion Bonds may be issued pursuant to Section 3.01(h) without the 
consent of BB&T unless the requirements of Section 3.01(g) have been met with respect to such 
Completion Bonds. 

Section 1.11. The officers, agents and employees of the County are hereby authorized 
and directed to do all acts and things required of them by the provisions of the Series 2008 Bond, 
the Bond Order, the Project Fund Agreement and this Series Resolution for the full, punctual and 
complete performance of the terms, covenants, provisions and agreements therein, and any 
actions previously taken in connection therewith are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved. 

Section 1.12. This Series Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

Commissioner __________ moved the passage of the foregoing resolution and 
Commissioner ____________ seconded the motion and the resolution was passed by the 
following vote: 

Ayes: Commissioner   

Nays: Commissioner   

Not voting: Commissioner   

* * * * * * * 

107



 

- 6 - 

I, Gwen Keene, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North 
Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution 
adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the County at a regular meeting duly called and held 
on March 17, 2008, and that the proceedings of such meeting are recorded in the Minutes of said 
Board.  Pursuant to G.S. § 143-318.12, a current copy of a schedule of regular meetings of the 
Board of Commissioners of the County is on file in my office. 

WITNESS my hand and the official seal of the County this ___ day of March, 2008. 

  
Clerk, Board of Commissioners, 
County of Currituck, North Carolina 

(SEAL)

108



 

- 1 - 

APPENDIX A 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT  

 1.  Construction of a 1.5 MGD Reverse Osmosis Plant, together with 1.3 MG storage 
tank and related capital assets (including diffuser and pump) 
 
 2.  Improvements to the water distribution system for the System, including an 
outfall/force main related to the Reverse Osmosis Plant, approximately 50,000 linear feet of 
upgraded transmission lines and 112,750 ft of force mains 
 
 3.  Upgrade one waterline extension to 16" to extent possible from funding 
 
 4.  Construction and installation of 2 Elevated Storage Tanks--one servicing the North 
and one servicing the South sections of the Mainland providing 800,000 Gallons of storage 
 
 5.  Construction, engineering and lines for 4 additional wells providing approximately 
1.75 MGD of water to the Osmosis Plant 

 

109



 

- 2 - 

APPENDIX B 

PRIVATE PLACEMENT 

No.  R08-1 $19,000,000 

United States of America 
State of North Carolina 

CURRITUCK COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

Water System Revenue Bond, Series 2008 

Maturity Date         Interest Rate 

March 1, 2028          4.09% 

The County of Currituck (the “County”), a political subdivision of the State of North 
Carolina, for value received hereby promises to pay, solely from Net Revenues as hereinafter set 
forth, to Branch Banking & Trust Company or registered assigns or legal representative, on the 
maturity date specified above (or earlier as provided for herein), upon the presentation and 
surrender hereof at the offices of the Bond Registrar (which initially is the County, 2795 
Caratoke Highway, Currituck, North Carolina  27929) or any successor Bond Registrar pursuant 
to the Bond Order hereinafter discussed (the “Bond Registrar”), the principal sum of NINETEEN 
MILLION DOLLARS AND NO/100 ($19,000,000) in any coin or currency of the United States 
of America which on the date of payment thereof is legal tender for the payment of public and 
private debts, and to pay, solely from the special fund, to the person in whose name this bond is 
registered at the close of business on the 15th day of each preceding Interest Payment Date (the 
“Regular Record Date”), by wire transfer to such account in the continental United States as 
directed by such person or otherwise as provided in the Series Resolution hereinafter mentioned, 
the principal payment on the Maturity Date, subject to earlier redemption as set forth herein, and 
interest on the unpaid principal amount of this bond from the date of this bond or from the March 
1 or September 1 next preceding the date of authentication to which interest shall have been paid, 
unless such date of authentication is a March 1 or September 1 to which interest shall have been 
paid, in which case from such date, on March 1 and September 1 in each year, commencing 
September 1, 2008, in like coin or currency, at the rate per annum specified above until payment 
of the principal sum.  So long as this bond is owned by any one registered owner, such registered 
owner or its attorney or legal representative may, but shall not be required to, present and 
surrender this bond to the Bond Registrar for payment of the final principal payment thereon at 
its maturity. 

This bond represents a duly authorized series of revenue bonds of the County, designated 
“Water System Revenue Bond, Series 2008”, consisting of a single Term Bond, maturing on 
March 1, 2028, and subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption as set forth herein, and issued 
for the purpose of providing funds, together with any other available funds, for (i) paying the 
cost of acquiring and constructing the Project (as defined in the Bond Order), and (ii) paying 
expenses incidental and necessary to issuing the bond. 

110



 

- 3 - 

This bond is issued under and pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of North 
Carolina, including The State and Local Government Revenue Bond Act, as amended (the 
“Act”), a bond order duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the County (the “Board”) 
on March 17, 2008 (the “Bond Order”), and a series resolution duly adopted by the Board on 
March 17, 2008 (the “Series Resolution”).  The Bond Order provides for the issuance from time 
to time under the conditions, limitations and restrictions therein set forth of additional bonds to 
provide funds for paying all or any part of the cost of acquiring and constructing other System 
Improvements, to provide funds for completing payment of the cost of acquiring and 
constructing any System Improvements and to refund any bonds issued under the Bond Order 
and Indebtedness, as defined in the Bond Order, other than bonds (such additional bonds and this 
bond issued being herein collectively called the “Bonds”).  The Bond Order also provides for the 
incurrence or assumption by the County of other obligations which are secured by a pledge, 
charge and lien upon and payable from Net Revenues (as defined in the Bond Order) on a parity 
with the Bonds (such obligations and the Bonds being herein collectively called “Senior 
Indebtedness”) and other obligations which are secured by a pledge, charge and lien upon and 
payable from the Revenues subordinate and junior in right of payment to Senior Indebtedness 
(“Subordinate Indebtedness”) under the conditions, limitations and restrictions therein set forth.  
Reference is hereby made to the Bond Order for provisions, among others, with respect to the 
custody and application of the proceeds of Bonds, the collection and disposition of Revenues, the 
nature and extent of the security for the Bonds and any Senior Indebtedness and Subordinate 
Indebtedness thereby created, the rights, duties and obligations of the County, the Bond Registrar 
and the Paying Agent and the rights of the registered owners of the Bonds.  A certified copy of 
the Bond Order is on file at the office of the County’s Finance Officer.  By the acceptance of this 
bond, the registered owner hereof assents to all of the provisions of the Bond Order. 

The Bond Order provides for the charging, revising and collecting by the County of rates, 
fees and charges for the use of and for the services and facilities furnished or to be furnished by 
the System in order to produce at all times sufficient Revenues, together with certain other 
available funds, to pay the Operating Expenses and to pay the principal of and interest on all 
Senior Indebtedness and Subordinate Indebtedness as the same shall become due. 

The Net Revenues are pledged by the Bond Order to the payment of the principal of and 
the interest and any redemption premium on the Bonds and other Senior Indebtedness and then 
Subordinate Indebtedness as provided in the Bond Order.  The County is not obligated to pay the 
Bonds or Indebtedness other than Bonds except from the Net Revenues or other moneys made 
available therefor under the Bond Order.  NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE 
TAXING POWER OF THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA OR ANY POLITICAL 
SUBDIVISION THEREOF, INCLUDING THE COUNTY, IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT 
OF THE PRINCIPAL OF AND THE INTEREST AND ANY REDEMPTION PREMIUM ON 
THIS BOND. 

The Bonds are issuable as fully registered bonds, in denominations of $100,000 and 
integral multiples of $5,000 in excess thereof.  At the principal office of the Bond Registrar, in 
the manner and subject to the limitations and conditions provided in the Bond Order, Bonds may 
be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same series and maturity, 
of authorized denominations and bearing interest at the same rate. 

111



 

- 4 - 

As declared by the Act, this bond, subject only to the provisions for registration and 
registration of transfer stated herein and contained in the Bond Order, is an investment security 
within the meaning of and for all the purposes of Article 8 of the Uniform Commercial Code of 
the State of North Carolina.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Bond Order or the 
Series Resolution, the Bond Registrar shall not register the transfer of this bond to any person 
other than a bank, an insurance company or a similar financial institution unless such transfer has 
been previously approved by the Local Government Commission of North Carolina. 

The transfer of this bond is registrable by the registered owner hereof in person or by his 
attorney or legal representative at the principal office of the Bond Registrar but only in the 
manner and subject to the limitations and conditions provided in the Bond Order and the Series 
Resolution and upon surrender and cancellation of this bond.  Upon any such registration of 
transfer the County shall execute and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, in 
exchange for this bond, a new Bond or Bonds, registered in the name of the transferee, of 
authorized denominations, in aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of this 
bond, of the same series and maturity and bearing interest at the same rate.  The County or the 
Bond Registrar may make a charge for every such exchange or registration of transfer of Bonds 
sufficient to reimburse it for any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with 
respect to such exchange or registration of transfer, but no other charge shall be made to any 
registered owner for the privilege of exchanging or registering the transfer of Bonds. 

The Series 2008 Bond shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on the dates 
and in the amounts set forth on Schedule I hereto.  In addition, the Series 2008 Bond shall be 
subject to redemption prior to maturity, in whole or in part, on any Interest Payment Date 
through March 1, 2018, at the option of the County, from any moneys that may be made 
available for such purpose, upon notice as provided in Article IV of the Bond Order and upon 
payment of a redemption price equal to 101% of the principal amount of the Series 2008 Bond to 
be redeemed plus accrued interest to the redemption date.  Thereafter, the Series 2008 Bond shall 
be subject to redemption prior to maturity, in whole or in part, on any Interest Payment Date at 
the option of the County from any moneys that may be made available for such purpose, upon 
notice as provided in Article IV of the Bond Order and upon payment of a redemption price 
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2008 Bond to be redeemed plus accrued 
interest to the redemption date. 

Except as hereinafter provided, not more than ninety (90) days and not less than thirty 
(30) days before the redemption date of any Bonds, the Bond Registrar shall cause a notice of 
any such redemption, either in whole or in part, signed by the Bond Registrar, to be mailed, 
first-class, postage prepaid, to the North Carolina Local Government Commission and all 
registered owners of Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed at their addresses as they appear 
on the registration books of the County kept by the Bond Registrar, as provided in the Bond 
Order, but failure so to mail any such notice or any defect therein shall not affect the validity of 
the proceedings for such redemption as to any registered owners to whom such notice was given 
as so required.  On the date designated for redemption, notice having been given as aforesaid, the 
Bonds or portions of Bonds so called for redemption shall become and be due and payable at the 
redemption price provided for the redemption of such Bonds or portions thereof on such date, 
and, if moneys for payment of the redemption price and the accrued interest are held by the Bond 
Registrar, as provided in the Bond Order, interest on such Bonds or portions thereof shall cease 

112



 

- 5 - 

to accrue, such Bonds or portions thereof shall cease to be entitled to any benefit or security 
under the Bond Order, and the registered owners thereof shall have no rights in respect of such 
Bonds or portions thereof except to receive payment of the redemption price thereof and the 
accrued interest so held by the Bond Registrar.  If a portion of this bond shall be called for 
redemption, a new Bond or Bonds in principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion hereof 
will be issued to the registered owner upon surrender hereof.  So long as this bond is owned by 
any one registered owner, notice of the redemption of this bond as a result of a mandatory 
sinking fund redemption need not be given as provided in the Bond Order, unless otherwise 
required by law, and such registered owner or its attorney or legal representative may, but shall 
not be required to, surrender this bond to the Bond Registrar for payment of the redemption price 
of this bond. 

The registered owner of this bond shall have no rights to enforce the provisions of the 
Bond Order or to institute action to enforce the covenants therein, or to take any action with 
respect to any event of default under the Bond Order or to institute, appear in or defend any suit 
or other proceeding with respect thereto, except as provided in the Bond Order. 

In certain events, on the conditions, in the manner and with the effect set forth in the 
Bond Order, the principal of all Bonds then outstanding under the Bond Order may become or 
may be declared due and payable before the stated maturities thereof, together with the interest 
accrued thereon. 

Modifications or alterations of the Bond Order may be made by the County only to the 
extent and in the circumstances permitted by the Bond Order. 

This bond is issued with the intent that the laws of the State of North Carolina shall 
govern its construction. 

All acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws of the State of North 
Carolina, the Bond Order and the Series Resolution to happen, exist and be performed precedent 
to and in the issuance of this bond have happened, exist and have been performed as so required. 

This bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any 
benefit or security under the Bond Order until this bond shall have been authenticated by the 
execution by the Bond Registrar of the certificate of authentication endorsed hereon. 

113



 

- 1 - 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County of Currituck, North Carolina has caused this bond 
to by signed by the County Manager and the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners of the County 
and the corporate seal of the County to be impressed hereon, all as of the 20th day of March, 
2008. 

 COUNTY OF CURRITUCK, NORTH 
CAROLINA 

[SEAL]  

 By   
 County Manager 

    
 Clerk 

 

CERTIFICATE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION 

The issuance of the within bond has been approved under the provisions of The State and 
Local Government Revenue Bond Act of North Carolina. 

    
 Secretary, Local Government Commission 
 of North Carolina 

 

114



 

- 1 - 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This bond is one of the Bonds of the series designated therein and issued under the 
provisions of the within-mentioned Bond Order. 

  

 By   
 County Finance Officer, as Bond Registrar 

Date of authentication:   

 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned registered owner thereof hereby sells, assigns 
and transfers unto ______________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________ 
the within bond and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
attorney to register the transfer of the bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full 
power of substitution in the premises . 

Dated:   

   
NOTICE:  The assignor’s signature to this 
assignment must correspond with the name as 
it appears upon the face of the within bond in 
every particular, without alteration or 
enlargement or any change whatever. 

Signature Guaranteed:  

  
NOTICE:  Signature must be guaranteed by an 
institution which is a participant in the 
Securities Transfer Agent Medallion Program 
(STAMP) or similar program. 

 

 

115



 

- 2 - 

SCHEDULE I 

Sinking Fund Redemption 
March 1 of the following years 

 
Amount 

2009 $500,000 
2010 475,000 
2011 500,000 
2012 510,000 
2013 540,000 
2014 560,000 
2015 585,000 
2016 695,000 
2017 735,000 
2018 775,000 
2019 1,090,000 
2020 1,135,000 
2021 1,180,000 
2022 1,225,000 
2023 1,280,000 
2024 1,330,000 
2025 1,385,000 
2026 1,440,000 
2027 1,500,000 
2028 1,560,000 

 

42172.000008 HW_US 7328189v3 
116



R E S O L U T I O N 
 
 

WHEREAS, Currituck County obtained title to parcel 110B-011-0016-0000 
located in the Poplar Branch Township through a property tax foreclosure; and 

  
WHEREAS, this parcel is not currently serving a governmental use or purpose; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, this parcel holds only a nominal value to Currituck County, and the 
County would be better served if this parcel was returned to the County tax roll. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of 
Currituck County, North Carolina, during its regularly scheduled meeting held on 
March 17, 2008, authorized that parcel 110B-011-0016-0000, located in Poplar 
Branch Township, recorded in Deed Book 476, page 473 is declared as surplus 
property, pursuant to North Carolina General Statute Section 160A-265. 
 
 
ADOPTED, this 17th day of March, 2008. 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Barry C. Nelms, Chairman 
Currituck County Board of      
Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Gwen H. Keene, CMC 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 

117



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS 
 

WHEREAS, The County of Currituck owns certain property, PIN 110B-011-0016-0000, 
150 Michael Street, Lot 16, Block 11, Albemarle Sound Beach Estates, Jarvisburg, NC, 
located within Poplar Branch Township; and 
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute 160-269 permits the county to sell property 
by upset bid, after receipt of an offer for the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County has received an offer to purchase the property described above, 
in the amount of $7,500.00, submitted by C. B. Gray of Norfolk, Virginia. 
 
WHEREAS, C. B. Gray has paid the required five percent (5%) deposit on this offer; 
 
THEREFORE, THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CURRITUCK COUNTY 
RESOLVE THAT: 
 

1. The Board of Commissioners authorizes sale of the property described above 
through the upset bid procedure of North Carolina General Statute 160A-269. 

2. The County Clerk shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published.  
The notice shall describe the property and the amount of the offer, and shall 
state the terms under which the offer may be upset. 

3. Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a 
sealed bid with their offer to the office of the County Clerk within 10 days after 
the notice of sale is published.  At the conclusion of the 10-day period the 
County Clerk shall open the bids, if any, and the highest such bid will become 
the new offer.  If there is more than one bid in the highest amount, the first 
such bid received will become the new offer. 

4. If a qualifying higher bid is received, the County Clerk shall cause a new 
notice of upset bid to be published, and shall continue to do so until a 10-day 
period has passed without any qualifying upset bid having been received.  At 
that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to the Board of 
Commissioners. 

5. A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten 
percent (10%) of the first $1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the 
remainder of that offer. 

6. A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount 
of five percent (5%) of the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier’s 
check, or certified check.  The County will return the deposit on any bid not 
accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a 
qualifying higher bid is received.  The County will return the deposit of the 
final high bidder at closing. 

7. The terms of the final sale are that 
- the County Commissioners must approve the final high offer before the 

sale is closed, which it will do within 30 days after the final upset bid 
period has passed, and 

- The buyer must pay with cash at the time of closing. 
8. The County reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time 

before the final high bid is accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids. 
9. If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set 

forth above is hereby accepted.  The appropriate County officials are 

118



authorized to execute the instruments necessary to convey the property to C. 
B. Gray. 

 
Adopted this 17th day of March, 2008. 
 
 
             
      Barry C. Nelms, Chairman 

Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
     ATTEST: 
 

      
Gwen H. Keene, CMC 
Clerk to the Board 

 

119



CK

1

1688

CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AGENDA ITEM

Meeting Date

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED

SUBJECT

Add member to the Community Child Protection TeamCommunity Child Fatality Team

REQUESTED ACTION

Approval to add Scott Pollard to the Community Child Protection TeamCommunityChild Fatality Team

Submitted By KATHY ROMM Department Department ofSocial Services

Date03042008 Attachments Yes No

REVIEW PROCESS

Approved
Finance Director Yes No

Attachment

County Attorney Yes No

County Manager Yes No

Yes No

REVIEW COMMENTS

120



CCPT Members
List all CCPT members Submit the list of CCPT members to the Division by January 15 annually

County Currituck Date June 22 2007

Date Joined
Name Address R t CC

Jud a Ed ar Barnes 929 First St Manteo NC 27954

e resen in

District Court Jud a

PT

1997

Detective Vic Lasher 407 Ma le Rd NC 27956 Sheriffs De t 2004

Ruth Crain PO Box 91 Coinock NC 27923 Communit 1992

Stanle Gri s PO Box 240 Currituck NC 27929 Emer M mt 2000

Teresa Henne PO Box 26 Currituck NC 27929 Curr Co Health 2001

Frank Parrish 202 E Colonial Ave Eliz Ci NC 27909 DAOffice 1992

Fa Lindsa 112 Old Tulls Creek Rd Mo ock NC 27958 Communit 2000

Ron Lei h POBox 40 Currituck NC 27929 Schools 2002

Janie Mercer POBox 189 Currituck NC 27929 Communit Action 1992

Vickie Moore POBox 38 Currituck NC 27929 DSS 1992

Bobbie Henle 1135 Waterlil Rd Coinock NC 27923 DSS Board Member 2004

Dr Owens PO Box 328 Jarvisbur NC 27947 Medical Doctor 1992

Ruth Philli s 583 Tulls Creek Rd Mo ock NC 27958 Communit 1992

Ste hanie Bradle PO Box 38 Currituck NC 27929 DSSChairman 1999

Veola S ive 1305D McPherson St Elizabeth Cit NC 27909 Guardian Ad Litem 1992

Maxzella Four urean POBox 2367 Eliz Cit NC 279062367 Mental Health 2005

rev892007
47

121


	Agenda
	Karen McCalpin, update on Corolla Wild Horse Fund
	Wild Horse Fund Update

	Corolla Ocean Rescue contract for Lifeguard Services
	Corolla Beach Services Contract

	Public Hearing and Action
	Electronic Message Signs

	Review and Action
	weeping radish sup

	Appointments to the Whalehead Board of Trustees
	WH Nominating Comm Report

	Amendment to Resolution Establishing a Tourism Advisory Board to Change Meeting Date
	Amendment to TAB Resolution

	Surplus resolution for Extension trailer
	Surplus resolution for Ext trailer

	Change Orders for Jarvisburg Elementary School
	Jarvisburg Elementary CO 

	Change Orders for Shawboro Elementary School
	Shawboro Elementary CO

	Budget Amendments
	Budget Amendments March 17

	Request to purchase ambulances through installment purchase agreement and piggy-back off of the Florida State contract
	Request to purchase ambulances

	Report of Unpaid 2007 Real Estate Taxes - Order Advertisement of Tax Liens
	Advertise Tax Liens

	Bond Order for Mainland Water Revenue Bonds 
	Mainland Water Bond Order

	Series Resolution for Mainland Water Revenue Bonds
	Mainland Water Revenue Bond Series Resolution

	Resolution to Declare County-Owned Parcel 110B-011-0016-0000 Surplus Property 
	Resolution-Surplus Property

	Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process - Parcel 110B-011-0016-0000
	Resolution-Upset Bid Process

	Appointment of Scott Pollard to the Community Child Protection Team/Community Child Fatality Team
	Appointment to Comm Child Protection Team


